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PART

SPECIAL NOTE REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

This Annual Report on Form 10-K of NaviSite Inc NaviSite the Company we us and our
contains forward-looking statements within the meaning of Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of

1934 as amended the Exchange Act and Section 27A of the Securities Act of 1933 as amended the

Securities Act that involve risks and uncertainties All statements other than statements of historical

information provided herein are forward-looking statements and may contain information about financial

results economic conditions trends and known uncertainties Our actual results could differ materially from

those discussed in the forward-looking statements as result of number of factors which include those

discussed in this section and elsewhere in this report and the risks discussed in our other filings with the

Securities and Exchange Commission the SEC Readers are cautioned not to place undue reliance on

these forward-looking statements which reflect our managements analysis judgment belief or expectation

only as of the date hereof Investors are warned that actual results may differ materially from our expectations

We undertake no obligation to publicly reissue or update these forward-looking statements to reflect events or

circumstances that arise after the date hereof All logos and company and product names may be trademarks

or registered trademarks of their respective owners

Item Business

Our Business

NaviSite is global information-technology IT provider of enterprise-hosting and application

services We help more than 1400 customers reduce the cost and complexity of IT increase their service

levels free IT resources and focus on their core businesses by offering comprehensive suite of customized

IT-as-a-service solutions Our goal is to be the leading provider for cloud-enabled enterprise-hosting and

managed-application services by leveraging our deep knowledge experience technology platform commit

ment to flexibility and responsiveness to our customers

Our core competencies are to provide complex enterprise-hosting solutions customized managed-application

services and remote operations services Our suite of managed applications includes Oracle e-Business Suite

PeopleSoft Enterprise Siebel JD Edwards Hyperion Lawson Kronos Lotus Domino and Microsoft Dynamics

including Exchange email services By managing application and infrastructure and providing comprehensive

services we are able to address the key challenges faced by IT organizations today increasing complexity

pressures on capital and operating expenses and declining or limited resources

We provide our services from global platform of 13 data centers in the United States and two in the

United Kingdom totaling approximately 200000 square feet of usable space and primary network

operations center or NOC in India and secondary NOC support based out of Andover Massachusetts Using

this platform we leverage innovative and scalable uses of technology including shared components and

virtualization along with the subject-matter expertise of our professional staff to deliver what we believe are

cost-effective flexible solutions that provide responsive and predictable levels of service to meet our

customers business needs Combining our technology domain expertise and competitive fixed-cost infrastruc

ture we can offer our customers the cost and functional advantages of outsourcing with proven partner like

NaviSite We are dedicated to delivering quality services and meeting rigorous standards including

maintaining our SAS 70 Type II compliance and Microsoft Gold and Oracle Certified Partner certifications

In addition to delivering enterprise hosting and application services we are able to leverage our

infrastructure and application-management platform NaviView to deliver our partners software on demand

and thereby provide an alternative to the traditional licensing of software As the platform provider for an

increasing number of independent software vendors ISVs and providers of software-as-a-service SaaS
we enable solutions and services to diverse growing customer base We have adapted our infrastructure and

platform by incorporating virtualization technologies to provide services specific to the needs of our customers

in order to increase our market share



We believe that our data centers and infrastructure have the capacity necessary to expand our business for

the foreseeable future Further trends in hardware virtualization and the density of computing resources which

reduce the required square footage or footprint in the data center are favorable to NaviSites services-oriented

offerings as compared with traditional co-location or managed-hosting providers Our services as described

below combine our developed infrastructure with established processes and procedures for delivering hosting-

and application-management services Our high-availability infrastructure high-performance monitoring sys

tems and proactive and collaborative problem-resolution and change-management processes are designed to

identify and address potentially crippling problems before they disrupt our customers operations

We currently serve over 1400 customers Our hosted customers typically enter into service agreements

for term of one to five years with monthly payments that provide us with recurring revenue base Our

revenue growth comes from adding new customers and delivering additional services to existing customers

Our recurring revenue base is affected by new customers and renewals and terminations with existing

customers

Our Services

We offer our customers broad range
of enterprise-hosting and managed-application services that can be

deployed quickly and cost effectively Our expertise allows us to meet an expanding set of increasingly

complex customer requirements Our experience and capabilities save our customers the time and cost of

developing expertise in house and we increasingly serve as the sole manager of our customers outsourced

applications

We provide these services to range
of industries including financial services healthcare and

pharmaceuticals manufacturing and distribution publishing media and communications business services

public sector and software through our own sales force and sales-channel relationships

Our managed-hosting -application and -remote-operations services are facilitated by our proprietary

NaviViewTM collaborative infrastructure- and application-management platform As described further below

our NaviView platform enables us to provide highly efficient effective and customized management of

enterprise applications and hosted infrastructure Comprised of suite of third-party and proprietary products

NaviView provides tools designed specifically to meet the needs of customers who outsource IT functions

Supporting our managed-hosting and applications services requires range of hardware and software

designed for the specific needs of our customers NaviSite is leader in using virtual computing and memory

shared and dedicated storage and networking as ways to optimize services for performance cost and

Operational efficiency We strive to continually innovate as technology develops An example of this continued

innovation is the deployment of our utility- or cloud-based infrastructure to maximize infrastructure leverage

Our services are grouped and described further as follows

Enterprise-Hosting Services

NaviSites hosting services provide highly dependable and secure technology solutions for our customers

critical IT needs

Infrastructure as Service IaaS Support provided for hardware and software located in one of

our 15 data centers We also provide bundled offerings packaged as content-delivery services Specific

services include

dedicated and virtual servers

business continuity and disaster recovery

connectivity

content distribution

database administration and performance tuning



desktop support

hardware management

monitoring

network management

security

server and operating management and

storage management

Software as Service Enablement of SaaS to the ISV community Services include SaaS starter kits

and services specific to the needs of ISVs that want to offer their software in an on-demand or

subscription mode

Co-location Physical space offered in data center In addition to providing the physical space

NaviSite offers environmental support specified power with backup power generation and network-

connectivity options

Application Management

We provide implementation and operational services for the packaged applications listed below We offer

in addition to packaged enterprise-resource-planning or ERP applications outsourced messaging including

the monitoring and management of Microsoft Exchange and Lotus Domino Application-management services

are available either in NaviSite data center or through remote management on customers premises Moreover

our customers can choose to use dedicated or shared servers We also provide specific services to help customers

migrate from legacy or proprietary messaging systems to Microsoft Exchange or Lotus Domino and our experts

can customize messaging and collaborative applications We offer user provisioning spam filtering virus

protection and enhanced monitoring and reporting

ERP Application Management Services Defined services provided for specific packaged applications

Services include implementation upgrade assistance monitonng diagnostics problem resolution and

functional end-user support Applications include

Oracle e-Business Suite

PeopleSoft Enterprise

Siebel

JD Edwards

Hyperion

Lawson

Kronos

Microsoft Dynamics

Microsoft Exchange and

Lotus Domino

ERP Professional Services Planning implementation optimization enhancement and upgrades for

supported third-party ERP applications

Custom-Development Professional Services Planning implementation optimization and enhancement

for custom applications developed by us or our customers



Navi ViewTM Plaqorm

Our proprietary NaviView platform is critical element of our service offerings each of which can be

customized to meet our customers particular needs Using this platform we offer valuable flexibility without

the significant costs associated with traditional customization NaviView allows us to work with our

customers IT teams systems integrators and other third parties to deliver services to customers Our

NaviView platform and its user interface help ensure full transparency to the customer and seamless

operation of outsourced applications and infrastructure including hardware operating-system database and

application monitoring ii event management iii problem-resolution management and iv integrated

change- and configuration-management tools Our NaviView platform includes the following elements

Event-Detection System Our proprietary technology allows our operations personnel to efficiently

process alerts across heterogeneous computing environments This system collects and aggregates data from

all of the relevant systems-management software packages utilized by an IT organization

Synthetic-Transaction Monitoring Our proprietary synthetic-transaction methods emulate the end-user

experience and monitor for application latency or malfunctions that affect user productivity

Automated Remediation Our NaviView platform also allows us to proactively monitor identify and

correct common problems associated with the applications we manage on behalf of our customers These

automated corrections help ensure availability and reliability by remediating known issues in real time and

keeping applications up and running while underlying problems or potential problems are diagnosed

Component-Information Manager This central repository provides unified view of disparate network

database application and hardware information

Escalation Manager This workflow-automation technology allows us to streamline routine tasks and

escalate critical issues in fraction of the time that manual procedures require Our escalation manager

initiates specific orders and tasks based on pre-defined conditions ensuring clear and consistent communica

tion with our customers

We believe that the combination of NaviViewtm our dedicated and virtual utility platform with our

physical infrastructure and technical staff gives us unique ability to provide complex enterprise hosting and

application services NaviView is hardware- application- and operating-system-neutral Designed to enable

enterprise-hosting and software applications to be monitored and managed our NaviView technology allows

us to offer new solutions to our software vendors and new products to our current customers

Our History

We were formed in 1996 within CMGI Inc currently known as ModusLink Global Solutions Inc

ModusLink our former majority stockholder to support the networks and host websites of ModusLink
its subsidiaries and several of its affiliated companies In 1997 we began offering and supplying website

hosting and -management services to companies not affiliated with ModusLink We were incorporated in

Delaware in December 1998

Acquisitions in Fiscal Year 2008

In August 2007 we acquired the assets of Alabanza LLC and Hosting Ventures LLC together

Alabanza and all of the issued and outstanding stock of Jupiter Hosting Inc Jupiter These

acquisitions provided additional managed-hosting customers proprietary software for provisioning and

additional data-center space in the Bay Area market

In September 2007 we acquired netASPx Inc netASPxbased in Minneapolis Minnesota The

acquisition of netASPx added functional expertise in the Lawson and Kronos ERP applications and

approximately 18000 square feet of data-center capacity

In October 2007 we acquired the assets of iCommerce Inc iCommerce



Our Industry

The dramatic and continued growth in Internet use and the enhanced functionality accessibility and

security of Internet-based applications and software as service or subscription-based software have made

conducting business on the Internet necessity for todays enterprises In addition the costs complexity and

technological challenges faced by todays businesses have them increasingly looking to outsourcing iT

services We believe that fast-growing trend is the increased use of managed IT infrastructure and

applications by companies to allow them to focus and enhance their core business operations increase

efficiencies and remain competitive Enterpnse hosting and related applications extend beyond traditional

websites to business-process software applications in such areas as finance e-mail enterprise-resource

planning supply-chain management and customer-relationship management Organizations have become

increasitigly dependent on these applications which have evolved into important business components In

addition we believe that the pervasiveness of the Internet and quality of network infrastructure along with the

dramatic decline in the pricing of computing technology and the emergence of blade-based virtualization and

cloud computing have made the outsourced-delivery model an attractive choice for enterprise customers We

believe that the accelerated acceptance of alternative software-licensing models by software-industry market

leaders and the growing number of software-as-a-service offerings are driving other software vendors in this

direction and consequently generating strong industry growth

As enterprises seek to remain competitive and improve profitability we believe that they will continue to

implement increasingly sophisticated applications and delivery models Some of the potential benefits of these

applications
and delivery models include the ability to

increase business-operating efficiencies and reduce costs by using best-of-breed applications

build and enhance customer relationships by providing Internet-enabled customer service and technical

support

manage vendor and supplier relationships through Internet-enabled technologies such as online training

and online sales and marketing

communicate and conduct business more rapidly and cost-effectively with customers suppliers and

employees worldwide and

improve service and lower the cost of software ownership by the adoption of new Internet-enabled

software delivery models

These benefits have driven increased use of IT infrastructure and applications
and this trend in turn has

created strong demand for specialized IT support and applications expertise An increasing number of

businesses are choosing to outsource the hosting and management of these applications

The trend towards outsourced hosting and management of IT infrastructure and applications by todays

business organizations is driven by number of factors including

developments by major hardware and software vendors that facilitate outsourcing such as the

production of rack-based blade servers designed to be shared by number of customers

advances in virtualization and high-density computing that are beyond the skill and cost ability of the

typical IT department

the need to improve the reliability availability and overall performance of applications as they increase

in importance and complexity

the need to focus on core business operations

challenges and costs of hiring training and retaining application engineers and IT employees with the

requisite range of IT expertise

the increasing complexity of managing the operations of applications that need to function in house

with business partners and oti the public Internet and

Utility-like
cloud service offerings that enable companies to scale their services based on fluctuating

requirements



Notwithstanding increasing demand for these services the number of suppliers of these services has

decreased over the past five years primarily as result of industry consolidation We believe that this

consolidation trend will continue and will benefit the relatively few service providers with sufficient resources

and infrastructure to provide the cost-effective scalability performance reliability and business continuity that

customers expect

Our Strategy

Our goal is to become the leading provider of cloud-enabled enterprise-hosting and managed-application
services Further our financial objective is to market and deliver high-value services to generate the highest

revenue per square foot of available capacity in our data centers Key elements of our strategy are as follows

Provide Excellent Customer Service We are committed to providing all of our customers with

high level of customer support We believe that through the acquisition of several businesses we have

had the benefit of consolidating best-of-breed account-management and customer-support practices that

ensure that we are achieving this goal

Innovate and Leverage Our Technology Plaform We will continue to expand our platform leverage

by continued use of virtualization and utility-type services including the development of virtual

enterprise cloud platform We believe that the typical middle-market organization is not able to take

advantage of these technology developments because of their complexity and cost By continually

updating our platform we will continue to drive our competitiveness with higher-value services at

competitive prices

Expand Our Global-Delivery Capabilities We believe that global delivery is an integral piece of

our long-term strategy to the extent that it directly leads to our overall goal of service and operational

excellence for our customers By leveraging global-delivery solution we believe that we will be able to

continue to deliver superior services and technical expertise at competitive cost and enhance the value

proposition for our customers

Improve Operating Margins Through Efficiencies We have made significant improvements to our

overall cost structure We intend to continue to improve operating margins as we grow revenue and

improve the efficiency of our operations As we grow we will take advantage of our infrastructure

capacity our NaviViewTM platform and our automated processes We believe that due to the relatively

fixed-cost nature of our infrastructure increasing our customer revenue would incrementally improve our

operating margins

Focus Our Service Offerings We continue to focus our service offerings to compete more

effectively by being the best at what we do for the packaged solutions we support With our professional

services and deep operational expertise we effectively deliver to our customers full
range of services

for Oracle PeopleSoft Edwards Siebel Lawson Kronos Microsoft Dynamics Microsoft Exchange
and Lotus Domino solutions We believe that these services will help our customers achieve peak
effectiveness with their systems As full-service provider for broad range of applications we are able

to create leverage and cross- and up-sell opportunities in manner that is unparalleled in the marketplace

Our Infrastructure

Our infrastructure has been designed specifically to meet the demanding technical requirements of

delivering our services to our customers We securely deliver our services across Windows and Unix platforms
We believe that our infrastructure together with our trained and experienced staff enable us to offer market-

leading levels of service backed by high-service-level guarantees

Network-Operations Centers We monitor the operations of our infrastructure and customer applications

from our own state-of-the-art network-operations centers Network and system management and monitoring
tools continuously monitor our network server and application performance Our network operations centers

perform first-level problem identification validation and resolution We have redundant network operations
centers in New Delhi India and Andover Massachusetts that are staffed 24 hours day seven days week



with network security Windows and Unix database and application personnel We have technical and

functional application-support personnel located in our facilities in San Jose California Syracuse New York

Houston Texas Minneapolis Minnesota Atlanta Georgia Andover Massachusetts and New Delhi India

These employees provide
initial and escalated support 24 hours day seven days week for our customers

Our engineers and support personnel are promptly alerted to problems and we have established procedures for

rapidly resolving technical issues that may arise

Data Centers We currently operate in 13 data centers in the United States and two data centers in the

United Kingdom Our data centers incorporate technically sophisticated components that are designed to be

fault-tolerant The components used in our data centers include redundant core routers redundant core-

switching hubs and secure virtual local-area networks We utilize the equipment and tools necessary
for our

data-center operations including our infrastructure hardware networking and software products from industry

leaders such as BMC Cisco Dell IBM EMC Hewlett-Packard Microsoft Oracle and Sun Microsystems

Virtualization We employ virtualization technologies also known as Cloud Computing for process

ing storage and networking By using this approach we are able to maximize the benefit of our capital

expenditures
minimize the amount of valuable data center space used and create additional operating

efficiencies that lower our cost Virtualization decreases our time to provision and thereby accelerates our

ability to recognize revenue With its inherent redundancy and scalability virtualization adds business

continuity and for Internet-based applications and hosting reliability Virtualization also brings otherwise

unaffordable IT progress
within the reach of the typical middle-market customer

Internet Connectivity We have redundant high-capacity Internet connections with providers such as

Global Crossing Level Cogent ATT and XO Communications and others We have deployed direct

private-transit and peering Internet connections to utilize the providers peering capabilities and to enhance

routes via their networks that improve global performance Our private-transit system enables us to provide

fast reliable access for our customers IT infrastructure and applications

Sales and Marketing

Sales Our sales teams are located in the United States the United Kingdom and India and focus on the

identification quoting and sale of solutions to new customers Our sales professionals meet with these

prospective customers to understand and identify their individual business requirements and to offer tailor-

made solutions The sales teams are focused on enterprise hosting application management and professional

services with respect to which domain knowledge and expertise are significant
differentiator Our sales

teams are supported by solution architects who assess the infrastructure and application requirements to

develop an optimal design and cost analysis The quoting for prospective opportunities
with less complex

requirements is automated and is provided online directly to our sales professionals

The sales teams are augmented by account managers assigned to specific accounts to identify and manage

cross-selling opportunities
of additional services and the renewal of contracts approaching term To date most

of our sales have been realized through our direct-sales-force teams Our sales representatives call potential

customers from our offices in the United States and India to develop new opportunities
and consult with

smaller mid-market companies We also leverage business development resources to create market demand for

our products and services

Automation and Platform-Based Sales We launched in 2008 an automated platform to allow new

customers to purchase and provision hosted Microsoft Exchange This automated system allows customers to

buy services immediately without interaction with NaviSite staff

Marketing Our marketing organization is responsible
for defining our overall market strategy generat

ing qualified leads for our field and inside sales forces and increasing the overall awareness of our brand Our

lead-generation programs include comprehensive online and offline marketing programs and emphasize online

search e-mail banner advertising outbound telemarketing efforts trade conferences and webinars We

maintain data-driven rigorous measurement and monitoring approach to maximize the efficacy of our

marketing investments and deliver the highest possible return on investment



Customers

Our customers include mid-sized companies divisions of large multinational companies and government
agencies Our customers operate in wide variety of industries such as technology manufacturing and

distribution healthcare and pharmaceuticals publishing media and communications financial services retail

business services and government agencies

As of July 31 2009 NaviSite serviced over 1400 hosted customers

No customer represented 10% or more of our revenue for the fiscal
years ended July 31 2009 2008 and

2007 Substantially all of our revenues are derived from and over 85% of our plant property and equipment
is located in the United States

Competition

We compete in the outsourced IT and professional-services markets These markets are fragmented

highly competitive and likely to be characterized by industry consolidation

We believe that participants in these markets must grow rapidly and achieve significant presence to

compete effectively We believe that the primary competitive factors determining success in our markets

include

the quality of services delivered

the ability to consistently measure track and report operational metrics

application-hosting infrastructure and messaging-management expertise

fast redundant and reliable Internet connectivity

robust infrastructure providing availability speed scalability and security

comprehensive and diverse service offerings and the timely addition of value-add services

brand recognition

strategic relationships

competitive pricing and

adequate capital to permit continued investment in infrastructure customer service and support and
sales and marketing

Based on the breadth of our service offerings the strength of our NaviView platform our existing
infrastructure capacity and our pricing we believe that we compete effectively

Our current and prospective competitors include

hosting and related services providers including Terremark Inc Rackspace Hosting Inc Savvis
IBM ATT and other local and regional hosting providers

application-services providers such as IBM ATT Electronic Data Systems Corp Cedar Crestone
Oracle On Demand and Computer Sciences Corporation

co-location providers including Savvis Equinix and Switch Data Facilities Company Inc and

messaging providers including Apptix Intermedia
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Intellectual Property

We rely on combination of trademark service mark copyright patent and trade-secret laws and

contractual restrictions to establish and protect our proprietary rights and promote our reputation and the

growth of our business Our business is not substantially dependent on any single or group
of related patents

trademarks copyrights or licenses

Employees

As of July 31 2009 we had 650 employees Of these employees 462 were principally engaged in

operations 98 were principally engaged in sales and marketing and 90 were principally engaged in general

and administrative functions None of our employees is party to collective-bargaining agreement and we

believe that our relationship with our employees is good We also retain consultants and independent

contractors on regular basis to assist in the completion of projects

Available Information

We make our annual reports on Form 10-K quarterly reports on Form 10-Q current reports on Form 8-K

and amendments to those reports available through our website under Investors free of charge as soon as

reasonably practicable after we file such material with or furnish it to the SEC Our Internet address is

http//www.navisite.com The contents of our website are not incorporated by reference in this annual report

on Form 10-K or any other report
filed with or furnished to the SEC

Item 1A Risk Factors

We operate in rapidly changing environment that involves number of risks some of which are beyond

our control Forward-looking statements in this report and those made from time to time by us through our

senior management are made pursuant to the safe-harbor provisions of the Private Securities Litigation Reform

Act of 1995 Forward-looking statements concerning our expected future revenues earnings or financial

results project plans performance or development of products and services as well as other estimates related

to future operations are necessarily only estimates of future results We cannot assure you that actual results

will not materially differ from expectations Forward-looking statements represent our managements current

expectations and are inherently uncertain We do not undertake any obligation to update forward-looking

statements If any of the following risks actually occurs our business financial condition and operating results

could be materially adversely affected

We have history of losses and may never achieve or sustain profitability We have never been

profitable and may never become profitable As of July 31 2009 we had incurred losses since our

incorporation resulting in an accumulated deficit of approximately $519.6 million During the fiscal year
ended

July 31 2009 we had net loss attributable to common shareholders of approximately $18.5 million We may

continue to incur losses in the future As result we can give no assurance that we will achieve profitability

or be capable of sustaining profitable operations

Our financing agreement with syndicated group of lenders includes various covenants and

restrictions that may negatively affect our liquidity and our ability to operate and manage our business

As of September 30 2009 we owed approximately $117.3 million under credit agreement with syndicated

group of lenders The credit agreement

restricts our ability to create incur assume or permit to exist any additional indebtedness excluding

limited exemptions

restricts our ability to create incur assume or permit to exist any lien on any of our assets excluding

limited exemptions

restricts our ability to make investments with limited exemptions

requires that we meet financial covenants for leverage fixed charges and capital expenditures
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restricts our ability to enter into any transaction of merger or consolidation excluding limited

exemptions

restricts our ability to sell assets or purchase or otherwise acquire the property of any person excluding
limited exemptions

restricts our ability to authorize declare or pay dividends excluding limited exemptions

restricts our ability to enter into any transaction with any affiliate
except on terms and conditions that

are at least as favorable to us as those that could reasonably be obtained in comparable arms-length
transaction with person who is not an affiliate and

restricts our ability to amend our organizational documents

If we breach the credit agreement default could result default if not waived could result in among
other things our not being able to borrow additional amounts under the credit agreement In addition all or

portion of our outstanding amounts may become immediately due and payable on an accelerated basis which

would adversely affect our liquidity and our ability to manage our business The maturity date of the term

loan is June 2013 and our revolving-credit facility terminates on June 2012 Interest on the term loan is

payable in arrears on the first business day of August November February and May for alternative-base-rate

ABR loans and the last day of the chosen interest period which can be one two three six nine or

twelve months or every three months if the chosen interest period is greater than three months for

London-interbank-offered-rate LIBOR loans

The term loan amortizes on the first day of each fiscal quarter commencing on August 2007 in equal

quarterly installments during the periods set forth below in the aggregate amounts set forth opposite such

periods

Year
Percentage of Term Loan

10%

1.0%

1.0%

1.0%

1.0%

95.0%

In addition the credit agreement exposes us to interest-rate fluctuations that could significantly increase

the interest we pay We are required under the credit agreement to maintain interest-rate protection that

results in at least 50% of the aggregate principal amount of our consolidated indebtedness other than the

revolving loans under the credit agreement being subject to fixed or maximum interest rate

We may be unable to borrow the full amount of the revolving-credit facility up to $10.0 million if any
of the lenders are unable to make loan in an amount equal to their applicable commitments under the

revolving-credit facility

Continued debt-covenant compliance under our credit agreement may not be possible if certain future
actions are not taken In order for us to comply with our credit agreements senior-leverage ratio and fixed-

charges covenants for quarterly periods in 2010 and beyond we will need to achieve some of the following

measures increase our EBITDA ii successfully complete the sale of certain non-core assets e.g
certain co-location data centers or other non-strategic assets portion of the proceeds from which would be

used to repay debt iii execute debt-reduction plan iv refinance our existing debt arrangement and

modify one of our significant data-center lease agreements If the aforementioned measures are not

sufficient to maintain compliance with our financial covenants we would need to seek waiver or amendment
from the syndicated lending group However there can be no assurance that we could obtain such waiver or

amendment in which case our debt would immediately become due and payable in full an event that would

adversely affect our liquidity and our ability to manage our business We believe that our execution of some
combination of the above measures will be sufficient for us to maintain compliance with our financial

covenants throughout 2010
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We may need to obtain additional debt or equity financing in order to satisfy any mandatoiy

redemption of our preferred stock Our Series Convertible Preferred Stock Preferred Stock has rights

that could require us to redeem any or all of the issued and outstanding Preferred Stock on or after August

2013 We may need to obtain additional debt or equity financing in order to satisfy any mandatory redemption

but that financing may not be available on favorable terms or at all In addition our credit agreement restricts

our ability to incur additional indebtedness which could negatively affect our ability to fulfill our obligations

to the holders of the Preferred Stock

Disruption in financial and currency markets could have negative effect on our business As has

been widely reported financial markets in the United States Europe and Asia have in recent years

experienced disruption including unusual volatility in security prices diminished liquidity and credit availabil

ity rating downgrades of certain investments and declining valuations of others Governments took unprece

dented actions intended to address these market conditions which include restricted credit and declines in real

estate values While currently these conditions have not impaired our ability to operate our business there can

be no assurance that there will not be further deterioration in financial markets and confidence in major

economies circumstance that could lead to challenges in the operation of our business These economic

developments affect businesses such as ours in number of ways The current tightening of credit in financial

markets adversely affects the ability of customers and suppliers to obtain financing for significant purchases

and operations and could result in decrease in orders and spending for our products and services We are

unable to predict future disruptions in financial markets and adverse economic conditions and the effects that

they would have on our business and financial condition

Atlantic Investors LLC Unicorn Worldwide Holdings Limited and Madison Technology LLC may have

interests that conflict with the interests of our other stockholders and have significant influence over

corporate
decisions Atlantic Investors LLC Atlantic together with its two managing members

Unicorn Worldwide Holdings Limited and Madison Technology LLC owned approximately
36% of our

outstanding capital stock as of July 31 2009 based on available voting shares As of July 31 2009 Atlantics

ownership alone was approximately 35% based on available voting shares Atlantic Unicom Worldwide

Holdings Limited and Madison Technology LLç together have significant power in the election of our board

of directors Regardless of how our other stockholders may vote Atlantic Unicorn Worldwide Holdings and

Madison Technology LLC acting together may have the ability to determine whether to engage in merger

consolidation or sale of our assets and any other significant corporate transaction

Members of our management group also have significant interests in Atlantic Investors LLC that may

create conflicts of interest Some of the members of our management group
also serve as members of the

management group of Atlantic and its affiliates Specifically Andrew Ruhan the chairman of our board of

directors holds an equity interest in Unicorn Worldwide Holdings Limited managing member of Atlantic

Arthur Becker our president and chief executive officer and member of our board of directors is the

managing member of Madison Technology LLC managing member of Atlantic As result these NaviSite

officers and directors may face potential conflicts of interest with each other and our stockholders In their

capacity as our officers or directors they may face situations that conflict with their fiduciary obligations to

Atlantic which in turn may have interests that conflict with the interests of our other stockholders

Our common stockholders may suffer dilution in the future upon exercise of outstanding convertible

securities or the issuance of additional securities in potential future acquisitions or financings In

connection with financing agreement with Silver Point Finance LLC we issued warrants to SPCP Group

LLC and SPCP Group III LLC two affiliates of Silver Point Finance to purchase an aggregate of

3930136 shares of our common stock If the warrants are exercised Silver Point Finance may obtain

significant equity interest in NaviSite and other stockholders may experience significant and immediate

dilution As of September 30 2009 SPCP Group LLC and SPCP Group III LLC have partially exercised the

warrants to acquire 2730005 shares of our common stock and warrants for the purchase of 1200131 shares

of our common stock remain outstanding

In connection with our acquisition of netASPx we issued to its stockholders 3125000 shares of our

Preferred Stock Additional shares of the Preferred Stock have been and will be issued each fiscal quarter to
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the former shareholders of netASPx as in-kind dividends that accrue on the outstanding Preferred Stock The

Preferred Stock may be converted into shares of common stock at price of $8.00 per share subject to

adjustment If converted the shares of Preferred Stock convert into the number of shares of common stock

determined by dividing the redemption price per share of the Preferred Stock by the conversion price

applicable to such shares As of September 30 2009 such conversion would result in one share of common
stock being issued upon the conversion of one share of Preferred Stock The conversion and redemption prices

are subject to adjustment in certain circumstances or upon default of our agreement However in no event are

the number of shares of common stock to be issued upon the conversion of the Preferred Stock to equal or

exceed 6692856 which represents 19.9% of the outstanding shares of our common stock on September 10
2007 without the approval of our stockholders in accordance with the applicable rules and regulations of the

Nasdaq Stock Market As of September 30 2009 no shares of Preferred Stock have been converted into

shares of our common stock

Our stockholders will also experience dilution to the extent that additional shares of our common stock

are issued in potential future acquisitions or financings

failure to meet customer specifications or expectations could result in lost revenues increased

expenses negative publicity claims for damages and harm to our reputation and cause demand for our

services to decline Our agreements with customers require us to meet specified service levels for the

services we provide and our customers may have additional expectations about our services Any failure to

meet customers specifications or expectations could result in

delayed or lost revenue

requirements to provide additional services to customer at reduced charges or no charge

negative publicity about us which could adversely affect our ability to attract or retain customers and

claims by customers for substantial damages against us regardless of our responsibility for the failure

which claims may neither be covered by insurance policies nor limited by the contractual terms of our

engagement

Our ability to successfully market our services could be substantially impaired if we are unable to

deploy new infrastructure systems and applications or if we do deploy them but they prove unreliable

defective or incompatible We may experience difficulties that could delay or prevent the successful

development introduction or marketing of hosting- and application-management services in the future If any

newly introduced infrastructure systems and applications suffer from reliability quality or compatibility

problems market
acceptance of our services could be greatly hindered and our ability to attract new customers

significantly reduced We cannot assure you that new applications deployed by us will be free from any

reliability quality or compatibility problems If we incur increased costs or are unable for technical or other

reasons to host and manage new infrastructure systems and applications or enhancements of existing

applications our ability to successfully market our services could be substantially limited

Any interruption in or degradation of our private-transit Internet connections could result in the loss

of customers or hinder our ability to attract new customers Our customers rely on our ability to move their

digital content as efficiently as possible to the people accessing their websites and infrastructure systems and

applications We utilize our direct private-transit Internet connections to major network providers such as

Level Communications Inc and Global Crossing as means of avoiding congestion and resulting

performance degradation at public Internet exchange points We rely on these telecommunications-network

suppliers to maintain the operational integrity of their networks so that our private-transit Internet connections

operate effectively If our private-transit Internet connections are interrupted or degraded we may face claims

by or loss of customers and harm to our reputation in the industry either of which result would likely cause

demand for our services to decline

If we are unable to maintain existing and develop additional relationships with software vendors the

sales and marketing of our service offerings may be unsuccessful We believe that to penetrate the market

for managed IT services we must maintain existing and develop additional relationships with industry
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leading software vendors We license or lease select software applications from software vendors including

IBM Microsoft Corp and Oracle Corp Our relationships with Microsoft and Oracle are critical to the

operations and success of our business The loss of our ability to continue to obtain utilize or depend on any

of these applications or relationships could substantially weaken our ability to provide services to our

customers It may also require us to obtain substitute software applications that may be of lower quality or

performance standards or at greater cost In addition because we generally license applications on non-

exclusive basis our competitors may license and utilize the same software applications In fact many of the

companies with which we have strategic relationships currently have or could enter into similar license

agreements with our competitors or prospective competitors We cannot assure you that software applications

will continue to be available to us from software vendors on commercially reasonable terms If we are unable

to identify and license software applications that meet our targeted criteria for new application introductions

we may have to discontinue or delay introduction of services relating to these applications

Our network infrastructure could fail which failure would impair our ability to provide guaranteed

levels of service and could result in signficant operating losses To provide our customers with guaranteed

levels of service we must operate our network infrastructure 24 hours day seven days week without

interruption We must therefore protect our network infrastructure equipment and customer files against

damage from human error natural disasters unexpected equipment failure power loss or telecommunications

failures terrorism sabotage or other intentional acts of vandalism Even if we take precautions the occurrence

of natural disaster equipment failure or other unanticipated problem at one or more of our data centers could

result in interruptions in the services we provide to our customers We cannot assure you that our disaster-

recovery plan will address all or even most of the problems we may encounter in the event of disaster or

other unanticipated problem We have experienced service interruptions in the past and any future service

interruptions could

require us to spend substantial amounts of money to replace equipment or facilities

entitle customers to claim service credits or seek damages for losses under our service-level guarantees

cause customers to seek alternate providers or

impede our ability to attract new customers retain current customers or enter into additional strategic

relationships

Our dependence on third parties increases the risk that we will not be able to meet our customers

needs for software systems and services on timely or cost-effective basis which inability could result in

the loss of customers Our services and infrastructure rely on products and services of third-party providers

We purchase key components of our infrastructure including networking equipment from limited number of

suppliers such as HP Sun Microsystems IBM Cisco Systems Inc Microsoft and Oracle We cannot assure

you that we will not experience operational problems attributable to the installation implementation

integration performance features or functionality of third-party software systems and services We cannot

assure you that we will have the necessary hardware or parts on hand or that our suppliers will be able to

provide them in timely manner in the event of equipment failure Our inability to timely obtain and continue

to maintain the necessary hardware or parts could result in sustained equipment failure and loss of revenue

due to customer loss or claims for service credits under our service-level guarantees

We could be subject to increased operating costs as well as claims litigation or other potential liability

in connection with risks associated with Internet security and the security of our systems significant

barrier to the growth of e-commerce and communications over the Internet has been the need for secure

transmission of confidential information Several of our infrastructure systems and application services use

encryption and authentication technology licensed from third parties to provide the protections necessary to

ensure secure transmission of confidential information We also rely on security systems designed by third

parties and the personnel in our network-operations centers to secure those data centers Any unauthorized

access computer viruses accidental or intentional actions or other disruptions could result in increased

operating costs For example we may incur additional significant costs to protect against these interruptions

and the threat of security breaches or to alleviate problems caused by these interruptions or breaches If third
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party were able to misappropriate consumers personal or proprietary information including credit-card

information during the use of an application solution provided by us we could be subject to claims litigation

or other potential liability

Third-party infringement claims against our technology suppliers customers or us could result in

disruptions in service the loss of customers or costly and time-consuming litigation We license or lease

most technologies used in the infrastructure systems and application services that we offer If our technology

suppliers become subject to third-party infringement or other claims and assertions they may become unable

or unwilling to continue to license their technologies to us We cannot assure you that third parties will not

assert claims against us in the future or that these claims will not succeed Any infringement claim arising out

of our technologies or services regardless of its merit could result in delays in service installation or

upgrades the loss of customers or costly and time-consuming litigation

We may be subject to legal claims in connection with the information disseminated through our network

and these claims could divert managements attention and require us to expend sign jficant financial resources

We may face liability for claims of defamation negligence copyright patent or trademark infringement and other

claims based on the nature of the materials disseminated through our network For example lawsuits may be

brought against us claiming that content distributed by some of our customers may be regulated or banned In

these and other instances we may be required to engage in protracted and expensive litigation that could have the

effect of diverting managements attention from our business and require us to expend significant financial

resources Our general-liability insurance may not cover any of these claims or may not be adequate to protect us

against all liability that may be imposed In addition on limited number of occasions in the past businesses

organizations and individuals have sent unsolicited commercial e-mails from servers hosted at our facilities to

number of people typically to advertise products or services This practice known as spamming can lead to

statutory liability as well as complaints against any service providers that enable these activities particularly where

recipients view the materials received as offensive We have received and may receive letters from recipients of

information transmitted by our customers objecting to the transmission Although we contractually prohibit our

customers from spamniing we cannot assure you that none of them will
engage

in this practice which could

subject us to claims for damages

Concerns relating to privacy and protection of customer and job-seeker data on our Americas Job

Exchange website could damage our reputation and deter current and potential customers and job seekers

from using our products and services In fiscal
year

2008 we launched Americas Job Exchange successor

to Americas Job Bank Concerns about our practices for Americas Job Exchange with regard to the

collection use disclosure or security of personal information or other privacy-related matters even if

unfounded could damage our reputation which damage in turn could significantly harm our business

financial condition and operating results While we strive to comply with all applicable data-protection laws

and regulations and our own posted privacy policies any actual or perceived failure to comply may result in

proceedings or actions against us by government entities or others which proceedings or actions could

adversely affect our business Moreover the actual or perceived failure to comply with our policies or

applicable requirements related to the collection use sharing or security of personal information or other

privacy-related matters could result in loss of customer and job-seeker confidence in us which loss could

adversely affect our business Laws related to data protection continue to evolve Certain jurisdictions may
enact laws or regulations that impact our ability to offer our products and services and resUlt in reduced traffic

or contract terminations in those jurisdictions any of which effects could harm our business

Unauthorized access phishing schemes and other disruptions could jeopardize the security of customer

and job-seeker information stored in our systems result in significant liability to us and cause existing

customers and job seekers to refrain from doing business with us

If we fail to attract or retain key officers management and technical personnel our ability to

successfully execute our business strategy to continue to provide services and technical support to our

customers or to attract new ones could be adversely affected We believe that attracting training retaining

and motivating technical and managerial personnel including individuals with significant levels of infrastruc

ture systems and application expertise is critical component of the future success of our business Qualified

technical personnel are likely to remain limited resource for the foreseeable future and competition for these
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personnel is intense The departure of any of our executive officers particularly Arthur Becker our chief

executive officer and president or core members of our sales and marketing teams or technical service

personnel would have negative ramifications on our customer relations and operations The departure of our

executive officers could adversely affect the stability of our infrastructure and our ability to provide the

guaranteed service levels our customers expect Any officer or employee can terminate his or her relationship

with us at any time In addition we do not carry
life insurance on any of our personnel Over the past three

years we have had reductions-in-force and departures of several members of senior management due to

redundancies and restructurings after consolidating our acquired companies In the event of future reductions

or departures
of employees our ability to successfully execute our business strategy or to continue to provide

services to our customers or attract new customers could be adversely affected

The unpredictability of our quarterly results may cause the trading price of our common stock to fluctuate

or decline Our quarterly operating results have previously varied and may continue to vary significantly as

result of number of factors many of which are beyond our control and any one of which may cause our stock

price to fluctuate The primary factors that may affect our operating results include the following

reduction of market demand or acceptance of our services

our ability to develop market and introduce new services on timely basis

the length of the sales cycle for our services

the timing and level of sales of our services both of which depend on the budgets of our customers

downward price adjustments by our competitors

changes in the mix of services provided by our competitors

technical difficulties or system downtime affecting the Internet or our hosting operations

our ability to meet any increased technological demands of our customers and

the amount and timing of costs related to our marketing efforts and service introductions

Due to the above factors we believe that quarter-to-quarter or period-to-period comparisons of our

operating results may not be good indicator of our future performance Our operating results for any

particular quarter may fall short of our expectations or those of stockholders or securities analysts In this

event the trading price of our common stock would likely fall

If we are unsuccessful in pending and potential litigation matters our financial condition may be

adversely affected We are currently involved in various pending and potential legal proceedings including

class-action lawsuit related to our initial public offering If we are ultimately unsuccessful in any litigation

matter we could be required to pay substantial amounts of cash to the other parties The amount and timing of

any of these payments could adversely affect our fmancial condition

If the markets for outsourced IT infrastructure and applications Internet commerce and communica

tion decline there may be insufficient demand for our services and as result our business strategy and

objectives may faiL The increased use of the Internet for retrieving sharing and transferring information

among businesses and consumers continues to develop and the market for the purchase of products and

services over the Internet is still relatively new and emerging Our industry has experienced periods of rapid

growth followed by sharp declines in demand for products and services which downturns have sometimes led

to the failure of many companies focused on developing Internet-related businesses If acceptance and growth

of the Internet as medium for commerce and communication declines our business strategy and objectives

may fail because there may not be sufficient market demand for our managed IT services

If we do not respond to rapid changes in the technology sector we will lose customers The markets

for the technology-related services we offer are characterized by rapidly changing technology evolving

industry standards frequent new service introductions shifting distribution channels and changing customer

demands We may not be able to adequately adapt our services or to acquire new services that can compete

successfully In addition we may not be able to establish or maintain effective distribution channels We risk

losing customers to our competitors if we are unable to adapt to this rapidly evolving marketplace
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The market in which we operate is highly competitive and is likely to consolidate and we may lack the

financial and other resources expertise or capability necessary to capture increased market share or maintain

our market share We compete in the managed-if-services market This market is rapidly evolving highly

competitive and likely to be characterized by overcapacity and industry consolidation Our competitors may
consolidate with one another or acquire software-application vendors or technology providers enabling them to

more effectively compete with us We believe that participants in this market must grow rapidly and achieve

significant presence to compete effectively This consolidation could affect prices and other competitive factors in

ways that would impede our ability to compete successfully in the managed-if-services market

Further our business is not as developed as that of many of our competitors Many of our competitors

have substantially greater financial technical and market resources greater name recognition and more

established relationships in the industry Many of our competitors may be able to

develop and expand their network infrastructure and service offerings more rapidly

adapt to new or emerging technologies and changes in customer requirements more quickly

take advantage of acquisitions and other opportunities more readily or

devote greater resources to the marketing and sale of their services and adopt more aggressive pricing

policies than we can

We may lack the financial and other resources expertise or capability necessary to maintain or capture

increased market share in this environment in the future Because of these competitive factors and due to our

comparatively small size and our lack of financial resources we may be unable to successfully compete in the

managed-IT-services market

Difficulties presented by international economic political legal accounting and business factors could

harm our business in international markets We currently operate two data centers in the United Kingdom
Revenue from our foreign operations accounted for approximately 9.1% of our total revenue during the fiscal

year ended July 31 2009 By expanding our operations into India in fiscal year 2006 we broadened our

customer-service support Although we expect to focus most of our growth efforts in the United States we

may enter into joint ventures or outsourcing agreements with third parties acquire complementary businesses

or operations or establish and maintain new operations outside of the United States Some risks inherent in

conducting business internationally include

unexpected changes in regulatory tax and political environments

longer payment cycles and problems collecting accounts receivable

geopoliiical risks such as political and economic instability hostilities among countries or terrOrism

reduced protection of intellectual-property rights

fluctuations in currency-exchange rates or impositions of restrictive
currency controls

our ability to secure and maintain the necessary physical and telecommunications infrastructure

challenges in staffing and managing foreign operations

employment laws and practices in foreign countries

laws and regulations on content distributed over the Internet that are more restrictive than those

currently in place in the United States and

significant changes in immigration policies or difficulties in obtaining required imniigration approvals

Any one or more of these factors could adversely affect our international operations and consequently

our business
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We may become subject to burdensome government regulation and legal uncertainties that could

substantially harm our business or expose us to unanticipated liabilities It is likely that laws and

regulations directly applicable to the Internet or to hosting and managed-application service providers may be

adopted These laws may cover variety of issues including user privacy and the pricing characteristics and

quality of products and services The adoption or modification of laws or regulations relating to commerce

over the Internet could substantially impair the growth of our business or expose us to unanticipated liabilities

Moreover the applicability of existing laws to the Internet and hosting and managed-application service

providers is uncertain These existing laws could expose us to substantial liability if they are found to apply to

our business Because we offer services over the Internet in many states in the United States and

internationally and facilitate the activities of our customers in those jurisdictions we may become required to

qualify to do business or subject to taxation or other laws and regulations there even without any physical

presence employees or property there

The price of our common stock has been volatile and may continue to experience wide fluctuations

Since January 2008 our common stock has closed as low as $0.22 per share and as high as $4.89 per share

The trading price of our common stock has been and may continue to be subject to wide fluctuations due to

the risk factors discussed in this section and elsewhere in this report Fluctuations in the market price of our

common stock may cause investors in our common stock to lose some or all of their investments

Anti-takeover provisions in our corporate documents may discourage or prevent takeover Provisions

in our certificate of incorporation and bylaws may have the effect of delaying or preventing an acquisition or

merger in which we are acquired or transaction that changes our board of directors These provisions

authorize the board to issue preferred stock without stockholder approval

prohibit cumulative voting in the election of directors

limit the persons who may call special meetings of stockholders and

establish advance-notice requirements for nominations for the election of directors or for proposing

matters that can be acted on by stockholders at stockholder meetings

Our ability to use U.S net-operating-loss caryforwards might be limited As of July 31 2009 we had

net-operating-loss carryforwards of $187.3 million for U.S federal and state tax purposes These loss

carryforwards expire between fiscal years 2012 and 2029 To the extent that these net-operating-loss

carryforwards are available we intend to use them to reduce the corporate-income-tax liability associated with

our operations
Section 382 of the U.S Internal Revenue Code generally imposes an annual limitation on the

amount of net-operating-loss carryforwards that can be used to offset taxable income when corporation has

undergone significant changes in stock ownership We have experienced ownership changes most recently in

2002 that have reduced our net-operating-loss carryforwards An analysis is currently ongoing to determine if

our ownership changed To the extent that our use of net-operating-loss carryforwards is significantly limited

our income could be subject to corporate income tax earlier than it would if we were able to use net

operating-loss carryforwards which taxation could result in lower profits

Item lB Unresolved Staff Comments

None
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Item Properties

Location

San Jose CA1
San Francisco CA

Santa Clara CA

Chicago IL

Chicago IL

Oak Brook IL

Andover MA

Minneapolis MNl
Syracuse NY

Syracuse NY
New York NY

New York NY
Las Vegas NV2
Dallas TX

Houston TX

Herndon VA13
Vienna VA3
Gurgaon Haryana India

Watford England

London England

Data center and office

Data center and office

Data center

Data center

Data center and office

Data center and office

Office

Data center

Data center

Lease Expiration

November 2016

21805 January 2020

3655 August 2009

4598 September 2012

6800 November 2012

2212 April 2012

16780 September 2019

25896 January 2018

86931 January 2018

54474 June 2010

21374 November 2015

1933 May 2010

August 2013

May 2018

February 2010

January 2020

January 2019

June 2011

December 2019

August 2011

January 2018

March 2010

Facilities

Our executive offices are located at 400 Minuteman Road Andover Massachusetts We lease offices and

data centers in various Cities across the United States and have an office and data centers in the United

Kingdom and an office in India The table below sets forth list of our leased offices and data centers

Square Footage

Leased

Type Approximate

Data center and office 66350

Data center

Data center

Atlanta GA Office

Data center

Office

Data center

Andover MA Office

Office

Office

Data center

Data center

Office

1500

33286

28560

27370

12956

5515

23715

12706

11160

4017

We have idle office space at this facility from which we derive no economic benefit

We have entered into an assignment and assumption agreement with third party for this facility however

we retain the use as licensee of approximately 2000 square feet

We have subtenant for portion of this space

We believe that these offices and data centers are adequate to meet our foreseeable requirements and that

suitable additional or substitute
space will be available on commercially reasonable terms if needed

Item Legal Proceedings

IPO Securities Litigation

In 2001 lawsuits naming more than 300 issuers and over 50 investment banks were filed in the

United States District Court for the Southern District of New York and assigned to the Honorable Shira

Scheindlin the Court for all pretrial purposes the IPO Securities Litigation Between June 13 and

July 10 2001 five purported class-action lawsuits seeking monetary damages were filed against us Joel

Rosen our then chief executive officer Kenneth Hale our then chief financial officer Robert Eisenberg

our then president and the underwriters of our initial public offering of October 22 1999 On September

2001 the Court consolidated the five similar cases and consolidated amended complaint was filed on
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April 19 2002 the Class-Action Litigation against us and Messrs Rosen Hale and Eisenberg

collectively the NaviSite Defendants and against underwriter defendants Robertson Stephens as

successor-in-interest to BancBoston BancBoston J.P Morgan as successor-in-interest to Hambrecht

Quist Hambrecht Quist and First Albany The plaintiffs uniformly alleged that all defendants including the

NaviSite Defendants violated Sections 11 and 15 of the Securities Act Sections 10b and 20a of the

Exchange Act and Rule lOb-5 by issuing and selling our common stock in the offering without disclosing to

investors that some of the underwriters including the lead underwriters allegedly
had solicited and received

undisclosed agreements from certain investors to purchase aftermarket shares at pre-arranged escalating prices

and also to receive additional commissions or other compensation from those investors The Class-Action

Litigation seeks certification of plaintiff class consisting of all persons
who acquired shares of our common

stock between October 22 1999 and December 2000 The claims against Messrs Rosen Hale and

Eisenberg were dismissed without prejudice on November 18 2002 in return for their agreement to toll any

statute of limitations applicable to those claims Plaintiffs did not specify the amount of damages they sought

in the Class-Action Litigation On October 13 2004 the Court certified class in subgroup of cases the

Focus Cases in the IPO Securities Litigation The Focus Cases were vacated on December 2006 by the

United States Court of Appeals for the Second Circuit the Second Circuit The Class-Action Litigation is

not one of the Focus Cases Plaintiffs-appellees January 2007 petition with the Second Circuit for

rehearing and rehearing en banc was denied by the Second Circuit on April 2007 Plaintiffs renewed their

certification motion in the Focus Cases on September 27 2007 as to redefined classes pursuant to Fed

Civ 23b3 and 23c4 On October 2008 after briefing in connection with the renewed class

certification proceedings was completed plaintiffs withdrew without prejudice
the renewed certification motion

in the Focus Cases On October 10 2008 the Court confirmed plaintiffs request and directed the clerk to

close the renewed certification motion On April 2009 stipulation and agreement of settlement among the

plaintiffs
issuer defendants and underwriters was submitted to the Court for preliminary approval the

Proposed Global Settlement Pursuant to the Proposed Global Settlement all claims against the NaviSite

Defendants would be dismissed with prejudice and our pro rata share of the settlement consideration would be

fully funded by insurance On June 10 2009 the Court issued an opinion and order granting preliminary

approval
of the Proposed Global Settlement preliminarily certifying for settlement purposes only the

proposed classes and directing issuance of notice to putative settlement class members On September 10

2009 the Court held settlement fairness hearing On October 2009 the Court entered an opinion and

order granting final approval to the Proposed Global Settlement and directing the clerk to close each of the

more than 300 actions comprising the IPO Securities Litigation including the Class-Action Litigation Any

appeal of the Courts final approval of the Proposed Global Settlement must be filed within 30 days of the

date judgment is entered

The settlement remains subject to numerous conditions including potential appeals and there can be no

assurance that the Courts approval of the Proposed Global Settlement will be upheld in all respects if it is

appealed We believe that the allegations against us are without merit and if the litigation continues we

intend to vigorously defend against the plaintiffs claims Because of the inherent uncertainty of litigation and

because the settlement remains subject to numerous conditions and potential appeals we are not able to

predict the possible outcome of the suits and their ultimate effect if any on our business financial condition

results of operations or cash flows

On October 12 2007 purported shareholder of the Company filed complaint for violation of

Section 16b of the Exchange Act which prohibits short-swing trading against two of the underwriters of the

public offering at issue in the Class-Action Litigation The complaint is pending in the United States District

Court for the Western District of Washington and is captioned Vanessa Simmonds Bank of America Corp

et al An amended complaint was filed on February 28 2008 Plaintiff seeks the recovery of short-swing

profits from the underwriters on behalf of the Company which is named only as nominal defendant and

from whom no recovery is sought Similar complaints have been filed against the underwriters of the public

offerings of approximately 55 other issuers also involved in the IPO Securities Litigation joint status

conference was held on April 28 2008 at which the Court stayed discovery and ordered the parties to file

motions to dismiss by July 25 2008 On July 25 2008 the Company joined 29 other nominal defendant

issuers and filed joint motion to dismiss the amended complaint On the same date the underwriter
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defendants also filed joint motion to dismiss On September 2008 plaintiff filed her oppositions to the

motions The replies in
support of the motions to dismiss were filed on October 23 2008 Oral arguments on

all motions to dismiss were held on January 16 2009 at which time the Judge took the pending motions to

dismiss under advisement On March 12 2009 the Court entered an order granting the motions to dismiss

filed by the issuer defendants and the underwriter defendants Specifically the Court granted the issuer

defendants joint motion to dismiss dismissing the complaint without prejudice on the grounds that the

plaintiff had failed to make an adequate demand on the Company prior to filing her complaint In its order the
Court stated that it would not permit the plaintiff to amend her demand letters while pursuing her claims in

the litigation Because the Court dismissed the case on the grounds that it lacked subject-matter jurisdiction it

did not specifically reach the issue of whether the plaintiffs claims were barred by the applicable statute of

limitations However the Court also granted the underwriter defendants joint motion to dismiss with
respect

to cases involving non-moving issuers holding that the cases were barred by the applicable statute of

limitations because the issuers shareholders had notice of the potential claims more than five years prior to

filing suit

The plaintiff filed notice of appeal with the Ninth Circuit Court of Appeals on April 10 2009 The
underwriter defendants filed cross-appeal in each of the cases wherein the issuers had moved for dismissal

including the appeal relating to our IPO and the claims against them were dismissed without prejudice The

parties moved to consolidate the 54 cases for purposes of appeal which motion the Ninth Circuit granted The
plaintiffs opening brief on appeal was filed on August 26 2009 The issuers including the Company and the

underwriters responses were filed on October 2009 The plaintiff may file reply brief by November

2009 and underwriters may file reply brief on their cross-appeal by November 17 2009 We do not expect
that this claim will have material impact on our financial position or results of operations

Other Litigation

Alabanza Class Actions

In October 2007 we pursuant to our integration plans closed the former Alabanza data center in

Baltimore Maryland and moved all equipment to our data center in Andover Massachusetts the Data
Migration In connection with the Data Migration we encountered unforeseen circumstances that led to

extended down-time for certain of our customers

On November 14 2007 Pam Kagan Marketing Inc d/b/a Earthplaza filed complaint in the United
States District Court for the District of Maryland the Court against us and Alabanza seeking class status

for the customers who experienced web-hosting service interruptions as result of the Data Migration the
November Class-Action Litigation The total damages claimed approximate $5.0 million On January
2008 Palmatec LLC NYC Merchandise and Taglogic RFID Ltd filed complaint in the Maryland State

Court Circuit Court for Baltimore against us seeking class status for the direct customers the Direct

Subclass and the entities that purchased hosting services from those direct customers the Non-Privity
Subclass the January Class-Action Litigation The total damages claimed approximate $10.0 million
The January Class-Action Litigation was removed to the Court by us On May 11 2008 the Court issued an
order

consolidating the two cases On August 2008 the plaintiffs in the January Class-Action Litigation

voluntarily withdrew their case without prejudice because of the inadequacy of their class representative On
January 2009 the Disthct Court issued Preliminary Approval Order in Connection with Settlement

Proceedings providing initial approval to proposed class settlement The settlement provides for payment
to each Alabanza customer of four times their respective minimum monthly recurring fee with total

maximum liability of $1.7 million plus attorneys fees and incentive fees After May 2009 hearing the
District Court issued an order

granting final approval of the settlement The insurance company has funded the
escrow account out of which payments will be made under this settlement As of July 31 2009 less than
$0.3 million of the escrow had yet to be disbursed
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La Touraine Inc

On November 26 2007 La Touraine Inc LTI commenced an arbitration against us with the

American Arbitration Association File No 74 494 01377 07 LUCM the Demand The Demand alleged

that Jupiter an entity that we acquired in 2007 breached two agreements
with LTI and fraudulently induced

both of those agreements LTI contended that we were liable for Jupiters alleged misconduct and sought

rescission of those contracts and damages LTI also claimed that we intentionally interfered with the operations

of certain of its websites and caused damage LTIs Demand followed our demand on LII for payment of

money due under the agreements that LII subsequently alleged that Jupiter induced by fraud We then

counterclaimed in the arbitration On June 26 2009 we entered into settlement agreement with LTI and

certain of its affiliates under which we and certain of our affiliates and LII settled all pending litigation

resolved all claims and signed full waiver and release of all claims in each case by and between the parties

Pursuant to the settlement agreement we paid $5.0 million to LII and agreed to pay up to approximately

$730000 minus certain fees that may be recovered from the existing escrow account between the former

stockholders of Jupiter and us

Item Submission of Matters to Vote of Security Holders

None

PART II

Item Market for Registrants Common Equity Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of

Equity Securities

Price Range of Common Stock

Our common stock is currently traded on the NASDAQ Capital Market under the symbol NAVI As of

October 2009 there were approximately 234 holders of record of our common stock The following table

sets forth the high and low sales prices for our common stock as reported on the NASDAQ Capital Market for

the periods indicated

High Low

Fiscal Year Ended July 31 2009

May 2009 through July 31 2009 1.96 $0.37

February 2009 through April 30 2009 0.52 $0.01

November 2008 through January 31 2009 0.88 $0.15

August 2008 through October 31 2008 3.92 $0.50

Fiscal Year Ended July 31 2008

May 2008 through July 31 2008 4.95 $3.08

February 2008 through April 30 2008 4.75 $2.05

November 2007 through January 31 2008 $11.29 $3.53

August 2007 through October 31 2007 $11.24 $6.18

We believe that number of factors may cause the market price of our common stock to fluctuate

significantly See Item 1A Risk Factors

We have never paid cash dividends on our common stock We currently anticipate retaining all available

earnings if any to finance internal growth and product and service development Payment of dividends in the

future will depend upon our earnings financial condition anticipated cash needs and such other factors as the

directors may consider or deem appropriate at the time In addition the terms of our credit agreement with

syndicated group
of lenders restrict the payment of cash dividends on our common stock Further on

September 12 2007 we issued 3125000 shares of Preferred Stock and additional shares of the Preferred

Stock have been and will be issued as in-kind dividends that accrue on the outstanding Preferred Stock The
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holders of the Preferred Stock are entitled to receive dividends prior and in preference to any declaration or

payment of any dividend to common stockholder

We did not repurchase any shares of common stock dunng fiscal
year 2009

Information regarding our equity compensation plans and the securities authorized for issuance thereunder

is set forth in Item 12 below

Recent Issuances of Unregistered Securities

On September 12 2007 we acquired the
outstanding capital stock of netASPx an application-

management service provider for total consideration of $40 million The consideration consisted of

$15 million in cash subject to adjustment based on netASPx cash at the closing date and the issuance of

125 000 shares of the Preferred Stock with fair value of $24 million at the time of issuance The
Preferred Stock accrues payment in kind P1K dividends at 8%

per annum payable quarterly increasing to

10% per annum in September 2008 and 12%
per annum in March 2009

Pursuant to the obligation described above on June 15 and September 15 2009 we issued P1K
dividend of 106 731 47 and 109 933 40 shares respectively in aggregate of the Preferred Stock to their

holders

The shares issued as described in this Item were not registered under the Securities Act We relied on
the exemption from registration provided by Section 42 of the Securities Act as an issuance by us not

involving public offering No underwriters were involved with the issuance of the Preferred Stock

24



Item Selected Financial Data

The following selected consolidated financial data should be read in conjunction with our consolidated

financial statements and related notes and Managements Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition

and Results of Operations included elsewhere in this annual report on Form 10-K Historical results are not

necessarily indicative of results of any future period

Year Ended July 31

2009 2008 2007 2006 2005

In thousands except per share data

Revenue net
$152326 $154507 $125860 $108844 $109731

Revenue related parties
346 372 322 243 132

Total revenue
152672 154879 126182 109087 109863

Cost of revenue
102288 107715 85196 75064 80227

Impairment restructuring and other 209
383

Total cost of revenue 102497 107715 85196 75064 80610

Gross profit
50175 47164 40986 34023 29253

Operating expenses

Selling and marketing
20279 20116 16924 14756 12993

General and administrative 23781 22773 22043 21787 23600

Loss on settlement 5736

Impairment restructuring and other 180 231 1373 2662

Total operating expenses
49976 42889 38736 37916 39255

Income loss from operations
199 4275 2250 3893 10002

Other income expense

Interest income
43 264 337 283 61

Interest expense
14164 12033 12476 9585 7590

Loss on debt extinguishment
1651 15712

Other income expense net
705 2295 864 437 2785

Loss before income tax expense
13217 6850 24737 12758 14746

Income tax expense
1894 1834 1173 1173 1338

Net loss 15111 8684 25910 13931 16084

Accretion of preferred-stock dividends 3350 2656

Net loss attributable to common shareholders 18461 11340 25910 13931 16084

Basic and diluted net loss per common share

Net loss attributable to common stockholders 0.52 0.33 0.85 0.49 0.57

Basic and diluted weighted average
number of

common shares outstanding
35528 34731 30512 28601 28202

Balance-Sheet Data

Working capital deficit
976 2048 10611 9072 $77560

Total assets
$163680 $175713 $116244 $102409 $101177

Long-term obligations
$132280 $133736 97072 70817 5515

Stockholders deficit 35103 18772 13864 1976 2672
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Item Managements Discussion and Analysis of Financwl Condition and Results of Operations

This Annual Report on Form 10-K contains forward-looking statements within the meaning of Section 21E

of the Exchange Act and Section 27A of the Securities Act that involve risks and uncertainties All statements

other than statements of historical information provided herein are forward-looking statements and may
contain information about financial results economic conditions trends and known uncertainties Our actual

results could differ materially from those discussed in the forward-looking statements as result of number

of factors which include those discussed in this section and elsewhere in this report under Item 1A Risk
Factors and the risks discussed in our other filings with the SEC Readers are cautioned not to place undue

reliance on these forward-looking statements which reflect managements analysis judgment belief or

expectation only as of the date hereof We undertake no obligation to publicly revise these forward-looking

statements to reflect events or circumstances that arise after the date hereof

Overview

We provide our services to customers typically pursuant to agreements with term of one to five
years

and monthly payment installments As result these
agreements provide us with base of recurring revenue

Our revenue increases by adding new customers or selling additional services to existing customers Our

overall base of recurring revenue is affected by new customers renewals or terminations of agreements with

existing customers

large portion of the costs to operate our data centers such as rent product development and general

and administrative expenses does not depend strictly on the number of customers or the amount of services

we provide As we add new customers or new services to existing customers we generally incur limited

incremental costs relating to telecommunications utilities hardware and software costs and payroll expenses
We have substantial capacity to add customers to our data centers Our relatively fixed cost base sufficient

capacity for expansion and limited incremental variable costs provide us with the opportunity to grow

profitably However these same fixed costs present us with the risk that we may incur losses if we are unable

to generate sufficient revenue

Our fiscal year ends on July 31 of each year During fiscal year 2008 we completed four acquisitions In

August 2007 we acquired the outstanding capital stock of Jupiter privately held company based in

Santa Clara California that provides managed-hosting services and acquired the assets and assumed certain

liabilities of Alabanza Alabanza was provider of dedicated and shared managed-hosting services In

September 2007 we acquired the outstanding capital stock of netASPx an application-management service

provider and in October 2007 we acquired the assets of iCommerce reseller of dedicated hosting services

All of the acquisitions during fiscal
year 2008 were accounted for using the purchase method of accounting

and as such the results of operations and cash flow related to these acquisitions were included in our

consolidated statement of operations and consolidated statement of cash flOws from their respective dates of

acquisition
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Results of Operations for the Three Years Ended July 31 2009 2008 and 2007

The following table sets forth the percentage relationships of certain items from our consolidated

statements of operations as percentage
of total revenue for the periods

indicated

Year Ended July 31

2009 2008 2007

Revenue net
99.8% 99.8% 99.7%

Revenue related parties

q0

Total revenue
100.0% 100.0% 100.0%

Cost of Revenue
52.0% 56.4% 57.6%

Depreciation and amortization
15.0% 13.1% 9.9%

Restructuring charge
_Q% ii

Total cost of revenue 2I _27 2%
Gross profit

___%

Operating expenses

Selling and marketing
13.3% 13.0% 13.4%

General and administrative
15.6% 14.7% 17.5%

Loss on settlement
3.7%

Impairment restructuring and other 0.1% ft2%

Total operating expenses
211q _1

Income from operations
0.1% 2.8% 1.8%

Other income expense

Interest income
0.0% 0.2% 0.3%

Interest expense
9.3% 7.8% 9.9%

Loss on debt extinguishment
1.1% 12.5%

Other income expense net
0.5% 1.5% 0.7%

Loss before income taxes 8.7% 4.4% 19.6%

Income taxes
1.2% l.2% 0.9%

Net loss
9.9% 5.6% 20.5%

Accretion of preferred stock dividends 2.2% l.7%

Net loss attributable to common shareholders l2.1% 7.3% 20.5%

Comparison of the Years 2009 2008 and 2007

Revenue

We derive our revenue from managed-IT services including hosting co-location and application

services comprised
of variety of service offerings and professional services to both enterprise and mid-

market companies and organizations These entities include mid-sized companies divisions of large multina

tional companies and government agencies

Total revenue for the fiscal year ended July 31 2009 decreased 1.4% to approximately $152.7 million

from approximately $154.9 million for the fiscal year
ended July 31 2008 The overall decline of

approximately $2.2 million in revenue was mainly due to $13.7 million reduction in professional-services

revenues offset by an increase of $10.3 million in revenue from our enterprise-hosting
and -application

services This increase was due to increased sales to new and existing customers offset by reduction of

approximately $3.6 million due to changes in foreign-currency exchange rates In addition fiscal-year-2009

revenues increased $1.2 million as compared to fiscal year 2008 due to increased sales from Americas Job
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Exchange our employment-services website AJE Revenue from related parties decreased 7% during the

year ended July 31 2009 to approximately $346000 from approximately $372000 during the year ended

July 31 2008

Total revenue for the fiscal
year ended July 31 2008 increased 22.7% to approximately $154.9 million

from approximately $126.2 million for the fiscal year ended July 31 2007 The overall growth of

approximately $28.7 million in revenue was mainly due to the addition of revenue from the companies

acquired in August September and October of 2007 Revenue from related parties increased 16% during the

year ended July 31 2008 to approximately $372000 from approximately $322000 during the year ended

July 31 2007

No customer accounted for more than 5% of total revenues in fiscal year 2009 or 2008 One unrelated

customer accounted for 8% of our total revenue in fiscal
year

2007

Cost of Revenue and Gross Profit

Cost of revenue consists primarily of salaries and benefits for operations personnel bandwidth fees and

related Internet-connectivity charges equipment costs and related depreciation and costs to run our data

centers such as rent and utilities

Total cost of revenue of $102.5 million for the fiscal year ended July 31 2009 decreased approximately

$5.2 million or 4.8% from the cost of revenue of approximately $107.7 million for the fiscal year ended

July 31 2008 As percentage of revenue total cost of revenue for the fiscal
year ended July 31 2009

decreased to 67.1% from 69.5% for the fiscal year ended July 31 2008 The overall decrease of approximately

$5.2 million was primarily due to decrease of $7.4 million in employee-related expenses inclusive of

$0.2 million restructuring charge for severance and related costs for our professional-services organization In

addition external consulting expenses related primarily to lower professional-services revenue were lower by

approximately $1.4 million telecommunication and bandwidth cost were lower by $1.3 million amortization

expense decreased by approximately $0.7 million non-billable travel
expense decreased by approximately

$0.5 million and the data-center-migration charge of $0.4 million in fiscal
year 2008 did not reoccur in fiscal

year 2009 These decreases of $11.7 million were partially offset by increased depreciation expense of

approximately $3.3 million increased facility-related expenses including rent and utilities of approximately

$2.6 million and increased third-party pass-through charges and hardware- and software-maintenance and

-licensing costs of approximately $0.6 million

Total cost of revenue of $107.7 million for the fiscal
year ended July 31 2008 increased approximately

$22.5 million or 26.4% from the cost of revenue of approximately $85.2 million for the fiscal year ended

July 31 2007 As percentage of revenue total cost of revenue for the fiscal
year ended July 31 2008

increased to 69.5% from 67.5% for the fiscal year ended July 31 2007 The overall increase of approximately

$22.5 million was primarily due to higher costs necessary to support the increase in revenues of $28.7 million

Incremental costs of revenue consisted of higher salaries and related costs including .stock-based compensation

and travel expenses of approximately $8.5 million increased intangible-asset-amortization expense of

approximately $3.8 million resulting from the acquisitions of Alabanza Jupiter netASPx and iCommerce

during fiscal year 2008 increased depreciation expense of approximately $4.0 million increased facility-

related expenses including rent and utilities of approximately $4.1 million increased telecommunication-

related expenses of approximately $2.1 million increased third-party hardware and software pass-through

charges and hardware- and software-maintenance and -licensing costs of approximately $1.3 million and

one-time data-center-migration charge of $0.4 million These incremental expenses were partially offset by

lower costs of outside consultants and billable
expenses

related to the delivery of professional-services revenue

of approximately $1.7 million during the period

Gross profit of $50.2 million for the fiscal
year ended July 31 2009 increased approximately $3.0 million

or 6.4% from gross profit of approximately $47.2 million for the fiscal year ended July 31 2008 Gross

profit for the fiscal year ended July 31 2009 represented 32.9% of total revenue as compared to 30.5% of

total revenue for the fiscal year ended July 31 2008 Gross-profit percentage was positively impacted during
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fiscal year 2009 as compared to fiscal 2008 primarily
due to our continued focus on cost containments and

the cost reductions in response
to the lower professional-services

revenue noted above

Gross profit of $47.2 million for the fiscal year ended July 31 2008 increased approximately $6.2 million

or 15.1% from gross profit of approximately $41.0 million for the fiscal year
ended July 31 2007 Gross

profit for the fiscal year ended July 31 2008 represented 30.5% of total revenue as compared to 32.5% of

total revenue for the fiscal year
ended July 31 2007 Gross-profit percentage was negatively impacted during

fiscal year 2008 as compared to fiscal year 2007 mainly due to higher intangible-amortization
costs and

higher levels of professional-services business which carries overall lower gross profit

Operating Expenses

Selling and Marketing Selling and marketing expense consists primarily of salaries and related

benefits commissions and marketing expenses
such as advertising product literature trade-show costs and

marketing and direct-mail programs

Selling and marketing expense increased 0.8% to approximately $20.3 million or 13.3% of total revenue

for the fiscal year
ended July 31 2009 from approximately $20.1 million or 13.0% of total revenue for the

fiscal year ended July 31 2008 The increase of approximately $0.2 million resulted primarily from increased

commission and referral-partner expenses of $1.1 million and an increase of $0.1 million related to advertising

expense This increase of $1.2 million was offset by decrease of approximately $0.6 million in salary and

related headcount expenses and decreased travel-related expenses
of $0.4 million

Selling and marketing expense
increased 18.9% to approximately $20.1 million or 13.0% of total revenue

for the fiscal year ended July 31 2008 from approximately $16.9 million or 13.4% of total revenue for the

fiscal year ended July 31 2007 The increase of approximately $3.2 million resulted primarily from increased

salary and headcount-related costs of $3.7 million including stock-based compensation supporting the growth

in total revenue during the fiscal year
ended July 31 2008 and increased lead-referral fees of $0.3 million

These cost increases were partially offset by decreased commission-related expenses of $0.5 million and

decreased sales-related marketing expenses
of $0.3 million

General and Administrative General and administrative expense includes the costs of financial human-

resources IT and administrative personnel professional services bad debt and corporate overhead

General and administrative expense increased 4.4% to approximately $23.8 million for the fiscal year

ended July 31 2009 from approximately $22.8 million for the fiscal year ended July 31 2008 General and

administrative expense increased to 15.6% of total revenue for the fiscal year ended July 31 2009 from

14.7% of total revenue for the fiscal year ended July 31 2008 The increased expense of $1.0 million was

attributable to an increase of approximately $1.4 million in legal fees resulting from an increase in litigation

matters during the year an increase in bad-debt expense of $0.6 million excluding $0.7 million related to the

receivables that were written off in connection with the Loss on settlement noted below an increase of

$0.5 million in facilities-related costs including rent and utilities an increase in bank-related fees of

$0.5 million and an increase in recruiting expense
of $0.2 million The increased expenses of $3.2 million

were offset by lower employee-related costs including stock-based compensation and travel of $1.5 million

lower professional-services fees of $0.4 million and net decrease in depreciation and amortization of

$0.3 million

General and administrative expense increased 3.3% to approximately $22.8 million for the fiscal year

ended July 31 2008 from approximately $22.0 million for the fiscal year
ended July 31 2007 General and

administrative expense
decreased to 14.7% of total revenue for the fiscal year ended July 31 2008 from

17.5% of total revenue for the fiscal year
ended July 31 2007 The total increased expenses

of $0.8 million

were attributable to an increase of $1.1 million in facilities-related costs including rent and utilities increased

consulting and professional services of $1.0 million increased bad-debt expense of $0.5 million and increased

miscellaneous fees including non-income tax expenses
and administrative-service charges of $0.7 million The

increased expenses were offset by lower transaction-related costs of $1.8 million lower salary costs including

stock-based compensation of $0.4 million and net decrease in depreciation and amortization of $0.3 million
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Loss on settlement During fiscal year 2009 we entered into settlement agreement with former

Jupiter customer to settle all pending litigation matters between us We recorded loss on settlement of

$5.7 million comprised of $5.0 million cash settlement payment to this former customer and the write-off of

$0.7 million of outstanding accounts receivable from this former customer which accounts receivable were

written off as part of this settlement

Impairment restructuring and other During fiscal year 2009 we initiated the restructuring of our

professional-services organization in an effort to realign resources As result of this initiative we terminated

several employees resulting in restructuring charge for severance and related costs of $0.4 million of which

approximately $0.2 million was included in operating expenses No impairment restructuring or other charges

were recorded in fiscal year 2008

We recorded net impairment recovery of $0.2 million in fiscal 2007 primarily due to an impairment

recovery of approximately $0.3 million related to revised assumptions due to securing sublease of an

impaired facility during the fiscal
year ended July 31 2007 offset by an approximate $0.1 million impairment

charge related to the abandonment of additional space in our Syracuse New York facility

Interest Income

Interest income decreased $221000 to approximately $43000 for the fiscal
year ended July 31 2009

The decrease is mainly due to lower levels of average cash balances during the
year ended July 31 2009 as

compared to the fiscal
year ended July 31 2008

Interest income decreased 21.7% to approximately $264000 or 0.2% of total revenue for the fiscal year

ended July 31 2008 from approximately $337000 or 0.3% of total revenue for the fiscal
year ended July 31

2007 The decrease of $73000 is mainly due to lower levels of average cash balances during the year ended

July 31 2008 as compared to the fiscal
year ended July 31 2007 as result of our use of cash for

acquisitions during fiscal year 2008

Interest Expense

Interest expense increased 17.7% to approximately $14.2 million or 9.3% of total revenue for the fiscal

year ended July 31 2009 from approximately $12.0 million or 7.8% of total revenue for the fiscal year

ended July 31 2008 The increase of $2.2 million is primarily related to an increased rate of interest and

higher average outstanding debt balances during the fiscal year ended July 31 2009

Interest expense decreased 4.0% to approximately $12.0 million or 7.8% of total revenue for the fiscal

year ended July 31 2008 from approximately $12.5 million or 9.9% of total revenue for the fiscal year

ended July 31 2007 The decrease of $0.5 million is primarily related to lower rate of interest on our

outstanding long-term debt during the fiscal
year ended July 31 2008 The average long-term debt balance

during the fiscal year ended July 31 2008 compared to the fiscal year ended July 31 2007 was higher due to

an increase in the term-loan balance as result of the debt refinancing in June 2007 and the acquisitions

completed in the first quarter of fiscal
year 2008

Loss on Debt Extinguishment

No loss on debt extinguishment was recorded during the fiscal year ended July 31 2009

During the fiscal year ended July 31 2008 we recorded loss on debt extinguishment of $1.7 million in

connection with the September 2007 refinancing of our credit agreement The total amount of the loss on debt

extinguishment consisted of the write-off of unamortized transaction fees and expenses related to the prior

refinancing of our long-term debt in June 2007
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Other Income Expense Net

Other income was approximately $0.7 million for the fiscal year ended July 31 2009 as compared to

other income of approximately $2.3 million for the fiscal year ended July 31 2008 Other income consists of

sublease rental income and other miscellaneous income

Other income was approximately $2.3 million for the fiscal year
ended July 31 2008 as compared to

other income of approximately $0.9 million for the fiscal year ended July 31 2007 Other income consists of

$1.6 million gain attributed to the settlement of the AppliedTheory litigation coupled with $0.7 million for

sublease rental income and other miscellaneous income

Income-Tax Expense

We recorded $1.9 million of deferred income-tax expense
for the fiscal year ended July 31 2009

Deferred income-tax expense of $1.9 million for the fiscal year
ended July 31 2009 was consistent with that

recorded in the fiscal year ended July 31 2008 and $0.7 million more than the amounts recorded for the

fiscal year
ended July 31 2007 No income-tax benefit was recorded for the losses incurred due to valuation

allowance recognized against deferred tax assets The deferred tax expense resulted from tax-goodwill

amortization related to the Surebridge asset acquisition in June 2004 the acquisition of certain AppliedTheory

Corporation assets by CBTM prior to the pooling of interests in December 2002 the asset acquisition of

Alabanza in September 2007 and the asset acquisition of iCommerce in October 2007 Accordingly the

acquired goodwill and intangible assets for these acquisitions are amortizable for tax purposes over 15 years

For financial-statement purposes goodwill is not amortized for any of these acquisitions but is tested for

impairment annually Tax amortization of goodwill results in taxable temporary difference which will not

reverse until the goodwill is impaired or written off The resulting taxable temporary difference may not be

offset by deductible temporary differences currently available such as net-operating-loss carryforwards which

expire within definite period

Liquidity and Capital Resources

As of July 31 2009 our principal sources of liquidity included cash and cash equivalents of $10.5 million

and revolving-credit facility of $10.0 million provided under our credit agreement with lending syndicate

At July 31 2009 we had borrowed $10.0 million under the revolving-credit facility Our current assets

including cash and cash equivalents of $10.5 million were approximately $1.0 million less than our current

liabilities at July 31 2009 as compared to positive working capital of $2.0 million including cash and cash

equivalents of $3.3 million at July 31 2008

Cash and cash equivalents increased approximately $7.3 million for the fiscal year
ended July 31 2009

Our primary sources of cash included approximately $21.6 million in cash provided by operations and

$10.4 million in proceeds from borrowings on notes payable Net cash provided by operating activities of

approximately $21.6 million for the fiscal year ended July 31 2009 resulted from the funding of our net loss

of $15.1 million non-cash charges of $30.6 million and $6.1 million in net changes in operating assets and

liabilities The primary uses of cash for the fiscal year
ended July 31 2009 included $10.6 million to purchase

property plant and equipment $13.1 million paid in respect of notes payable and capital-lease obligations

and $1.2 million of payments for debt-issuance costs At July 31 2009 we had an accumulated deficit of

$519.6 million

Our revolving-credit facility allows for maximum borrowing of $10.0 million and expires in June 2012

Outstanding amounts bear interest at either LIBOR plus 6% or at our option the Base Rate as defined in our

credit agreement plus 5% There is an additional 2% accruing as P1K interest until the leverage ratio has been

lowered to 31 Interest becomes due and is payable quarterly in arrears

We believe that our existing cash and cash equivalents
cash flow from operations and existing amounts

available under our credit facility will be sufficient to meet our anticipated cash needs for at least the next

12 months
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Contractual Obligations and Commercial Commitments

We are obligated under various capital and operating leases for facilities and equipment Future minimum
annual rental commitments under capital and operating leases and other commitments as of July 31 2009 are

as follows

Less than More than

Description Total Year 1-3 Years 3-5 Years Years

In thousands

Short/long-term debt $116757 $10603 2184 $103970

Interest on debta 39936 11456 19792 8688

Capital leasesb 22447 4796 5119 4580 7952

Bandwidth commitments 1592 1535 57

Property leasesbcd 84945 10162 18177 18055 38551

Total $265677 $38552 $45329 $135293 $46503

Interest on debt assumes that LIBOR is fixed at 3.15% and that our leverage ratio drops below 31 as of

January 31 2010 resulting in 2% interest-rate decrease The 2% accruing P1K interest will be paid in

full at the end of the loan term

Future commitments denominated in foreign currency are fixed at the exchange rates as of July 31 2009

Amounts exclude certain common area maintenance and other property charges that are not included

within the lease payment

On February 2005 we entered into an assignment and assumption agreement with Las Vegas-based

company whereby this company purchased from us the right to use 29000 square feet in our Las Vegas
data center and the infrastructure and equipment associated with this space In exchange we received an

initial payment of $600000 and were to receive $55682 per month over two years On May 31 2006 we
received full payment of the remaining unpaid balance This agreement shifts the responsibility for

management of the data center and its employees along with the maintenance of the facilitys infrastruc

ture to this Las Vegas-based company Pursuant to this agreement we have subleased back 2000 square

feet of space allowing us to continue servicing our existing customer base in this market Commitments

related to property leases include an amount related to the 2000-square-foot sublease

Off-Balance-Sheet Financing Arrangements

We do not have any off-balance-sheet financing arrangements other than operating leases which are

recorded in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles

Critical Accounting Policies

We
prepare our consolidated financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally

accepted in the United States In accordance therewith we must make certain estimates judgments and

assumptions that we believe are reasonable based on the information available These estimates and

assumptions affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities at the date of the consolidated financial

statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses for the periods presented The significant

accounting policies that we believe are the most critical to aid in fully understanding and evaluating our

reported financial results are revenue recognition allowance for doubtful accounts impairment of long-lived

assets goodwill and other intangible assets stock-based compensation impairment costs and income taxes

We review our estimates on regular basis and make adjustments based on historical experiences current

conditions and future expectations We perform these reviews regularly and make adjustments in light of

currently available information We believe that these estimates are reasonable but actual results could differ

from these estimates

Revenue Recognition We derive our revenue from monthly fees for website and Internet-application

management and hosting co-location services and professional services Reimbursable expenses charged to
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customers are included in revenue and cost of revenue Revenue is recognized as services are performed in

accordance with all applicable revenue-recognition criteria

Application-management hosting and co-location services are billed and recognized as revenue over the

term of the applicable contract based on actual customer usage These terms generally are one to five years

Installation fees associated with application-management hosting and co-location services are billed when the

installation service is provided and recognized as revenue over the term of the related contract Installation

fees generally consist of fees charged to set up specific technological environment for customer within

NaviSite data center In instances where payment for service is received in advance of performing those

services the related revenue is deferred until the period in which such services are performed The direct and

incremental costs associated with installation and setup activities are capitalized and expensed over the term of

the related contract

Professional-services revenue is recognized on time and materials basis as the services are performed

for time- and materials-type contracts or on percentage-of-completion
method for fixed-price contracts We

estimate the percentage of completion using the ratio of hours incurred on contract to the projected hours

expected to be incurred to complete the contract Estimates to complete contracts are prepared by project

managers and reviewed by management each month When current contract estimates indicate that loss is

probable provision is made for the total anticipated loss in the current period Contract losses are determined

as the amount by which the estimated service costs of the contract exceed the estimated revenue that will be

generated by the contract Historically our estimates have been consistent with actual results Unbilled

accounts receivable represent revenue for services performed that have not been billed Billings in excess of

revenue recognized are recorded as deferred revenue until the applicable revenue-recognition
criteria are met

In accordance with Emerging Issues Task Force EITF Issue No 00-21 Revenue Arrangements with

Multiple Deliverables when more than one element such as professional services installation and hosting

services are contained in single arrangement we allocate revenue between the elements based on

acceptable fair-value-allocation methodologies so long as each element meets the criteria for treatment as

separate unit of accounting An item is considered separate
unit of accounting if it has value to the customer

on stand-alone basis and there is objective and reliable evidence of the fair value of the undelivered items

The fair value of each undelivered element is determined if sold separately by the price charged or if not

sold separately by other acceptable objective evidence We apply judgment to ensure the appropriate

application of EITF 00-21 including with respect to the determination of fair value for multiple deliverables

the determination of whether undelivered elements are essential to the functionality of delivered elements and

the timing of revenue recognition among others For those arrangements with respect to which the deliverables

do not qualify as separate unit of accounting revenue from all deliverables is treated as one accounting unit

and generally recognized ratably over the term of the arrangement

Existing customers are subject to initial and ongoing credit evaluations based on credit reviews that we

perform and subsequent to beginning as customer payment history and other factors including the

customers financial condition and general economic trends If it is determined subsequent to our initial

evaluation at any time during the arrangement that collectability is not reasonably assured revenue is

recognized as cash is received as collectability is not considered probable at the time the services are

performed

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts We perform initial and periodic credit evaluations of our customers

financial conditions We make estimates of the collectability of our accounts receivable and maintain an

allowance for doubtful accounts for potential credit losses We specifically analyze accounts receivable and

consider historical bad debts customer and industry concentrations customer creditworthiness including the

customers financial performance and its business history current economic trends and changes in our

customers payment patterns when evaluating the adequacy of the allowance for doubtful accounts We

specifically reserve for 100% of the balance of customer accounts deemed uncollectible For all other customer

accounts we reserve as needed based upon managements estimates of uncollectible amounts based on

historical bad debt Changes in economic conditions or the financial viability of our customers may result in

additional provisions for doubtful accounts in excess of our current estimate Historically our estimates have
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been consistent with actual results 5% to 10% unfavorable change in our provision requirements would

result in an approximate $0.09 million to $0.2 million decrease to income from operations for the fiscal year
ended July 31 2009

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets and Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets We review our long-lived

assets subject to amortization and depreciation for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances

indicate that the carrying amount of these assets may not be recoverable Long-lived and other intangible

assets include customer lists customer-contract backlog developed technology vendor contracts trademarks

non-compete agreements and property and equipment Factors we consider important that could trigger an

impairment review include

significant underperformance relative to expected historical or projected future operating results

significant changes in the manner of our use of the acquired assets or the strategy of our overall

business

significant negative industry or economic trends

significant declines in our stock price for sustained period and

our market capitalization relative to net book value

Recoverability is measured by comparison of the carrying amount of an asset to the future undiscounted

cash flows expected to be generated by the asset If the uridiscounted cash flows expected to be generated by
the use and disposal of the asset are less than its carrying value and therefore impaired we recognize the

impairment loss as measured by the amount by which the carrying value of the assets exceeds its fair value

Fair value is determined based on discounted cash flows or values determined by reference to third-party

valuation
reports depending on the nature of the asset Assets to be disposed of are valued at the lower of the

carrying amount or their fair value less disposal costs Property and equipment is primarily comprised of

leasehold improvements computer and office equipment and software licenses

We review the valuation of our goodwill in the fourth quarter of each fiscal year or on an interim basis

if it is considered more likely than not that an impairment loss has been incurred Our valuation methodology
for assessing impairment requires us to make judgments and assumptions based on historical experience and to

rely heavily on projections of future operating performance We operate in highly competitive environments

and our projections of future operating results and cash flows may vary significantly from actual results If the

assumption that we use in preparing our estimates of our reporting units projected performance for purposes

of impairment testing differs materially from actual future results we may record impairment changes in the

future and our operating results may be adversely affected We completed our annual impairment review of

goodwill as of July 31 2008 and concluded that goodwill was not impaired No impairment indicators have

arisen since that date to cause us to perform an impairment assessment since that date At July 31 2009 and

2008 the carrying value of goodwill and other intangible assets totaled $88.7 million and $96.0 million

respectively Historically our estimates have been consistent with actual results

Impairment costs We generally record impairments related to underutilized real estate leases Generally

whenever we determine that facility will no longer be utilized or generate any future economic benefit we
record an impairment loss in the period such determination is made As of July 31 2009 our accrued lease-

impairment balance totaled approximately $0.4 million all of which represents amounts that are committed

under remaining contractual obligations These contractual obligations principally represent future obligations

under non-cancelable real estate leases Impairment estimates relating to real estate leases involve the

consideration of number of factors including potential sublet-rental rates the estimated vacancy period for

the property brokerage commissions and certain other costs Estimates relating to potential sublet rates and

expected vacancy periods are most likely to have material impact on our results of operations if actual

amounts differ significantly from estimates These estimates involve judgment and uncertainties and the

settlement of these liabilities could differ materially from recorded amounts As such in the course of making
such estimates we often use third-party real estate professionals to assist us in our assessment of the

marketplace for purposes of estimating sublet rates and vacancy periods Historically our estimates have been
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consistent with actual results 10% to 20% unfavorable settlement of our remaining liabilities for impaired

facilities as compared to our current estimates would decrease our income from operations for the fiscal year

ended July 31 2009 by approximately $0.04 million to $0.09 million

Stock-Based Compensation Statement of Financial Accounting Standards SFAS No 123R

Share-Based Payment requires companies to estimate the fair value of stock-based payment awards on the

date of grant using an option-pricing model The value of the portion of the award that is ultimately expected

to vest is recognized as expense over the requisite service periods in our consolidated statement of operations

SFAS No 123R supersedes our previous accounting under the provisions of SFAS No 123 Accounting for

Stock-Based Compensation As permitted by SFAS No 123 we had measured options granted prior to

August 2005 as compensation cost in accordance with Accounting Principles Board Opinion APB
No 25 Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees and related interpretations Accordingly no accounting

recognition is given to stock options granted at fair market value until they are exercised Upon exercise of the

options net proceeds including tax benefits realized are credited to equity

Stock-based compensation expense recognized during the period is based on the value of the portion of

stock-based payment awards that is ultimately expected to vest during the period reduced for estimated

forfeitures SFAS No 123R requires
forfeitures to be estimated at the time of grant and revised if necessary

in subsequent periods if actual forfeitures differ from those estimates In our pro forma information required

under SFAS No 123 for the periods prior to August 2005 we established estimates for forfeitures Stock-

based compensation expense recognized in our consolidated statements of operations
for the fiscal years ended

July 31 2008 and 2007 included compensation expense for stock-based payment awards granted before but

unvested as of July 31 2005 based on the grant-date fair value estimated in accordance with the pro
forma

provisions of SFAS No 123 and compensation expense for the stock-based payment awards granted
after

July 31 2005 based on the grant-date fair value estimated in accordance with the provisions of

SFAS No 123R

In accordance with SFAS No 123R we use the Black-Scholes option-pricing
model the Black

Scholes Model In utilizing the Black-Scholes Model we are required to make certain estimates in order to

determine the grant-date
fair value of equity awards These estimates can be complex and subjective and

include the expected volatility of our common stock our divided rate risk-free interest rate the expected

term of the equity award and the expected forfeiture rate of the equity award Any changes in these

assumptions may materially affect the estimated fair value of our recorded stock-based compensation

Income Taxes Income taxes are accounted for under the provisions
of SFAS No 109 Accounting for

Income Taxes using the asset-and-liability method whereby deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized

for the estimated future tax consequences
attributable to differences between the financial-statement carrying

amounts of existing assets and liabilities and their respective tax bases Deferred tax assets and liabilities are

measured using enacted tax rates in effect for the year
in which those temporary

differences are expected to be

recovered or settled The effect on deferred tax assets and liabilities of change in tax rates is recognized in

income in the period that includes the enactment date SFAS No 109 also requires that the deferred tax assets

be reduced by valuation allowance if based on the weight of available evidence it is more likely than not

that some or all of the recorded deferred tax assets will not be realized in future periods
This methodology is

subjective and requires significant
estimates and judgments in the determination of the recoverability of

deferred tax assets and in the calculation of certain tax liabilities At July 31 2009 and 2008 respectively

valuation allowance has been recorded against the gross deferred tax asset since we believe that after

considering all the available objective
evidence positive and negative historical and prospective

with

greater weight given to historical evidence it is more likely than not that these assets will not be realized

In each reporting period we evaluate the adequacy of our valuation allowance on our deferred tax assets In

the future if we can demonstrate consistent trend of pre-tax income then at that time we may reduce our

valuation allowance accordingly Our federal and state net-operating-loss carryforwards
at July 31 2009

totaled $187.3 million 5% reduction in our current valuation allowance on these federal and state net
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operating-loss carryforwards would result in an income-tax benefit of approximately $3.8 million for the

reporting period

In addition the calculation of our tax liabilities involves dealing with uncertainties in the application of

complex tax regulations in several tax jurisdictions We are periodically reviewed by domestic and foreign tax

authorities regarding the amount of taxes due These reviews include questions regarding the timing and

amount of deductions and the allocation of income among various tax jurisdictions In evaluating the exposure

associated with various filing positions we record estimated reserves for exposures Based on our evaluation

of current tax positions we believe that we have appropriately accrued for exposures

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In September 2009 the FASBs Emerging Issues Task Force issued EITF 08-1 Revenue Arrangements

with Multiple Deliverables EITF 08-1 addresses how to determine whether an arrangement involving multiple

deliverables contains more than one unit of accounting as well as how the arrangement consideration should

be allocated among the separate units of accounting The new guidance also requires enhanced financial-

statement disclosures We are currently assessing the impact that EITF 08-1 will have on our consolidated

financial statements

In November 2008 the SEC issued for comment proposed roadmap regarding the potential use by
U.S issuers of financial statements prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards

IFRS IFRS is comprehensive series of accounting standards published by the International Accounting
Standards Board IASB Under the proposed roadmap we could be required in fiscal 2015 to prepare

financial statements in accordance with IFRS and the SEC will make determination in 2011 regarding the

mandatory adoption of IFRS We are currently assessing the impact that this change would have on our

consolidated financial statements and we will continue to monitor the development of the potential implemen
tation of IFRS

In June 2009 the FASB issued SFAS No 168 The FASB Accounting Standards CodificationTM and the

Hierarchy of Generally Accepted Accounting Principles Replacement of FASB Statement No 162 SFAS
168 established the FASB Accounting Standards Codification the Codification as the single source of

authoritative nongovernmental U.S GAAP and was launched on July 2009 The Codification does not

change current U.S GAAP but is intended to simplify user access to all authoritative U.S GAAP by providing
all the authoritative literature related to particular topic in one place All existing accounting-standard

documents are to be superseded and all other accounting literature not included in the Codification are to be

considered nonauthoritative The Codification is effective for us for the interim period ending October 31
2009 and it will not have an impact on our financial position or results of operations We are currently

evaluating the impact to our financial-reporting process
of providing Codification references in our public

filings

In April 2008 the FASB issued FSP FAS 142-3 Determination of the Useful Lfe of Intangible Assets

FSP FAS 142-3 amends the factors that should be considered in developing renewal or extension assumptions

used to determine the useful life of recognized intangible asset under FASB Statement No 142 Goodwill

and Other Intangible Assets FSP FAS 142-3 is effective for us beginning in fiscal 2010 We have evaluated

the impact that the adoption of FSP FAS 142-3 will have on our financial position and results of operations

and do not believe that it will have material impact

In March 2008 the FASB issued SFAS No 161 Disclosures about Derivative Instruments and Hedging
Activities an amendment of FASB Statement No 133 SFAS 161 requires enhanced disclosures about an

entitys derivative and hedging activities and thereby improves the transparency of financial reporting

SFAS 161 is effective for fiscal years beginning on or after November 15 2008 We have evaluated the impact

that the adoption of SFAS 161 will have on our financial position or results of operations and do not believe it

will have material impact

In December 2007 the FASB issued SFAS No 160 Non-Controlling Interests in Consolidated Financial

Statements an amendment of ARB No 151 which requires non-controlling interests previously referred to as
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minority interests to be treated as separate component of equity rather than liability as is current practice

SFAS 160 applies to non-controlling interests and transactions with non-controlling-interest
holders in

consolidated financial statements We adopted SFAS 160 beginning February 2009 The adoption of

SFAS 160 did not have material impact on our consolidated financial position or results of operations

In December 2007 the FASB issued SFAS No 141R Business Combinations which requires most

identifiable assets liabilities non-controlling interests and goodwill acquired in business combination to be

recorded at full fair value Under SPAS 141R all business combinations will be accounted for under the

acquisition method Significant changes from current guidance resulting from SFAS 141R include among

others the requirement that contingent assets liabilities and consideration be recorded at estimated fair value

as of the acquisition date with any subsequent changes in fair value charged or credited to earnings Further

acquisition-related costs are to be expensed rather than treated as part of the acquisition SFAS 141R is

effective prospectively to business combinations for which the acquisition date is on or after the beginning of

the first annual reporting period beginning on or after December 15 2008 We will apply the provisions
of

SFAS 141R to any acquisitions after July 31 2009 The impact of this standard if any will not be known

until consummation of business combination under the new standard

Item 7A Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk

We do not enter into financial instruments for trading purposes We have not used derivative financial

instruments or derivative commodity instruments in our investment portfolio nor have we entered into hedging

transactions However under our senior secured credit facility we are required to maintain interest-rate

protection to effectively limit the unadjusted variable component of the interest costs of our facility with

respect to not less than 50% of the principal amount of all Indebtedness as defined at rate that is acceptable

to the lending groups agent Our exposure to market risk associated with risk-sensitive instruments entered

into for purposes
other than trading purposes

is not material We currently have limited foreign operations and

therefore face no material foreign-currency-exchange-rate
risk Our interest-rate risk at July 31 2009 was

limited mainly to LIBOR on our outstanding loan under our senior secured credit facility At July 31 2009

we had no open derivative positions
with respect to our borrowing arrangements Because our loans LIBOR

related rate is fixed above LIBOR hypothetical 100-basis-point increase in LIBOR would have resulted in no

increase in our interest expense under our senior secured credit facility for the fiscal year ended July 31 2009

Item Financial Statements and Supplementary Data

Our consolidated financial statements and schedules and the reports of our independent registered public

accounting firm appear beginning on page F-2 of this report and are incorporated herein by reference

Item Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure

None

Item 9A Controls and Procedures

Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures Based on our evaluation with the participation of

our principal executive and financial officers as of the end of the period covered by this report our principal

executive and financial officers have concluded that our disclosure controls and procedures as defined in

Rules 3a- 15e and 15d- 15e of the Exchange Act are effective to ensure that information that we are

required to disclose in reports that we file or submit under the Exchange Act is recorded processed

summarized and reported within the time periods specified in the SECs rules and forms and that the

information is accumulated and communicated to our management including our principal executive and

financial officers as appropriate to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosure

Changes in Internal Control There was no change in our internal control over financial reporting as

defined in Rule 13a-15f of the Exchange Act during the fourth fiscal quarter that has materially affected or

is reasonably likely to materially affect our internal control over financial reporting
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Managements Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting

Our management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial

reporting as defined in Rules 3a- 151 and 15d- 151 of the Exchange Act Our internal-control system was

designed to provide reasonable assurance to our management and board of directors regarding the preparation

and fair presentation of published financial statements Because of its inherent limitations internal control over

financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements Projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to

future periods are subject to the risks that controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions

and that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate

Our management assessed the effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting as of July 31
2009 In making this assessment we used the criteria set forth by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations

of the Treadway Commission in Internal Control Integrated Framework Having assessed such controls

accordingly we believe that as of July 31 2009 our internal control over financial reporting is effective based

on those criteria

This Annual Report on Form 10-K does not include an attestation report of our independent registered

public accounting firm regarding internal control over financial reporting Managements report was not

subject to attestation by our independent registered public accounting firm pursuant to temporary rules of the

SEC that permit us to provide only managements report in this Annual Report

Item 9B Other Information

None

PART III

Certain information required by Part III of this Form 10-K is omitted because we will file definitive

proxy statement pursuant to Regulation 14A the Proxy Statement not later than 120 days after the end of

the fiscal year covered by this Form 10-K and certain information to be included therein is incorporated

herein by reference

Item 10 Directors Executive Officers and Corporate Governance

Incorporated by reference to the portions of the Proxy Statement entitled Proposal No Election of

Directors Corporate Governance and Board Matters Management Additional Information Section 16a
Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance and Additional Information Audit Committee Financial Expert

During the fourth
quarter of fiscal year 2009 we made no material changes to the procedures by which

our stockholders may recommend nominees to our board of directors as described in our most recent proxy
statement

Code of Ethics We have adopted code of business conduct and ethics that applies to all of our

directors officers and employees including our chief executive officer chief financial officer controller and

other senior financial officers Our code of business conduct and ethics is posted under the Corporate

Governance section of our website www.navisite.com We intend to satisfy the disclosure requirement

regarding any amendment to or waiver of provision of the code of business conduct and ethics applicable

to our chief executive officer chief financial officer controller or other senior financial officers by posting

such information on our website

Item 11 Executive Compensation

Incorporated by reference to the portions of the Proxy Statement entitled Executive Compensation and

Additional Information Compensation Committee Interlocks and Insider Participation
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Item 12 Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Stockholder

Matters

Incorporated by reference to the portion of the Proxy Statement entitled Security Ownership of Certain

Beneficial Owners and Management

Equity Compensation Plan Information as of July 31 2009

The following table sets forth certain information regarding our equity-compensation plans as of July 31

2009

Number of Securities

Available for Future

Number of Securities to Weighted-Average Issuance

be Issued Upon Exercise Exercise Price of Under Equity Compensation
of Outstanding Options Outstanding Options Plans Excluding Securities

Plan Category Warrants and Rights Warrants and Rights Reflected in Columna

Equity-compensation plans

approved by security

holders 6371203 $3.58 1450862

Equity-compensation plans

not approved by security

holders
________ ________

Total 6371203 1450862

Item 13 Certain Relationships and Related Transactions and Director Independence

Incorporated by reference to the portions of the Proxy Statement entitled Additional Information

Certain Relationships and Related Transactions and Corporate Governance and Board Matters

Item 14 Principal Accountant Fees and Services

Incorporated by reference to the portion of the Proxy Statement entitled Additional Information

Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm Fees and Additional Information Policy on Audit

Committee Pre-Approval of Audit and Permissible Non-Audit Services of Independent Registered Public

Accounting Firm

PART IV

Item 15 Exhibits Financial-Statement Schedules

Financial Statements

The financial statements listed in the Index to Consolidated Financial Statements are filed as part of this

report

Financial-Statement Schedule

Financial-Statement Schedule II of NaviSite and the corresponding Report of Independent Registered

Public Accounting Firm on Financial-Statement Schedule are filed as part of this report All other financial

statement schedules have been omitted because they are not required or not applicable or the information is

otherwise included

Exhibits

The exhibits listed in the Exhibit Index immediately preceding such exhibits are filed with or

incorporated by reference in this report
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15d of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 the registrant

has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned thereunto duly authorized

NAVISITE INC

October 27 2009 By Is ARTHUR BECKER

Arthur Becker

Chief Executive Officer

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 this report has been duly signed

below by the following persons on behalf of the registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated

Signatures Title
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Andrew Ruhan
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Arthur Becker

Is JAMES PLUNTZE

James Pluntze

Is JAMES DENNEDY

James Dennedy

Is LARRY Sci-iwwrz

Larry Schwartz

Chairman of the Board

President Chief Executive

Officer and Director

Principal Executive Officer
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Principal Financial Officer and

Principal Accounting Officer

Director

Director

October 27 2009

October 27 2009

October 27 2009

October 27 2009

October 27 2009

/s THOMAS Evs
Thomas Evans

Date

Director October 27 2009
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INDEX TO EXHIBITS

Exhibit No Description of Exhibit

2.1 Asset Purchase Agreement dated as of August 10 2007 by and among NaviSite Inc
Navi Acquisition Corp Alabanza LLC and Hosting Ventures LLC is incorporated herein by

reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Registrants Current Report on Form 8-K filed on August 16 2007

File No 000-27597

2.2 Stock Purchase Agreement dated August 10 2007 by and among NaviSite Inc Jupiter Hosting

Inc and the stockholders of Jupiter Hosting Inc is incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit

10.2 to the Registrants Current Report on Form 8-K filed on August 16 2007 File No 000-

27597

2.3 Agreement and Plan of Merger dated as of September 12 2007 by and among NaviSite Inc
NSite Acquisition Corp netASPx Inc and GTCR Fund VI L.P is incorporated herein by

reference to Exhibit 10.3 to the Registrants Current Report on Form 8-K filed on September 18

2007 File No 000-27597

3.1 Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation is incorporated herein by reference to Exhibits

to the Registrants Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the fiscal quarter ended October 31 1999

File No 000-27597

3.2 Certificate of Amendment of Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation dated as of

January 2003 is incorporated herein by reference to Exhibits to the Registrants Quarterly

Report on Form 10-Q for the fiscal quarter ended January 31 2003 File No 000-27597

3.3 Certificate of Amendment of Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation dated as of

January 2003 is incorporated herein by reference to Exhibits to the Registrants Quarterly

Report on Form 10-Q for the fiscal quarter ended January 31 2003 File No 000-27597

3.4 Certificate of Designation of Rights Preferences Privileges and Restrictions of Series

Convertible Preferred Stock dated as of September 12 2007 is incorporated herein by reference

to Exhibit 3.1 to the Registrants Current Report on Form 8-K filed on September 18 2007

File No 000-27597

3.5 Waiver of Certificate of Designation of Rights Preferences Privileges and Restrictions of Series

Convertible Preferred Stock by netASPx Holdings Inc dated September 25 2007 is incorporated

herein by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to the Registrants Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the fiscal

quarter ended January 31 2008 File No 000-27597

3.6 Amended and Restated By-Laws is incorporated herein by reference to Exhibits to the Registrants

Quarterly Report on Form 0-Q for the fiscal quarter ended October 31 1999 File No 000-27597

4.1 Specimen certificate representing shares of common stock is incorporated herein by reference to

Exhibits to the Registrants Registration Statement on Form S-i/A File No 333-83501

4.2 Specimen Certificate of Series Convertible Preferred Stock of NaviSite Inc is incorporated

herein by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the Registrants Current Report on Form 8-K filed on

September 18 2007 File No 000-27597

10.1 Lease dated as of May 14 1999 by and between 400 River Limited Partnership and the

Registrant is incorporated herein by reference to Exhibits to the Registrants Registration

Statement on Form S-i File No 333-83501

10.2 Amendment No to Lease by and between 400 River Limited Partnership and the Registrant is

incorporated by reference to Exhibits to the Registrants Quarterly Report on Form iO-Q for the

fiscal quarter ended October 31 2003 File No 000-27597

10.3 Amendment No to Lease dated December 2003 by and between 400 River Limited

Partnership and the Registrant is incorporated herein by reference to Exhibits to the Registrants

Registration Statement on Form S-2 filed January 22 2004 File No 333-112087

10.4 Amendment No to Lease by and between 400 River Limited Partnership and the Registrant is

incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 99.1 to the Registrants Current Report on Form 8-K

dated September 21 2004 File No 000-27597

10.5 Amendment No to Lease dated as of August 15 2008 by and between 400 Minuteman LLC and

the Registrant is incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Registrants Quarterly

Report on Form 10-Q for the fiscal quarter ended October 31 2008 File No 000-27597



Exhibit No Description of Exhibit

10.6 Lease made as of April 30 1999 by and between CarrAmerica Realty Corporation and the

Registrant is incorporated herein by reference to Exhibits to the Registrants Registration

Statement on Form S-i File No 333-83501

10.7 First Amendment to Lease dated as of August 2006 by and between the Registrant and

Carr NP Properties L.L.C is incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Registrants

Current Report on Form 8-K dated September 11 2006 File No 000-27597

10.8 Amended and Restated 1998 Equity Incentive Plan is incorporated herein by reference to Exhibits

to the Registrants Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the fiscal quarter ended October 31 1999

File No 000-27597

10.9 NaviSite Inc Amended and Restated 1999 Employee Stock Purchase Plan is incorporated herein

by reference to Appendix Ito the Registrants Definitive Proxy Statement filed November 13

2007 File No 000-27597

10.10 2000 Stock Option Plan is incorporated herein by reference to Exhibits to the Registrants Annual

Report on Form 10-K/A for the fiscal year ended July 31 2002 File No 000-27597

10.11 Employment Agreement dated as of February 21 2003 by and between Arthur Becker and the

Registrant is incorporated herein by reference to Exhibits to the Registrants Quarterly Report on

Form 10-Q for the fiscal quarter ended January 31 2003 File No 000-27597

10.12 Separation Agreement dated as of April 2006 by and between the Registrant and Arthur

Becker is incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 99.1 to the Registrants Current Report on

Form 8-K dated April 2006 File No 000-27597

10.13 Amendment No to Separation Agreement dated as of December 2008 by and between the

Registrant and Arthur Becker is incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the

Registrants Current Report on Form 8-K filed on December 2008 File No 000-27597

10.14 Warrant Purchase Agreement dated as of February 13 2007 by and among the Registrant

SPCP Group LLC and SPCP Group III LLC is incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.1

of the Registrants Current Report on Form 8-K filed on February 20 2007 File No 000-27597

10.15 Warrant to Purchase Common Stock dated February 13 2007 issued by the Registrant to

SPCP Group LLC is incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.2 of the Registrants Current

Report on Form 8-K filed on February 20 2007 File No 000-27597

10.16 Warrant to Purchase Common Stock dated February 13 2007 issued by the Registrant to

SPCP Group III LLC is incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.3 of the Registrants

Current Report on Form 8-K flied on February 20 2007 File No 000-27597

10.17 Amendment No to Warrant dated as of February 13 2007 by and between the Registrant and

SPCP Group LLC is incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.8 to the Registrants Quarterly

Report on Form 10-Q for the fiscal quarter ended January 31 2007 File No 000-27597

10.18 Credit Agreement dated as of June 2007 by and among NaviSite Inc certain of its

subsidiaries Canadian Imperial Bank of Commerce through its New York agency as issuing

bank administrative agent for the Lenders and as collateral agent for the Secured Parties and the

issuing bank CIBC World Markets Corp as sole lead arranger documentation agent and

bookrunner CIT Lending Services Corporation as syndication agent and certain affiliated

entities is incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Registrants Current Report on

Form 8-K dated as of June 13 2007 File No 000-27597

10.19 Security Agreement dated as of June 2007 by and among NaviSite Inc certain of its

subsidiaries and Canadian Imperial Bank of Commerce acting through its New York agency as

collateral agent is incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Registrants Current

Report on Form 8-K dated as of June 13 2007 File No 000-27597

10.20 Form of Term Note to be made by NaviSite Inc is hicorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.3

to the Registrants Current Report on Form 8-K dated as of June 13 2007 File No 000-27597

10.21 Form of Revolving Note to be made by NaviSite Inc is incorporated herein by reference to

Exhibit 10.4 to the Registrants Current Report on Form 8-K dated as of June 13 2007

File No 000-27597
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10.22 Amendment Waiver and Consent Agreement No dated as of August 10 2007 by and among
NaviSite Inc certain of its subsidiaries Canadian Imperial Bank of Commerce through its

New York agency as issuing bank administrative agent for the Lenders and as collateral agent for

the Secured Parties and the issuing bank CIBC World Markets Corp as sole lead arranger
documentation

agent and bookrunner CIT Lending Services Corporation as syndication agent
and certain affiliated entities is incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to the

Registrants Current Report on Form 8K dated as of August 16 2007 File No 000-27597

10.23 Amended and Restated Credit Agreement dated as of September 12 2007 by and among
NaviSite Inc certain of its subsidiaries Canadian Imperial Bank of Commerce through its

New York agency as issuing bank administrative agent for the Lenders and as collateral agent for

the Secured Parties and the issuing bank CIBC World Markets Corp as sole lead arranger
documentation agent and bookrunner CIT Lending Services Corporation as syndication agent
and certain affiliated entities is incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the

Registrants Current Report on Form 8-K dated as of September 18 2007 File No 000-27597

10.24 Term Note dated as of September 12 2007 issued by NaviSite Inc to CIBC Inc is

incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Registrants Current Report on Form 8-K

dated as of September 18 2007 File No 000-27597

10.25 Waiver No dated as of November 2007 by and among NaviSite Inc certain of its

subsidiaries Canadian Imperial Bank of Commerce through its New York agency as issuing

bank administrative agent for the Lenders and as collateral agent for the Secured Parties and the

issuing bank CIBC World Markets Corp as sole lead arranger documentation agent and

bookrunner CIT Lending Services Corporation as syndication agent and certain affiliated

entities is incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Registrants Quarterly Report on

Form 10-Q for the fiscal quarter ended October 31 2007 File No 000-275 97
10.26 Amendment Waiver and Consent Agreement No dated as of January 31 2008 by and among

NaviSite Inc certain of its subsidiaries Canadian Imperial Bank of Commerce through its

New York agency as issuing bank administrative agent for the Lenders and as collateral agent for

the Secured Parties and the issuing bank CIBC World Markets Corp as sole lead arranger
documentation

agent and bookrunner CIT Lending Services Corporation as syndication agent
and certain affiliated entities is incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to the

Registrants Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the fiscal
quarter ended October 31 2007

File No 000-27597

10.27 Amendment and Consent Agreement No dated as of June 20 2008 by and among NaviSite

Inc certain of its subsidiaries Canadian Imperial Bank of Commerce through its New York

agency as issuing bank administrative agent for the Lenders and as collateral agent for the Secured

Parties and the issuing bank CIBC World Markets Corp as sole lead arranger documentation agent

and bookrunner CiT Lending Services Corporation as syndication agent and certain affiliated

entities is incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.5 to the Registrants Quarterly Report on

Form 10-Q for the fiscal quarter ended April 30 2008 File No 000-27597

10.28 Amendment Waiver and Consent Agreement No dated as of October 30 2008 by and among
NaviSite Inc certain of its subsidiaries Canadian Imperial Bank of Commerce through its

New York agency as issuing bank administrative agent for the Lenders and as collateral agent for

the Secured Parties and the issuing bank CIBC World Markets Corp as sole lead
arranger

documentation agent and bookrunner CIT Lending Services Corporation as syndication agent
and certain affiliated entities is incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the

Registrants Current Report on Form 8-K dated as of October 29 2008 File No 000-27597

10.29 Registration Rights Agreement dated as of September 12 2007 by and between NaviSite Inc
and GTCR Fund VI L.P is incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.4 to the Registrants

Current Report on Form 8-K dated September 18 2007 File No 000-27597

10.30 Warrant to Purchase Stock dated January 30 2004 issued by the Registrant to Silicon Valley

Bank is incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to the Registrants Current Report on

Form 8-K dated January 30 2004 File No 000-27597
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10.31 Form of Indemnification Agreement as executed by Messrs Andrew Ruhan Arthur Becker

James Dennedy Lany Schwartz Thomas Evans James Pluntze Brooks Borcherding

Mark Clayman Nasir Cochinwala Monique Comiier Denis Martin Sumeet Sabharwal Rathin Sinha

and Mark Zingale is incorporated by reference to Exhibits to the Registrants Annual Report on

Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended July 31 2003 File No 000-27597

10.32 Lease and Services Agreement by and between NaviSite Europe Limited and Global Switch

London Limited is incorporated by reference to Exhibits to the Registrants Registration

Statement on Form S-2/A filed on March 2004 File No 333-12087

10.33 NaviSite Inc Amended and Restated 2003 Stock Incentive Plan is incorporated herein by

reference to Appendix II to the Registrants Definitive Schedule 14C filed January 2005

File No 000-27597

10.34 Amendment No to the NaviSite Inc Amended and Restated 2003 Stock Incentive Plan is

incorporated herein by reference to Appendix II to the Registrants Definitive Schedule 14C filed

January 2005 File No 000-27597

10.35 Amendment No to the Amended and Restated 2003 Stock Incentive Plan is incorporated herein

by reference to Appendix II to the Registrants Definitive Schedule 14C filed March 14 2006

File No 000-27597

10.3 Form of Amendment No to Restricted Stock Agreement Granted Under Amended and Restated

2003 Stock Incentive Plan is incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Registrants

Quarterly Report on Form 1OQ for the fiscal quarter
ended January 31 2009 File No 000-27597

10.37 Form of Director Restricted Stock Agreement Granted Under Amended and Restated 2003 Stock

Incentive Plan is incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Registrants Quarterly

Report on Form 10-Q for the fiscal quarter ended January 31 2009 File No 000-27597

10.3 Form of Employee Restricted Stock Agreement Granted Under Amended and Restated 2003 Stock

Incentive Plan is incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to the Registrants Quarterly

Report on Form 10-Q for the fiscal quarter ended January 31 2009 File No 000-27597

10.39 Employment Offer Letter dated August 12 2005 between the Registrant and Monique Cormier

is incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.64 to the Registrants Annual Report on

Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended July 31 2005 File No 000-27597

10.40 Separation Agreement dated as of April 2006 by and between the Registrant and Monique

Cormier is incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 99.3 to the Registrants Current Report on

Form 8-K dated April 2006 File No 000-27597

10.41 Separation Agreement dated as of July 31 2007 by and between the Registrant and James

Pluntze is incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 99.1 to the Registrants Current Report on

Form 8-K dated August 2007 File No 000-27597

10.42 Amendment No to Separation Agreement dated as of December 2008 by and between the

Registrant and James Pluntze is incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the

Registrants Current Report on Form 8-K filed on December 2008 File No 000-27597

10.43 NaviSite Inc Amended and Restated Director Compensation Plan is incorporated herein by

reference to Exhibit 99.1 to the Registrants Current Report on Form 8-K dated August 16 2007

File No 000-27597

10.44 2007 Bonus Letter dated October 24 2006 by and between the Registrant and Arthur Becker is

incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.71 to the Registrants Annual Report on Form 10K

for the fiscal year ended July 31 2006 File No 000-275 97

10.45 2007 Bonus Letter dated October 24 2006 by and between the Registrant and Monique Cormier

is incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 1033 to the Registrants Annual Report on

Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended July 31 2006 File No 000-275 97

10.46 Offer of Employment dated as of May 19 2004 by and between the Registrant and Mark

Clayman is incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Registrants Quarterly Report

on Form 10-Q for the fiscal quarter ended April 30 2008 File No 000-27597

10.47 Separation Agreement dated as of April 2006 by and between the Registrant and Mark

Clayman is incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Registrants Quarterly Report

on Form 10-Q for the fiscal quarter ended April 30 2008 File No 000-27597
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10.48 Amendment No to Separation Agreement dated as of December 2008 by and between the

Registrant and Mark Clayman is incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to the

Registrants Current Report on Form 8K filed on December 2008 File No 000-27597

10.49 Offer of Employment dated as of June 17 2005 by and between the Registrant and Nasir

Cochinwala is incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to the Registrants Quarterly

Report on Form l0-Q for the fiscal quarter ended April 30 2008 File No 000-27597

10.50 Separation Agreement dated as of April 2006 by and between the Registrant and Nasir

Cochinwala is incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.4 to the Registrants Quarterly

Report on Form 10-Q for the fiscal quarter ended April 30 2008 File No 000-27597

10.51 Offer Letter dated as of March 27 2009 effective as of April 2009 by and between the

Registrant and Brooks Borcherding is incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the

Registrants Current Report on Form 8-K filed on April 13 2009 File No 000-27597

10.52 Separation Agreement dated as of April 13 2009 by and between the Registrant and Brooks

Borcherding

10.53 Offer Letter dated as of August 28 2009 by and between the Registrant and Mark Zingale

10.54 Separation Agreement dated as of August 31 2009 by and between the Registrant and

Mark Zingale

10.55 Summary of the Registrants FY 2010 Executive Management Bonus Program is incorporated

herein by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Registrants Current Report on Form 8-K filed on

September 23 2009 File No 000-27597

10.56 Offer Letter dated as of June 22 2003 by and between the Registrant and Denis Martin

10.57 Separation Agreement dated as of April 2006 by and between the Registrant and Denis

Martin

10.58 Amendment No to Separation Agreement dated as of December 2008 by and between the

Registrant and Denis Martin

10.59 Offer Letter dated as of September 17 2004 by and between the Registrant and Sumeet

Sabharwal

10.60 Separation Agreement dated as of April 2006 by and between the Registrant and Sumeet

Sabharwal

10.61 Offer Letter dated as of May 2007 by and between the Registrant and Rathin Sinha

10.62 Amended and Restated Separation Agreement dated as of September 2009 by and between the

Registrant and Rathin Sinha
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2002

32.1 Certification of the Chief Executive Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C Section 1350 as Adopted
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

The Board of Directors and Stockholders

NaviSite Inc and Subsidiaries

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of NaviSite Inc and subsidiaries the

Company as of July 31 2009 and 2008 and the related consolidated statements of operations changes in

convertible preferred stock and stockholders deficit and comprehensive loss and cash flows for each of the

years in the three-year period ended July 31 2009 These financial statements are the responsibility of the

Companys management Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on

our audits

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight

Board United States Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable

assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement An audit includes

examining on test basis evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements An

audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management as

well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation We believe that our audits provide reasonable

basis for our opinion

In our opinion the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly in all material

respects the financial position of NaviSite Inc and subsidiaries as of July 31 2009 and 2008 and the results

of their operations and their cash flows for each of the years in the three-year period ended July 31 2009 in

conformity with U.S generally accepted accounting principles

Is KPMG LLP

Boston Massachusetts

October 27 2009
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NAVISITE INC

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

July 31

2009 2008

In thousands except par
value

ASSETS
Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents

Accounts receivable less allowance for doubtful accounts of $1820 and $897 at

July 31 2009 and 2008 respectively

Unbilled accounts receivable

Prepaid expenses and other current assets

Total current assets

Property and equipment net

Intangible assets net of accumulated amortization

Goodwill

Other assets

Restricted cash
_________

Total assets
_________ _________

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS DEFICIT

Series Convertible Preferred stock $0.01 par value designated 5000 shares

issued and outstanding 3664 at July 31 2009 3320 shares at July 31 2008
Commitments and contingencies Note 11
Stockholders deficit

Common stock $0.01 par value Authorized 395000 shares issued and

outstanding 35911 and 35232 at July 31 2009 and 2008 respectively

Accumulated other comprehensive loss income

Additional paid-in capital

Accumulated deficit
________ ________

Total stockholders deficit
_________ _________

Total liabilities and stockholders deficit

10534

16417

1361

6336

34648

32048

22093

66566

6769

1556

163680

Current liabilities

Notes payable current portion

Capital lease obligations current portion

Accounts payable

Accrued expenses

Accrued interest

Accrued lease abandonment costs current portion.

Deferred revenue

Deferred other income and customer deposits

Total current liabilities

Capital lease obligations less current portion

Accrued lease abandonment costs less current portion

Deferred tax liabilities

Other long-term liabilities

Notes payable less current portion

Total liabilities

3261

18927

1711

11369

35268

38141

29290

66683

4446

1885

175713

6100

3166

7033

11070

1367

857

2741
886

33220

14922

428

5597

4939

107850

166956

27529

352

253

485086

504463

18772

175713

10603

3040

5375

9490

1837

332

4285
662

35624

10973

96

7492

7565

106154

167904

30879

359

1024
485136

519574

35103

163680

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements
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NAVISITE INC

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

Revenue net

Revenue related parties

Total revenue

Cost of revenue

Depreciation and amortization

Restructuring charge

Total cost of revenue

Gross profit

Operating expenses

Selling and marketing

General and administrative

Loss on settlement

Impairment restructuring and other net

Total operating expenses

Income from operations

Other income expense
Interest income

Interest expense

Loss on debt extinguishment

Other income net

Loss from operations before income taxes

Income taxes

Net loss

Accretion of preferred stock dividends

Net loss attributable to common stockholders

Basic and diluted net loss per common share

Net loss per common share attributable to common stockholders

Basic and diluted weighted average number of common shares

outstanding

Stock-based compensation expense

Cost of revenue

Selling and marketing

General and administrative

Restructuring charge

Total stock-based compensation expense

Years Ended July 31

2009 2008 2007

In thousands except per share data

209
________ ________

102497
________ ________

50175 _______ _______

20279

23781

5736

180 _______ _______

49976
________ ________

199

43

14164

705 _______ _______

13217
1894 ________ ________

15111
3350

_________ _________

18461
________ ________

0.52 0.33 0.85

35528 34731 30512

1268 1794 1342

557 746 570

1298 1830 1784

19

3142 4370 3696

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements
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$152326

346

152672

79340

22948

$154507

372

154879

87355

20360

107715

47164

20116

22773

42889

4275

264

12033
1651
2295

6850
1834

8684
2656

11340

$125860

322

126182

72634

12562

85196

40986

16924

22043

231

38736

2250

337

12476
15712

864

24737
1173

25910

25910



NAVISITE INC

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN CONVERTIBLE PREFERRED STOCK AND
STOCKHOLDERS DEFICIT AND COMPREHENSIVE LOSS

Balance at July 31 2008

Exercise of conunon stock options and

shares issued under employee stock

purchase plan

Preferred stock dividend

Vesting of restricted stock and stock-based

compensation

Net loss

Currency translation adjustment

Total comprehensive loss

Balance at July 31 2009 3664 $30879

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements
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Common Stock

Shares Amount

28959 $290

1442 14

Accumulated

Other

Comprehensive

Income Loss

203

Additional

Paid-in

Capital

$467400

4034

Stockholders

Accumulated Equity Comprehensive

Deficit Deficit Loss

$469869 1976

4048

Balance at July 31 2006

Exercise of common stock options

Exercise of common stock purchase

warrants

Conversion of note payable

Issuance of common stock purchase

warrants

Stock compensation and amortization of

deferred stock-based compensation

Net loss

Currency translation adjustment

Total comprehensive loss

Balance at July 31 2007

Exercise of common stock options and

shares issued under employee stock

purchase plan

Issuance of
preferred

stock

Preferred stock dividend

Issuance of common stock related to

acquisition

Exercise of common stock purchase

warrants

Vesting of restricted stock and stock-based

compensation

Net loss

Currency translation adjustment

Total comprehensive loss

Preferred Stock

Shares Amount

3125 24873

195 2656

3320 $27529

344 3350

1730 17 17

1375 14 3850 3864

2219 2219

3696 3696

25910 25910

178 178

33506 335 381 481199 495779 13864

664 1947 1954

2656 2656

25 226 226

1000 10 10

37 4370 4370

8684 8684

128 128

35232 $352 253 $485086 $504463 $18772

519 259 264

3350 3350

160 3141 3143

15111 15111

1277 1277

35911 $359 $l024 $485136 $519574 $35103

25910

178

25732

8684

128

8812

15111

1277

16388



NAVISITE INC

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Years Ended July 31

2009 2008 2007

In thousands

Cash flows from operating activities

Net loss $15111 8684 $25910
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash provided by operating

activities

Depreciation and amortization 23638 21223 13684

Mark to market for interest rate cap 73 91 106

Deferred income tax expense 1894 1834 1173

Gain loss on disposal of assets 14 17 11
Gain on settlements 1607
Impairment costs recoveries associated with abandoned leases 231
Amortization of warrants 1907

Non-cash stock compensation 3142 4370 3696
Provision for bad debts 1908 581 36

Loss on debt extinguishment 1651 15712

Changes in operating assets and liabilities net of impact of acquisitions

Accounts receivable 278 500 3215
Due from related parties 30

Unbilled accounts receivable 299 765 490
Prepaid expenses

and other current assets net 5474 7222 608
Other assets 1874 87 1365

Accounts payable 1553 2241 1710
Deferred other income and customer deposits 464 132 653
Other long-term liabilities 3204 936 165
Accrued expenses and deferred revenue 680 7970 2198

Net cash provided by operating activities 21574 5977 6914

Cash flows from investing activities

Purchase of property and equipment 10648 11975 7934
Cash used for acquisitions net of cash acquired 31373
Proceeds from the sale of equipment 32 11

Changes in restricted cash position 45 13535 7986
Net cash used for investing activities 10571 29812 15909

Cash flows from financing activities

Proceeds from exercise of stock options employee stock purchase plan 264 1954 4048
Proceeds from exercise of warrants 10 17

Proceeds from notes payable net 10436 28881 95517

Repayment of notes payable 8997 10114 78074
Debt issuance costs 1184 1509 1541
Payments on capital lease obligations 4091 3827 2631

Net cash usedprovided by financing activities 3572 15395 17336

Effect of exchange rate change on cash and cash equivalents 158
Net increasedecrease in cash and cash equivalents 7273 8440 8341

Cash and cash equivalents beginning of year 3261 11701 3360

Cash and cash equivalents end of year $10534 3261 11701

Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information

Cash paid for interest 11950 11397 7709

Supplemental disclosure of non-cash transactions

Equipment purchased under capital leases 2514 $17652 2668
Conversion of long term debt to common stock 3864
Issuance of Series Convertible Preferred Stock in connection with

netASPx acquisition 24873

Accretion of Preferred Stock 3350 2656

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements



NAVISITE INC

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Description of Business

NaviSite Inc NaviSite the Company we us or our provides IT hosting outsourcing and

professional services Leveraging our set of technologies and subject matter expertise we deliver cost-

effective flexible solutions that provide responsive and predictable levels of service for our customers

businesses Over 1400 companies across variety of industries rely on NaviSite to build implement and

manage their mission-critical systems and applications NaviSite is trusted advisor conmiitted to ensuring the

long-term success of our customers business applications and technology strategies At July 31 2009

NaviSite had 15 state of the-art data centers in the United States and United Kingdom and network

operations center in India Substantially all revenue is generated from customers in the United States

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Basis of Presentation and Background

NaviSite was formed in 1996 within CMGI Inc currently known as ModusLink Global Solutions Inc

ModusLink our former majority stockholder to support the networks and host websites of ModusLink

its subsidiaries and several of its affiliated companies In 1997 we began offering and supplying website

hosting and -management services to companies not affiliated with ModusLink We were incorporated in

Delaware in December 1998 In October 1999 we completed our initial public offering of common stock and

remained majority-owned subsidiary of ModusLink until September 2002 at which time CBT became our

majority stockholder

In August 2007 we acquired the outstanding capital stock of Jupiter Hosting Inc privately held

company based in Santa Clara California that provides managed-hosting services We also acquired the assets

and assumed certain liabilities of Alabanza LLC and Hosting Ventures LLC together Alabanza
Alabanza was provider of dedicated and shared managed hosting services

In September 2007 we acquired the outstanding capital stock of netASPx Inc an application-manage

ment service provider In October 2007 we acquired the assets of iCommerce Inc reseller of dedicated

hosting services

Principles of Consolidation

The accompanying consolidated financial statements include the accounts of NaviSite Inc and our

wholly owned subsidiaries All intercompany accounts and transactions have been eliminated

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles

requires us to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and

disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts

of revenue and expenses during the reported period Actual results could differ from those estimates

Significant estimates that we made include the useful lives of fixed assets and intangible assets the

recoverability of long-lived assets the collectability of receivables the determination and valuation of goodwill

and acquired intangible assets the fair value of preferred stock the determination of revenue and related

revenue reserves the determination of stock-based compensation and the determination of the deferred-tax

valuation allowance

Cash and Cash Equivalents and Restricted Cash

We consider all highly liquid securities with original maturities of three months or less to be cash

equivalents We had restricted cash of $1.8 million and $1.9 million as of July 31 2009 and July 31 2008
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NAVISITE INC

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Continued

including $0.3 million that is classified as short-term in our consolidated balance sheet as of July 31 2009

and included in Prepaid expenses and other current assets

At July 31 2009 and 2008 restricted cash consists of cash-collateral requirements for standby letters of

credit associated with several of our facility leases

Revenue Recognition

Revenue net consists of monthly fees for application-management services managed-hosting solutions

co-location and professional services Reimbursable expenses charged to clients are included in revenue net

and cost of revenue Application management managed-hosting solutions and co-location services are billed

and recognized as revenue over the term of the contract generally one to five years Installation and up-front

fees associated with application management managed-hosting solutions and co-location services are billed at

the time that the installation service is provided and recognized as revenue over the term of the related

contract The direct and incremental costs associated with installation and setup activities are capitalized and

expensed over the term of the related contract Payments received in advance of providing services are

deferred until the period such services are delivered

Revenue from professional services is recognized as services are delivered for time- and materials-type

contracts and using the percentage-of-completion method for fixed-price contracts For fixed-price contracts

progress towards completion is measured by comparison of the total hours incurred on the project to date to

the total estimated hours required upon completion of the project When current contract estimates indicate

that loss is probable provision is made for the total anticipated loss in the current period Contract losses

are determined to be the amount by which the estimated service-delivery costs of the contract exceed the

estimated revenue that will be generated by the contract Unbilled accounts receivable represent revenue for

services performed that have not yet been billed as of the balance-sheet date Billings in excess of revenue

recognized are recorded as deferred revenue until the applicable revenue-recognition criteria are met

In accordance with Emerging Issues Task Force EITF Issue No 00-21 Revenue Arrangements with

Multiple Deliverables when more than one element such as professional services installation and hosting

services are contained in single arrangement we allocate revenue between the elements based on

acceptable-fair-value-allocation methodologies so long as each element meets the criteria for treatment as

separate unit of accounting An item is considered separate unit of accounting if it has value to the customer

on stand-alone basis and there is objective and reliable evidence of the fair value of the undelivered items

The fair value of each undelivered element is determined if sold separately by the price charged or if not

sold separately by other acceptable objective evidence We apply judgment to ensure the appropriate

application of EITF 00-2 including with respect to the determination of fair value for multiple deliverables

the detennination of whether undelivered elements are essential to the functionality of delivered elements and

the timing of revenue recognition among others For those arrangements with respect to which the deliverables

do not qualify as separate unit of accounting revenue from all deliverables is treated as one accounting unit

and generally recognized ratably over the term of the arrangement

CD Allowance for Doubtful Accounts

We perfoim initial and periodic credit evaluations of our customers financial conditions We make

estimates of the collectability of our accounts receivable and maintain an allowance for doubtful accounts for

potential credit losses We specifically analyze accounts receivable and consider historical bad debts customer

and industry concentrations customer creditworthiness including the customers financial performance and its

business history current economic trends and changes in our customers payment patterns when evaluating

the adequacy of the allowance for doubtful accounts We specifically reserve for 100% of the balance of

customer accounts deemed uncollectible For all other customer accounts we reserve as needed based upon

managements estimates of uncollectible amounts based on historical bad debt
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Concentration of Credit Risk

Our financial instruments include cash accounts receivable obligations under capital leases debt

agreements derivative instruments preferred stock accounts payable and accrued expenses As of July 31

2009 and 2008 the carrying cost of these instruments approximated their fair value

Financial instruments that may subject us to concentrations of credit risk consist primarily of accounts

receivable Concentration of credit risk with respect to trade receivables is limited due to our broad and diverse

customer base No customer accounted for more than 5% of total revenues in fiscal years 2009 and 2008 or

5% of the total accounts-receivable balance as of July 31 2009 and 2008 One third-party customer accounted

for 8% of our total revenue for the fiscal year ended July 31 2007 Accounts receivable included

approximately $1.6 million due from this third-party customer at July 31 2007

Comprehensive Income Loss

Comprehensive income loss is defined as the change in equity of business enterprise during the

reporting period from transactions and other events and circumstances from non-owner sources We record the

components of comprehensive income loss primarily foreign-currency-translation adjustments in our

consolidated balance sheets as component of stockholders deficit

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are stated at cost Depreciation is computed using the straight-line method over

the estimated useful lives of the assets generally three to five years Leasehold improvements and assets

acquired under capital leases are amortized using the straight-line method over the shorter of the lease term or

the estimated useful life of the asset Assets acquired under capital leases in which title transfers to us at the

end of the agreement are amortized over the useful life of the asset Expenditures fOr maintenance and repairs

are charged to expense as incurred

Renewals and betterments that materially extend the life of an asset are capitalized and depreciated Upon

disposal of an asset its cost and the related accumulated depreciation are removed from their respective

accounts and any gain or loss reflected within Other income net in our consolidated statements of

operations

Long-Lived Assets Goodwill and Other Intangibles

We follow the provisions of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards SFAS No 144 Account

ing for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets SFAS No 144 requires that long-lived assets and

certain identifiable intangibles be reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances

indicate that the carrying amount of an asset may not be recoverable Recoverability of an asset to be held and

used is measured by comparison of the carrying amount of the asset to the undiscounted future net cash

flows expected to be generated by the asset If such asset is considered to be impaired the impairment to be

recognized is measured by the amount by which the carrying amount of the asset exceeds its fair value Assets

to be disposed of are reported at the lower of the carrying amount or fair value less cost to sell

We review the valuation of goodwill in accordance with SFAS No 142 Goodwill and Other Intangible

Assets Under the provisions of SFAS No 142 goodwill is required to be tested for impairment annually in

lieu of being amortized This testing is done in the fourth fiscal quarter of each year In addition to annual

testing goodwill is required to be tested for impairment on an interim basis if an event or circumstance

indicates that it is more likely than not that an impairment loss has been incurred An impairment loss is

recognized to the extent that the carrying amount of goodwill exceeds its implied fair value Impairment losses

are recognized in operations Our valuation methodology for assessing impairment requires us to make
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judgments and assumptions based on historical experience and projections of future operating performance If

these assumptions differ matenally from future results we may record additional impairment charges in the

future

Adverl Costs

We charge advertising costs to expense in the penod incurred Advertising expense
for the

years
ended

July 31 2009 2008 and 2007 were approximately $0 million $07 million and $04 million respectively

Income Taxes

Income taxes are accounted for using the asset-and-liability method in accordance with SFAS No 109

Accounting for Income Taxes Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the future tax

consequences attributable to differences between the financial-statement carrying amounts of existing assets

and liabilities and their respective tax bases and operating-loss and tax-credit carryforwards Deferred-tax

assets and liabilities are measured using enacted tax rates expected to apply to taxable income if any in the

years
in which those temporary differences are expected to be recovered or settled The effect on deferred-tax

assets and liabilities of change in tax rates is recognized in income in the period in which the rate change is

enacted

On August 2007 we adopted the provisions of FASB Interpretation No 48 Accounting for

Uncertainty in Income Taxes FIN 48 The purpose of FIN 48 is to increase the comparability in financial

reporting of income taxes FIN 48 requires that in order for tax benefit to be recorded in the income

statement the item in question must meet the more-likely-than-not threshold which is met if the benefit has

likelihood of greater than 50% of being sustained upon examination by the taxing authorities The adoption of

FIN 48 did not have material effect on our financial statements No cumulative effect was booked through

beginning retained earnings

As of the adoption date we have determined that we do not have any gross unrecognized tax benefits

We do not expect significant changes in the amounts of unrecognized tax benefits within the next 12 months

Derivative Financial Instruments

Derivative instruments are recorded as either assets or liabilities and measured at fair value Changes in

fair value are recognized currently in earnings within Other income net in our consolidated statements of

operations We utilize interest-rate derivatives to minimize the risk related to rising interest rates on portion

of our floating-rate debt and did not qualify to apply hedge accounting The interest-rate differentials to be

received under such derivatives and the changes in the fair value of the instruments are recognized as

adjustments to Other income net each reporting period The principal objectives of the derivative instruments

are to minimize the risks and reduce the
expenses

associated with financing activities We do not use

derivatives financial instruments for trading purposes

Lease Expense

Lease expense for our real estate leases which generally have escalating lease payments over their terms

is recorded on straight-line basis over the lease term as defined in SFAS No 13 Accounting for Leases

The difference between the expense recorded in our consolidated statements of operations and the amount paid

is recorded as deferred rent and is included in our consolidated balance sheets We had deferred rent of

$4.4 million and $3.1 million as of July 31 2009 and 2008 respectively Included in these amounts are long-

term deferred rent balances of $4.3 million and $2.9 million as of July 31 2009 and 2008 respectively which

amounts are included in the Other long-term liabilities caption in our consolidated balance sheets

F- 10



NAVISITE INC

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Continued

Stock-Based Compensation Plans

In December 2004 the FASB issued SFAS No 123R Share Based Payment an amendment of FASB

Statements Nos 123 and 95 which addresses the accounting for share based payment transactions in which

company receives employee services in exchange for either equity instruments of the company or

ii liabilities that are based on the fair value of the company equity instruments or may be settled

by the issuance of such equity instruments SFAS 123R eliminates the ability to account for share based

compensation transactions using the intrinsic-value method and generally requires that such transactions be

accounted for using fair-value based method and recognized as expense in our consolidated statement of

operations In March 2005 the SEC issued Staff Accounting Bulletin SAB No 107 regarding its

interpretation of SFAS 123R SAB No 107 provides the SEC views regarding interpretations of

SFAS 123R in light of certain SEC rules and regulations and provides guidance related to the valuation of

share based payments for public companies The interpretive guidance is intended to assist companies in

applying the provisions of SFAS 123R and investors and users of financial statements in analyzing the

information provided

Following the guidance in SAB No 107 on August 2005 we adopted SFAS 123R using the

modified prospective method and accordingly we have not restated our consolidated results of operations

from pnor intenm penods and fiscal years SFAS 123R requires us to measure compensation cost for all

share based awards at fair value on the date of grant and to recognize compensation expense over the service

penod dunng which the awards are expected to vest for each separately vesting portion of each award We

generally grant options under its equity plans that vest as to 25% of the onginal number of shares six months

after the grant date and thereafter in equal monthly amounts over the three-year period commencing six

months after the grant date

Upon adoption of SFAS 123R we began recognizing compensation expense associated with awards

granted after August 2005 and the unvested portion of previously granted awards that were outstanding as

of August 2005 in our consolidated statement of operations

Stock Options

The following table sunmiarizes stock based compensation expense related to employee stock options

under SFAS 123R for the fiscal years ended July 31 2009 2008 and 2007 respectively and the allocation

of such expense

Years Ended July 31

2009 2008 2007

In thousands

Cost of revenue $1 052 $1 724 $1 342

Selling and marketing 457 710 570

General and administrative 507 903 784

$2016 $3337 $3696

We included in our 2007 expense $0 million of stock based compensation relating to modification of

stock options held by our former chief financial officer who resigned in January 2007 Pursuant to lock-up

agreement we amended his option agreements to extend the time before which those of his options that had

vested as of his last date of employment could be exerCised from 90 days from his date of termination to

227 days therefrom Modifications to option agreements under SFAS 123R require re-measurement of the

fair value of the option based on comparison of the fair value immediately before and after the modification

and corresponding charge to earnings
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The fair value of each stock-option grant is estimated on the date of grant using the Black-Scholes Model

assuming no expected dividends and the following weighted average assumptions The weighted average risk-

free interest-rate assumption is based on the U.S Treasury rates as of the month of grant The expected

volatility is based on the historical volatility of our stock price over the expected term of the option The

estimate of the expected life of an option is based on its contractual term and past employee-exercise behavior

Years Ended July 31

2009 2008 2007

Risk-free interest rate 1.67% 3.40% 4.62%

Expected volatility 90.91% 82.65% 99.03%

Expected life years 2.72 2.50 3.00

Weighted average fair value of options granted 0.70 3.21 3.19

SFAS 123R requires forfeitures to be estimated at the time of grant and revised if
necessary

in

subsequent periods if actual forfeitures differ from those estimates During the fiscal years ended July 31

2009 2008 and 2007 we estimated that 5% of options granted would be forfeited before the end of the first

vesting tranche Forfeitures after the first vesting tranche are not considered to be material

The following table reflects stock-option activity under our equity-incentive plans for the fiscal year

ended July 31 2009

Weighted

Average

Weighted Remaining

Number Average Contractual Aggregate

of Exercise Term Intrinsic

Shares Price Years Value

Thousands

Options outstanding beginning of year 6722165 $3.94

Granted 867225 $1.33

Exercised 85701 $1.55

Forfeited or Expired 1132486 $4.15

Options outstanding July 31 2009 6371203 $3.58 6.53 $331

Options exercisable July 31 2009 5064249 $3.57 5.98 $68

The aggregate intrinsic value of options exercised during the fiscal
years

ended July 31 2009 2008 and

2007 was approximately $0.1 million $3.0 million and $5.4 million respectively

As of July 31 2009 unrecognized stock-based compensation related to stock options was approximately

$5.0 million This cost is expected to be expensed over weighted average period of 2.18 years

Non-Vested Shares

Non-vested stock is shares of common stock that are subject to restrictions on transfer and risk of

forfeiture until the fulfillment of specified conditions Non-vested stock is expensed ratably over the term of

the restriction period
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The following table summarizes stock-based compensation expense related to non-vested shares under

SFAS 123R for the fiscal
years ended July 31 2009 2008 and 2007 and the allocation of such expense

Years Ended July 31

2009 2008 2007

In thousands

Cost of revenue $129

Selling and marketing 66

General and administrative 773 898

$968 $903

The fair value of non-vested shares is based on the market price of our common stock on the grant date

The total grant-date fair value of non-vested stock that vested during the fiscal
years ended July 31 2009 and

2008 was approximately $0.3 and $0.2 million respectively As of July 31 2009 there was approximately

$2.0 million of total unrecognized compensation expense related to non-vested stock to be recognized over

weighted average period of 4.69 years

Employee Stock Purchase Plan

Under our 1999 Employee Stock Purchase Plan the ESPP employees who elect to participate instruct

the Company to withhold specified amount through payroll deductions during the offering period of six

months On the last business day of each offering period the amount withheld is used to purchase newly

issued shares of our common stock at an exercise price equal to 85% of the lower of the market price on the

first or last business day of the offering period

Stock-compensation expense
for the ESPP is recognized over the offering period Each offering period

consists of six months

The following table summarizes stock-based compensation expense related to the ESPP under

SFAS 123R for the fiscal years ended July 31 2009 2008 and 2007 and the allocation of such expense

Years Ended July 31

2009 2008 2007

In thousands

Cost of revenue 93 67

Selling and marketing 34 34

General and administrative 31 29

$158 $130

We issued 433901 and 66074 shares of common stock in fiscal years ended July 31 2009 and 2008

respectively As of July 31 2009 there was approximately $128000 of unrecognized compensation expense

related to the offering periods in progress at July 31 2009 The expense is to be recognized over period of

five months Although the ESPP existed in fiscal year 2007 there were limited shares available for issuance

Basic and Diluted Net Loss per Common Share

Basic net loss per share is computed by dividing net loss attributable to common shareholders by the

weighted average number of common shares outstanding for the period Diluted net loss per shard is computed

using the weighted average number of common and diluted common-equivalent shares outstanding during the
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period We utilize the treasury-stock method for options warrants and non-vested shares and the if-converted

method for convertible preferred stock and notes unless such amounts are anti-dilutive

The following table sets forth common-stock equivalents that are not included in the calculation of diluted

net loss per share available to common stockholders because to do so would be anti-dilutive for the periods

indicated

Years Ended July 31

2009 2008 2007

Common-stock options 105765 1943861 1984040

Common-stock warrants 1188783 1197992 1428209

Non-vested stock 134222 151604

Senes convertible preferred stock 724 844 356 202

ESPP 28119

Total 5153614 6677778 3412249

Segment Reporting

We currently operate in one reportable segment managed IT services Our chief operating decision-maker

reviews financial information at consolidated level

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In September 2009 the FASB Emerging Issues Task Force issued EITF 08-1 Revenue Arrangements

with Multiple Deliverables EITF 08-1 addresses how to determine whether an arrangement involving

multiple deliverables contains more than one unit of accounting and how the arrangement consideration

should be allocated among the separate units of accounting The new guidance also requires enhanced

financial-statement disclosures We are currently assessing the impact that EITF 08-1 will have on our

consolidated financial statements

In November 2008 the SEC issued for comment proposed roadmap regarding the potential use by

U.S issuers of financial statements prepared in accordance with IFRS IFRS is comprehensive series of

accounting standards published by the IASB Under the proposed roadmap we could be required in fiscal

2015 to prepare financial statements in accordance with IFRS and the SEC will make determination in 2011

regarding the mandatory adoption of IFRS We are currently assessing the impact that this change would have

on our consolidated financial statements and we will continue to monitor the development of the potential

implementation of IFRS

In June 2009 the FASB issued SFAS No 168 The FASB Accounting Standards CodficationTM and the

Hierarchy of Generally Accepted Accounting Principles Replacement of FASB Statement No 162

SFAS 168 established the FASB Accounting Standards Codification the Codification as the single source

of authoritative nongovernmental U.S GAAP and was launched on July 2009 The Codification does not

change current U.S GAAP but is intended to simplify user access to all authoritative U.S GAAP by providing

all the authoritative literature related to particular topic in one place All existing accounting-standard

documents are to be superseded and all accounting literature excluded from the Codification is to be

considered nonauthoritative The Codification is effective for us for the interim period ending October 31

2009 but will not have an impact on our financial position or results of operations We are currently

evaluating the impact on our financial-reporting process of providing Codification references in our public

filings

F-14



NAVISITE INC

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Continued

In April 2008 the FASB issued FSP FAS 142-3 Determination of the Useful Lfe of Intangible Assets
FSP FAS 142-3 amends the factors that should be considered in developing renewal or extension assumptions

used to determine the useful life of recognized intangible asset under FASB Statement No 142 Goodwill

and Other Intangible Assets FSP FAS 142-3 is effective fof us beginning in fiscal 2010 We have evaluated

the impact that the adoption of FSP FAS 142-3 will have on our financial position and results of operations

and do not believe that it will have material impact

In March 2008 the FASB issued SFAS 161 Disclosures about Derivative Instruments and Hedging

Activities an amendment of FASB Statement No 133 SFAS 161 requires enhanced disclosures about an

entitys derivative and hedging activities and thereby improves the transparency of financial reporting

SFAS 161 is effective for fiscal
years beginning on or after November 15 2008 We have evaluated the impact

that the adoption of SFAS 161 will have on our financial position and results of operations and do not believe

that it will have material impact

In December 2007 the FASB issued SFAS No 160 Non-Controlling Interests in Consolidated Financial

Statements an amendment of ARB No 151 which requires non-controlling interests previously referred to as

minority interests to be treated as separate component of equity rather than liability as is current practice

SFAS 160 applies to non-controlling interests and transactions with non-controlling-interest holders in

consolidated financial statements We adopted SFAS 160 beginning February 2009 The adoption of

SFAS 160 did not have material impact on our consolidated financial position or results of operations

In December 2007 the FASB issued SFAS No 141R Business Combinations which requires most

identifiable assets liabilities non-controlling interests and goodwill acquired in business combination to be

recorded at full fair value Under SFAS 141R all business combinations will be accounted for under the

acquisition method Significant changes from current guidance resulting from SFAS 141R include among
others the requirement that contingent assets liabilities and consideration be recorded at estimated fair value

as of the acquisitiOn date with any subsequent changes in fair value charged or credited to earnings Further

acquisition-related costs are to be expensed rather than treated as part of the acquisition SFAS 141R is

effective prospectively to business combinations for which the acquisition date is on or after the beginning of

the first annual reporting period beginning on or after December 15 2008 We will apply the provisions of

SFAS 141R to any acquisitions after July 31 2009 The impact of this standard if any will not be known
until the consummation of business combination under the new standard

Foreign Currency

The functional currencies of our international subsidiaries are the local currencies The financial

statements of the subsidiaries are translated into U.S dollars using period-end exchange rates for assets and

liabilities and average exchange rates during the corresponding period for revenue cost of revenue and

expenses Translation gains and losses are deferred and accumulated as separate component of stockholders

deficit under Accumulated other comprehensive income loss

Subsequent Event

Effective July 2009 we adopted the provisions of the FASB-issued SFAS No 165 Subsequent Events
SFAS 165 establishes general standards of accounting for and disclosure of events that occur after the

balance-sheet date but before financial statements are issued or are available to be issued SFAS 165 requires

the disclosure of the date through which an entity has evaluated subsequent events and the basis for that date

that is whether the date represents the date on which the financial statements were issued or were available to

be issued In accordance with SFAS 165 we have evaluated subsequent events through October 27 2009 the

date of issuance of our consolidated financial statements During the period from August 2009 to

October 27 2009 we did not have any material recognizable subsequent events

F- 15



NAVISITE INC

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Continued

Reclassifications

Certain fiscal-year 2008 and 2007 amounts have been reclassified to conform to the fiscal-year 2009

financial-statement presentation

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets

During the fiscal year ended July 31 2007 we recorded recovery of previously impaired lease

totaling $0.3 million This recovery reflected change in sublease assumptions related to lease impairment

recorded in prior reporting period In the fourth quarter of our fiscal year 2007 we recorded an impairment

charge related to our Syracuse New York facility reflecting abandoned space in that facility The charge

totaled $0.06 million The net impairment recovery of $0.2 million is reported in our consolidated statement of

operations for the fiscal year ending July 31 2007 as component of operating expenses

Impairment charges are recorded in our consolidated statements of operations based upon the nature of

the asset being impaired and the nature of the assets use The impairments that we recorded as separate

component of cost of revenue related to assets that were either being utilized or had at some time been utilized

to generate revenue The detrmination was based on how the assets had historically been expensed either as

lease expense or depreciation or amortization

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment consisted of the following

July 31

2009 2008

In thousands

Office furniture and equipment 4208 4522

Computer equipment 75766 68968

Software licenses 15798 15270

Leasehold improvements 25838 26981

121610 115741

Less Accumulated depreciation and amortization 89562 77600

Property and equipment net 32048 38141

The estimated useful lives of our property and equipment are as follows office furniture and

equipment years computer equipment years software licenses years or the life of the license and

leasehold improvements the lesser of the lease term and the assets estimated useful life

Property and equipment held under capital leases which are classified primarily as computer equipment

and leasehold improvements above was as follows

July 31

2009 2008

In thousands

Computer equipment
20637 15582

Leasehold improvements
12119 14660

Total cost 32756 30242

Accumulated depreciation and amortization 15324 11777

17432 18465
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The estimated useful lives of assets held under capital leases in circumstances in which the lease does not

transfer ownership of the property by the end of the lease term or contains bargain purchase option are

determined in manner consistent with our normal depreciation policy except that the penod of amortization

is the lease term

Intangible Assets

Intangible assets net consisted of the following

July 31 2009

Gross Carrying Accumulated Net Carrying
Amount Amortization Amount

In thousands

Customer lists $39392 $26498 $12894

Customer contract backlog 14600 7619 6981

Developed technology 3140 1506 1634

Vendor contracts 700 637 63

Trademarks 670 220 450

Non-compete agreements 206 135 71

Total $58708 $36615 $22093

July 31 2008

Gross Carrying Accumulated Net Carrying
Amount Amortization Amount

In thousands

Customer lists $39670 $23400 $16270

Customer-contract backlog 14600 4845 9755

Developed technology 3140 966 2174

Vendor contracts 700 314 386

Trademarks 670 105 565

Non-compete agreements 206 66 140

Total $58986 $29696 $29290

Intangible-asset amortization expense for the
years ended July 31 2009 2008 and 2007 aggregated

$7.2 million $7.9 million and $3.9 million respectively During fiscal years 2009 and 2008 we adjusted the

intangible assets and accumulated amortization by $0.3 million and $0.3 million respectively to reflect the

disposal of one of our acquired intangibles in each year Intangible assets are being amortized over estimated

useful lives ranging from two to eight years

Amortization expense related to intangible assets for the next five years is as follows

Year Ending July 31

In thousands

2010 $6068

2011 $5921

2012 $5776

2013 $2307

2014 $1869
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Goodwill

The following table details the carrying amount of goodwill for the fiscal years
ended July 31

2009 2008 2007

In thousands

Goodwill as of August $66683 $43159 $43159

Acquired goodwill 23524

Adjustments to goodwill 117

Goodwill as of July 31 $66566 $66683 $43159

Goodwill acquired during the fiscal year ended July 31 2008 was related to our acquisitions of Jupiter

Alabanza netASPx arid iCommerce Goodwill was adjusted during fiscal year 2009 reflecting the finalization

of purchase-accounting reserves made within one year
of the acquisition date

Discontinued Operations

In August 2007 we launched AJE an employment-services website This site utilizes technology

developed in connection with the provision of services to former customer Upon termination of the use of

the service by our customer AJE was launched as an independent employment-services site utilizing an

advertising-revenue and premium-enhanced-services model In August 2007 we determined that ME is not

core to our business Pursuant to plan developed in August 2007 we were actively seeking to dispose of

AJE and accordingly the results of its operations its assets and liabilities and its cash flows had been

presented as discontinued operations in our condensed consolidated financial statements During the fourth

quarter of fiscal 2009 we determined that it was no longer probable that transaction would be completed

within one year
and therefore have reclassified AJE operations back into continuing operations for both the

most current year
and previously reported periods Revenue for the fiscal years ending July 31 2009 and

2008 was $1532 and $313 respectively

Accrued Expenses

Accrued expenses
consist of the following

July 31

2009 2008

In thousands

Accrued payroll benefits and commissions $4086 4561

Accrued legal
636 229

Accrued accounts payable 2408 3214

Accrued sales use property and miscellaneous taxes 421 599

Accrued other 1939 2467

$9490 $11070
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Debt

Debt consists of the following

July 31 July 31
2009 2008

In thousands

Total debt $116757 $113950

Less current portion term loan revolver and other debt 10603 6100

Long-term term loan $106154 $107850

Senior Secured Credit Facility

In June 2007 we entered into senior secured credit agreement the Credit Agreement with

syndicated lending group The Credit Agreement consisted of six-year single-draw term loan the Term
Loan totaling $90.0 million and five-year $10.0 million revolving-credit facility the Revolver
Proceeds from the Term Loan were used to pay our obligations under the Silver Point Debt which we
describe in subsection below to pay fees and

expenses totaling approximately $1.5 million related to the

closing of the Credit Agreement to provide financing for data-center expansion totaling approximately

$8.7 million and for general corporate purposes Borrowings under the Credit Agreement were guaranteed by
the Company and certain of its subsidiaries

Under the Term Loan we are required to make principal amortization payments during the six-year term

of the loan in amounts totaling $0.9 million per annum paid quarterly on the first day of our fiscal quarters

In June 2013 the balance of the Term Loan becomes due and payable The outstanding principal under the

Credit Agreement is subject to prepayment in the case of an Event of Default as defined in the Credit

Agreement In addition amounts outstanding under the Credit Agreement are subject to mandatory prepayment
in certain cases including among others change in control of the Company the incurrence of new debt and

the issuance of equity of the Company In the case of mandatory prepayment resulting from debt issuance

100% of the proceeds must be used to prepay amounts owed under the Credit Agreement In the case of an

equity offering we are entitled to retain the first $5.0 million raised and must prepay amounts owed under the

Credit Agreement with 100% of any equity-offering proceeds that exceed $5.0 million

Amounts outstanding under the initial Credit Agreement bore interest at either the LIBOR rate plus

3.5% or at our option the Base Rate as defined in the Credit Agreement plus the Federal Funds Effective

Rate plus 0.5% Upon the attainment of Consolidated Leverage Ratio as defined of no greater than 31 the

interest rate under the LIBOR option can decrease to LIBOR plus 3.0% Interest becomes due and is payable

quarterly in arrears The Credit Agreement requires us to maintain interest-rate arrangements to minimize

exposure to interest-rate fluctuations on an aggregate notional principal amount of 50% of amounts borrowed

under the Term Loan

The Credit Agreement requires us to maintain certain financial and non-financial covenants Financial

covenants include minimum fixed-charge-coverage ratio maximum total-leverage ratio and an annual

capital-expenditure limitation At July 31 2007 we had exceeded the maximum allowable annual capital

expenditures under the terms of the Credit Agreement for the fiscal year ended July 31 2007 In September

2007 in connection with an amendment to the Credit Agreement that waived the violation as of July 31 2007
we received an increase in the maximum allowable annual capital expenditures for the fiscal

year ended

July 31 2007 Non-financial covenants include restrictions on our ability to pay dividends to make

investments to sell assets to enter into merger or acquisition transactions to incur indebtedness or liens to

enter into leasing transactions to alter our capital structure and to issue equity In addition under the Credit

Agreement we are allowed to borrow through one or more of our foreign subsidiaries up to $10.0 million to

finance data-center expansion in the United Kingdom
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Proceeds from the Term Loan were used to extinguish all of our outstanding debt with Silver Point

Finance LLC Silver Point At the closing of the Credit Agreement we had $75.5 million outstanding with

Silver Point which amount was paid in full In addition we incurred $3.0 million prepayment penalty which

we paid with the proceeds of the Term Loan At the closing of the Credit Agreement our revolving

commitment with Atlantic see below was also terminated

In August 2007 we entered into Amendment Waiver and Consent Agreement No to the Credit

Agreement the Amendment The Amendment permitted us to use approximately $8.7 million of cash

originally borrowed under the Credit Agreement which amount was restricted for data-center expansion to

partially fund the ücquisition of Jupiter and Alabanza and to issue up to $75.0 million of indebtedness so

long as such indebtedness is unsecured requires no amortization payment and becomes due or payable no

earlier than 180 days after the maturity date of the Credit Agreement in June 2013

In September 2007 we entered into an Amended and Restated Credit Agreement the Amended Credit

Agreement The Amended Credit Agreement provided us with an incremental $20.0 million in term-loan

borrowings and amended the rate of interest to LIBOR plus 4.0% with step-down to LIBOR plus 3.5% upon

attainment of 31 leverage ratio All other terms of the Credit Agreement remained substantially the same

We recorded loss on debt extinguishment of approximately $1.7 million for the six months ended January 31

2008 to reflect this extinguishment of the Credit Agreement in accordance with EITF 96-19 Debtors

Accounting for Modification or Exchange of Debt Instruments

In January 2008 we entered into Amendment Waiver and Consent Agreement No to the Amended

Credit Agreement the January Amendment The January Amendment amended the defimtion of

Permitted UK Datasite Buildout Indebtedness as that term is defined in the Amended Credit Agreement to

total $16.5 million as compared to $10.0 million and requires the reduction of the $16.5 million to no less

than $10.0 million as such indebtedness is repaid as to principal

In June 2008 we entered into Amendment and Consent Agreement No to the Amended Credit

Agreement the June Amendment The June Amendment amended the definition of Permitted UK

Datasite Buildout Indebtedness as that term is defined in the Amended Credit Agreement to total $33 million

as compared to $16 million ii increased to $20 million the maximum amount of contingent obligations

relating to all leases for any period of 12 months and iii increased the rate of interest to either LIBOR

plus 5.0% or the Base Rate as defined in the Amended Credit Agreement plus 4.0%

At July 31 2008 we were not in compliance with our financial covenants of leverage fixed charges and

annual capital expenditures In October 2008 we entered into Amendment Waiver and Consent Agreement

No to the Amended Credit Agreement the October Amendment which waived these violations as of

July 31 2008 In addition the October Amendment increased the rate of interest to either LIBOR plus

6% or the Base Rate as defined in the Amended Credit Agreement plus 5% ii adds 2% accruing P1K

interest until the leverage ratio has been lowered to iii changes the excess cash flow sweep to 75% to be

performed quarterly iv requires certain settlement and asset sale proceeds to be used for debt repayment

modifies certain financial covenants for future periods and vi requires payment to the lenders of 3%

the outstanding term and revolving loans if leverage ratio of us not achieved by January 31 2010 We

were in compliance with the covenants under the Amended Credit Agreement as July 31 2009

At July 31 2009 $116 million was outstanding under the Amended Credit Agreement of which

$10 million was outstanding under the Revolver

In order for us to comply with our credit agreements senior-leverage ratio and fixed-charges covenants

for quarterly periods in 2010 and beyond we will need to achieve some of the following measures

increase our EBITDA ii successfully complete the sale of certain non-core assets e.g certain co-location

data centers or other non-strategic assets portion of the proceeds from which would be used to repay debt

iii execute debt-reduction plan iv refinance our existing debt arrangement and modify one of our
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significant data-center lease agreements If the aforementioned measures are not sufficient to maintain

compliance with our financial covenants we would need to seek waiver or amendment from the syndicated

lending group However there can be no assurance that we could obtain such waiver or amendment in

which case our debt would immediately become due and payable in full an event that would adversely affect

our liquidity and our ability to manage our business We believe that our execution of some combination of

the above measures will be sufficient for us to maintain compliance with our financial covenants throughout

2010

Term Loans and Revolving Credit Facilities

In April 2006 we entered into senior secured term loan and senior secured revolving-credit facility the
Silver Point Debt with Silver Point The term loan consisted of five-year single-draw term lOan in the

aggregate amount of $70 million Proceeds under the term loan were used to repay certain maturing debt to

pay fees expenses totaling approximately $4.9 million related to the closing of the credit facility and to

increase borrowing available for general corporate purposes Borrowings under the term loan were guaranteed

by the Company and all of our subsidiaries During the first 12 months of the loan we were required to make

quarterly interest-only payments to Silver Point Commencing one year after the closing date of the loan we
were scheduled to begin making quarterly principal payments The original maturity date of the Silver Point

term loan was April 11 2011 Silver Point was entitled to prepayment of the outstanding balance under the

term loan if any upon the occurrence of various events including among others if we sell assets and do not

reinvest the proceeds in assets or receive cash proceeds from the incurrence of any indebtedness have excess

cash or close an equity-financing transaction provided that the first $10 million plus 50% of the remaining net

proceeds from an equity financing was not subject to the mandatory-prepayment requirement Generally

prepayments were subject to prepayment premium ranging from 8% to 1% depending on the timing of the

prepayment The unpaid amount of the term loan and accrued interest thereon and all other obligations related

to the Silver Point Debt would become due and payable immediately upon the occurrence and continuation of

any event of default Under the term-loan agreement we complied with various financial and non-financial

covenants The financial covenants included among others minimum
fixed-charge-coverage ratio

maximum
consolidated-leverage ratio minimum consolidated-EBITDA requirement and maximum annual-

capital-expenditure limitation The primary non-financial covenants restricted our ability to pay dividends to

make investments to engage in transactions with affiliates to sell assets to conduct mergers or acquisitions

to incur indebtedness or liens to alter our capital structure and to sell stock

Amounts outstanding under the Silver Point term loan bore interest at either 7% per annum plus the

greater of the Prime Rate and ii the Federal Funds Effective Rate plus 3% or 8% plus LIBOR To the

extent interest payable on the term loan exceeded the LIBOR rate plus 5% in the first year after the draw-

down date or exceeded the LIBOR Rate plus 7% for subsequent years such amounts exceeding the

threshold would have been capitalized added to the outstanding principal amount of the term loan and borne

interest Outstanding amounts under the Silver Point revolving-credit facility bore interest at either 7%

per annum plus the greater of Prime Rate and ii the Federal Funds Effective Rate plus 3% or 8% plus
LIBOR Interest was payable in arrears on the last day of the month for non-LIBOR-rate loans and the last

day of the chosen interest period one two or three months for LIBOR-rate loans In connection with the

Silver Point borrowings we were required to maintain interest-rate
arrangements to minimize exposure to

interest-rate fluctuations on an aggregate notional principal amount of portion of the loan

In connection with the Silver Point borrowing we issued two warrants to purchase an aggregate amount
of 3514933 shares of our common stock at an exercise price of $0.01 per share These warrants were not

exercisable until after 90 days following the closing date of the Silver Point borrowings and will expire on

April 11 2016 The warrants were valued using the Black-Scholes Model and were recorded in our

consolidated balance sheet as discount to the loan amount of $9.1 million at inception and were being

amortized into interest expense over the five-year term of the credit facility
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In February 2007 we entered into Amendment No and Waiver to Credit and Guaranty Agreement the

SP Amendment with Silver Point Under the SP Amendment Silver Point provided to the Company an

additional term loan in the original principal amount of $3762753 the Supplemental Term Loan The

terms of the Supplemental Term Loan were identical to the original terms of the Silver Point Debt Amounts

borrowed under the Supplemental Term Loan were used for working capital and other general corporate

purposes

In February 2007 in connection with the SP Amendment we issued warrants to Silver Point to purchase

an aggregate of 415203 shares of common stock at an exercise price of $0.01 per
share The warrants were

fair-valued using the Black-Scholes Model recorded in our consolidated balance sheet at inception as

discount to the loan amount of $2.2 million and were being amortized as an interest expense over the

five-year term of the credit facility

The fair value of the warrants issued in connection with the issuance of the debt to Silver Point Debt

noted above was determined using the Black-Scholes Model with the following assumptions

Warrant Issue Date

April 2006 February 2007

Expected life in years
10 10

Expected volatility
101.21% 105.96%

Expected dividend rate
0.00% 0.00%

Risk-free interest rate
4.44% 4.58%

The proceeds of the borrowings from Silver Point in April 2006 and February 2007 were allocated to the

debt and the warrants by measuring each components relative fair value The debt agreements were entered

into at market value and as such the difference between the total proceeds received and the fair value of the

warrants represented both the residual and relative fair value of the debt Therefore the debt and equity

components of the arrangement were recorded at their relative fair values

The fair values of $9.1 million and $2.2 million for the warrants issued in April 2006 and February 2007

respectively were recorded as additional paid-in capital and as discounts to the loan amount in our

consolidated balance sheets upon issuance The loan-discount amounts were being amortized into interest

expense over the five-year term of the credit facility

The Silver Point Debt was paid in full in June 2007 as discussed above

Note Payable to Atlantic Investors LLC

In January 2003 we entered into $10.0 million Loan and Security Agreement the Atlantic Loan

with Atlantic related party The Atlantic Loan bore interest rate at 8% per annum In April 2006 we entered

into an Amended and Restated Loan Agreement with Atlantic in connection with and as condition

precedent to the credit facility with Silver Point which agreement amended and restated the existing loan

agreement between us and Atlantic Under the Atlantic amendment and related transaction documents Atlantic

agreed to reduce the availability of the Atlantic Loan to the amount outstanding as of April 2006 of

$3.0 million and approximately $0.7 million of accrued interest ii that this indebtedness is to become an

unsecured obligation of the Company iii to subordinate this indebtedness to amounts we owed Silver Point

and iv to extend the maturity date of the loan to the date that is 90 days after the earlier of April 11

2011 and the date all obligations under the Silver Point Debt have been paid in full

The principal and accrued interest of the Atlantic Loan from time to time became convertible into shares

of our common stock at $2.81 per share the market price of such stock on April 11 2006 90 days following

April 11 2006
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In January 2007 Atlantic converted all of the remaining principal and accrued interest of $3863610 into

1374950 shares of our common stock

Revolving Credit Facility with Atlantic Investors LLC

On April 11 2006 we entered into an unsecured subordinated Revolving Credit Agreement with Atlantic

in connection with and as condition precedent to the Silver Point Debt whereby we established

subordinated revolving-credit facility with Atlantic the Atlantic Facility in an amount not to exceed

$5 million Credit advances under the Atlantic Facility bore interest at either 7% per annum plus the

greater of Prime Rate or ii the Federal Funds Effective Rate plus 3% or 8% plus LIBOR Interest was
at our option to be paid in cash or promissory notes All outstanding amounts under the Atlantic Facility were

to be paid in full by us no later than the date that is 90 days after the earlier of April 11 2011 and the

date all obligations under the Silver Point Debt have been paid in full

The Atlantic Facility was terminated in connection with our debt refinancing in June 2007

Notes Payable to the AppliedTheory Estate

As part of CBTMs acquisition of certain AppliedTheory assets CBTM made and issued two unsecured

promissory notes totaling $6.0 million the Estate Liability due to the AppliedTheory estate in June 2006
The Estate Liability bears interest at 8% per annum which is due and payable annually In July 2006 we
reached agreement with the secured creditors of AppliedTheory to settle certain claims against the estate of

AppliedTheory and repay the outstanding notes including accrued interest for approximately $5.0 million At

July 31 2007 we had approximately $0.5 million in accrued interest related to these notes In June 2008 the

settlement agreement was approved by the bankruptcy court the $5.0 million was released from escrow and

we recognized gain on the settlement of $1.6 million

10 Fair Value Measures and Derivative Instruments

In May 2006 we purchased an interest-rate cap on notional amount of 70% of the then-outstanding

principal of the Silver Point Debt see Note We paid approximately $320000 to lock in maximum
variable interest rate of 6.5% that could be charged on the notional amount during the term of the agreement

In June 2007 upon refinancing of the Silver Point Debt we maintained the interest-rate cap as the Credit

Agreement required minimum notional amount of 50% of the outstanding principal of the Credit Agreement

see Note In October 2007 in connection with the execution of the Amended Credit Agreement in

September 2007 we purchased second interest-rate cap totaling $10.0 million of notional amount as the

Amended Credit Agreement required minimum notional amount of 50% of all Indebtedness as defined in

the Amended Credit Agreement As of July 31 2007 the fair value of the interest-rate cap was approximately

$0.1 million which is included in Other Assets in our consolidated balance sheets The change in fair value

during fiscal year 2007 of approximately $0.1 million was charged to Other income net during the fiscal year

ended July 31 2007

In October 2007 in connection with the execution of the Amended Credit Agreement in September 2007
See Note we purchased second interest-rate cap totaling $10.0 million of notional amount as the

Amended Credit Agreement required that we hedge minimum notional amount of 50% of all Indebtedness

as defined in the Amended Credit Agreement In March and July 2009 we amended the interest-rate cap

previously purchased to increase the notional amount by $3.0 million and $3.0 million respectively to total

of $16.0 million As of July 31 2009 the fair value of these interest-rate derivatives representing notional

amount of approximately $55.8 million at July 31 2009 was approximately $0.1 million which is included in

Other Assets in our consolidated balance sheets The change in fair value during fiscal
year 2009 of

approximately $0.1 million was charged to Other income net during the fiscal year ended July 31 2009
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The Silver Point Debt carried prepayment penalty that was determined to be an embedded derivative

and required to be separately valued from the Silver Point Debt see Note In accordance with SFAS No 133

Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities we calculated the fair value of this embedded

derivative to be approximately $867000 upon the closing of the Silver Point Debt the total of which we

included in our consolidated balance sheets at the time of issuance as discount to the Silver Point Debt with

an offsetting amount included in Other long-term liabilities Major assumptions used to determine the fair

value of the embedded derivative included future value of our common stock and the probability of early

repayment of the Silver Point Debt In accordance with SFAS 133 amortization of the embedded derivative

calculated on straight-line basis was included in interest expense
and reduced the discount to the Silver

Point Debt over the term that the Silver Point Debt was outstanding The value of the embedded derivative

was evaluated quarterly with changes in the value of the embedded derivative recorded as an adjustment to

previously recorded interest expense
and to the discount to the Silver Point Debt with an offsetting adjustment

to Other long-term liabilities Upon execution of the Credit Agreement see Note the unamortized

discount to the debt and the fair value of the embedded derivative were written off and included in Loss on

Debt Extinguishment in our consolidated statement of operations for the fiscal year ended July 31 2007

Fair value of derivative financial instruments Derivative instruments are recorded in the balance sheet

as either assets or liabilities measured at fair value Changes in fair value are recognized currently in earnings

We have utilized interest-rate derivatives to mitigate the risk of rising interest rates on portion of our

floating-rate debt and have not qualified for hedge accounting The interest-rate differentials to be received

under such derivatives are recognized as adjustments to interest expense and the changes in the fair value of

the instruments is recognized over the life of the agreements as Other income expense net The principal

objectives of the derivative instruments are to minimize the risks and reduce the expenses
associated with

financing activities We do not use derivative financial instruments for trading purposes

Effective August 2008 we adopted SFAS 157 Fair Value Measurements which establishes

framework for measuring fair value and requires enhanced disclosures about fair-value measurements

SFAS 157 requires disclosure about how fair value is determined for assets and liabilities and establishes

hierarchy for which these assets and liabilities must be grouped based on significant levels of inputs as

follows

Level quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level quoted prices in active markets for similar assets and liabilities and inputs that are

observable for the asset or liability and

Level unobservable inputs such as discounted-cash-flow models or valuations

The detennination of where assets and liabilities fall within this hierarchy is based upon the lowest level

of input that is significant to the fair-value measurement Our interest-rate derivatives required to be measured

at fair value on recurring basis and where they are classified within the hierarchy as of July 31 2009 are

as follows

Level Level Level Total

Interest-rate derivatives $93000 $93000

$93000 $93000

Interest-rate derivatives The initial fair values of these instruments were determined by our counter

parties and we continue to value these securities based on quotes from our counterparties Our interest-rate

derivative is classified within Level as the valuation inputs are based on quoted prices and market

observable data The change in fair value for the fiscal years ended July 31 2009 and 2008 was loss of

approximately $73000 and $91000 respectively
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Fair value of non-derivative financial instruments Long-term debt is carried at amortized cost

However we are required to estimate the fair value of long-term debt under SFAS 107 Disclosures about

Fair Value of Financial Instruments The fair value of the term loan was determined using current trading

prices obtained from indicative market data on the term debt

summary of the estimated fair value of our financial instruments as of July 31 2009 and 2008 follows

in thousands

2009 2008

Carrying Value Fair Value Carrying Value Fair Value

Term loan short term 546 368 1100 1001

Term loan long term 106154 71654 107850 98144

Total term loan $106700 $72022 $108950 $99145

Revolver 10018 6261 5000 4300

11 Commitments and Contingencies

Leases

Abandoned Leased Facilities During fiscal
year 2003 we abandoned our administrative space on the

second floor of our 400 Minuteman Road Andover Massachusetts leased location We continue to maintain

and operate our data center on the first floor of the building While we remain obligated under the terms of

the lease for the rent and other costs associated with the second floor of the building we ceased to use the

space on January 31 2003 Therefore in accordance with SFAS No 146 Accounting for Costs Associated

with Exit or Disposal Activities we recorded charge to our earnings in fiscal year 2003 of approximately
$5.4 million to recognize the costs of exiting the space The liability is equal to the total amount of rent and
other direct costs for the period of time the second floor of the building was expected to remain unoccupied
plus the present value of the amount by which the rent paid by us to the landlord exceeds any rent paid to us

by tenant under the terms of sublease over the remainder of the initial lease term which is January 2012
During fiscal year 2004 $2.2 million of our future payments to the landlord of our 400 Minuteman Road

facility were transferred into note payable which was paid in full as of July 31 2007

During fiscal year 2004 we abandoned administrative office
spaces in Houston Texas San Jose

California and Syracuse New York While we remain obligated under the terms of these leases for the rent

and other costs associated with these leases we made the decision to cease using these
spaces during fiscal

year
2004 and have no foreseeable plans to occupy them in the future Therefore in accordance with

SFAS No 146 we recorded charge to our earnings in fiscal
year 2004 of approximately $2.7 million to

recognize the costs of exiting these spaces The liability is equal to the total amount of rent and other direct

costs for the period of time the
spaces are expected to remain unoccupied plus the present value of the amount

by which the rent paid by us to the landlord exceeds any rent paid to us by tenant under sublease over the

remainder of the lease terms which expired in October 2008 for Houston Texas November 2006 for San Jose

California and December 2007 for Syracuse New York

We recorded $1.2 million of net lease-impairment charges during fiscal
year 2005 resulting from costs

associated with the abandonment of administrative
space at 10 Maguire Road in Lexington Massachusetts

adjustments relating to lease modifications for our Syracuse New York and Vienna Virginia facilities and

revisions in assumptions associated with other impaired facilities offset by $0.6 million impairment credit to

operating expense resulting from settlement with the landlord of our abandoned property in La Jolla

California

We recorded $1.4 million of net lease-impairment charges during fiscal year 2006 resulting from an

adjustment to lease modification for our Chicago facility and revisions in assumptions associated with other
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impaired facilities offset by $0.2 million impairment credit to operating expense resulting from settlement

with the landlord of our abandoned property in Lexington Massachusetts

We recorded $0.2 million of net lease-impairment recoveries during fiscal year 2007 resulting from an

adjustment to lease modification for our Chicago facility and revisions in assumptions
associated with other

impaired facilities offset by $0.06 million impairment charge to operating expenses resulting from the

abandonment of certain space in our Syracuse New York facility

All impairment-expense amounts recorded are included in the caption Impairment restructuring and

other net in the accompanying consolidated statements of operations

Details of activity in the lease-exit accrual for the year ended July 31 2009 are as follows in

thousands

Purchase

Accounting Payments Less

Lease Abandonment Balance at and Other Accretion of Balance at

Costs for July 31 2008 Expense Adjustments Interest July 31 2009

Andover MA 262 $102 $160

Chicago IL 250 250

Houston TX 113 113

Syracuse NY 21 21

Santa Clara CA 77 77

Herndon VA 56 22 34

Minneapolis MN 506 272 234

1285 $857 $428

Minimum annual rental commitments under operating
leases and other commitments are as of July 31

2009 as follows

Less than
After

Description Total Year Year Year Year Year Year

In thousands

Shortllong-term debt $116757 $10603 1092 1092 $103970

Interest on debta 39936 11456 9945 9847 8688

Capital leasesb 22447 4796 2799 2320 2290 2290 7952

Bandwidth commitments 1592 1535 57

Property leasesbcd 84945 10162 9113 9064 9046 9009 38551

$265677 $38552 $23006 $22323 $123994 $11299 $46503

Interest on debt assumes that LIBOR is fixed at 3.15% and that our leverage
ratio drops below 31 as of

January 31 2010 resulting in 2% interest-rate decrease The 2% accruing P1K interest will be paid in

full at the end of the loan term

Future commitments denominated in foreign currency are fixed at the exchange rates as of July 31 2009

Amounts exclude certain common area maintenance and other property charges that are not included

within the lease payment

On February 2005 we entered into an assignment and assumption agreement with Las Vegas-based

company whereby this company bought our right to use 29000 square feet in our Las Vegas data center

along with the infrastructure and equipment associated with this space In exchange we received an initial

payment of $600000 and were to receive $55682 per
month over two years On May 31 2006 we
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received full payment for the
remaining unpaid balance This agreement shifts the responsibility for

management of the data center and its employees along with the maintenance of the facility infrastruc

ture to this Las Vegas-based company Pursuant to this agreement we have subleased back 000 square
feet of

space allowing us to continue servicing our existing customer base in this market Commitments
related to property leases include an amount related to the 000 square foot sublease

Total bandwidth expense for bandwidth commitments was $4 million $5 million and $4 million for

the fiscal
years ended July 31 2009 2008 and 2007 respectively

Total rent expense for property leases was $13 million $13 million and $11 million for the fiscal

years ended July 31 2009 2008 and 2007
respectively

With respect to the
property lease commitments listed above certain cash amounts are restricted pursuant

to terms of lease agreements with landlords At July 31 2009 restricted cash of approximately $1 million

related to these lease agreements consisted of certificates of deposit and treasury note and are recorded at

cost which approximates fair value

Legal Matters

IPO Securities Litigation

In 2001 lawsuits naming more than 300 issuers and over 50 investment banks were filed in the United

States District Court for the Southern District of New York and assigned to the Honorable Shira Scheindlin

the Court for all pretrial purposes the IPO Securities Litigation Between June 13 2001 and July 10

2001 five purported class action lawsuits seeking monetary damages were filed against us Joel Rosen our
then chief executive officer Kenneth Hale our then chief financial officer Robert Eisenberg our then

president and the underwriters of our initial public offering of October 22 1999 On September 2001 the

Court consolidated the five similar cases and consolidated amended complaint was filed on April 19 2002

the Class Action Litigation against us and Messrs Rosen Hale and Eisenberg collectively the NaviSite

Defendants and against underwriter defendants Robertson Stephens as successor in-interest to BancBoston
BancBoston Morgan as successor in interest to Hambrecht Quist Hambrecht Quist and First

Albany The plaintiffs umformly alleged that all defendants including the NaviSite Defendants violated

Sections 11 and 15 of the Securities Act Sections 10b and 20a of the Exchange Act and Rule lOb-5 by

issuing and selling our common stock in the offering without disclosing to investors that some of the

underwnters including the lead underwriters allegedly had solicited and received undisclosed agreements
from certain investors to purchase aftermarket shares at

pre arranged escalating prices and also to receive

additional commissions or other compensation from those investors The Class Action Litigation seeks

certification of plaintiff class consisting of all persons who acquired shares of our common stock between

October 22 1999 and December 2000 The claims against Messrs Rosen Hale and Eisenberg were
dismissed without prejudice on November 18 2002 in return for their agreement to toll any statute of

limitations applicable to those claims Plaintiffs did not specify the amount of damages they sought in the

Class Action Litigation On October 13 2004 the Court certified class in sub group of cases the Focus
Cases in the IPO Securities Litigation which was vacated on December 2006 by the United States Court

of Appeals for the Second Circuit the Second Circuit The Class-Action Litigation is not one of the Focus

Cases Plaintiffs appellees January 2007 petition with the Second Circuit for rehearing and rehearing en

bane was denied by the Second Circuit on April 2007 Plaintiffs renewed their certification motion in the

Focus Cases on September 27 2007 as to redefined classes pursuant to Fed Civ 23b3 and 23c4
On October 2008 after briefing in connection with the renewed class-certification proceedings was

completed plaintiffs withdrew without prejudice the renewed certification motion in the Focus Cases On
October 10 2008 the Court confirmed plaintiffs request and directed the clerk to close the renewed

certification motion On April 2009 stipulation and agreement of settlement among the plaintiffs issuer

defendants and underwriters was submitted to the Court for preliminary approval the Proposed Global
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Settlement Pursuant to the Proposed Global Settlement all claims against the NaviSite Defendants would

be dismissed with prejudice and our pro rata share of the settlement consideration would be fully funded by

insurance On June 10 2009 the Court issued an opinion and order granting preliminary approval of the

Proposed Global Settlement preliminarily certifying for settlement purposes only the proposed classes and

directing issuance of notice to putative settlement class members On September 10 2009 the Court held

settlement fairness hearing On October 2009 the Court entered an opinion and order granting final

approval to the Proposed Global Settlement and directing the clerk to close each of the more than 300 actions

comprising the IPO Securities Litigation including the Class-Action Litigation Any appeal of the Courts final

approval of the Proposed Global Settlement must be filed within 30 days of the date judgment is entered

The settlement remains subject to numerous conditions including potential appeals and there can be no

assurance that Courts approval of the Proposed Global Settlement will be upheld in all respects if it is

appealed We believe that the allegations against us are without merit and if the litigation continues we intend

to vigorously defend against the plaintiffs claims Due to the inherent uncertainty of litigation and because

the settlement remains subject to numerous conditions and potential appeals we are not able to predict the

possible outcome of the suits and their ultimate effect if any on our business financial condition results of

operations or cash flows

On October 12 2007 purported shareholder of the Company filed complaint for violation of Section 16b

of the Exchange Act which provision prohibits short-swing trading against two of the underwriters of the public

offering at issue in the Class Action Litigation The complaint is pending in the United States District Court for the

Western District of Washington and is captioned Vanessa Sinimonds Bank of America Corp et al An amended

complaint was filed on February 28 2008 Plaintiff seeks the recovery of short-swing profits from the underwriters on

behalf of the Company which is named only as nominal defendant and from which no recovery is sought Similar

complaints have been filed against the underwriters of the public offerings of approximately 55 other issuers also

involved in the IPO Securities Litigation joint status conference was held on April 28 2008 at which the Court

stayed discovery and ordered the parties to file motions to dismiss by July 25 2008 On July 25 2008 we joined 29

other noniinal defendant issuers and filed joint motion to dismiss the amended complaint On the same date the

underwriter defendants also filed joint motion to dismiss On September 2008 plaintiff filed her oppositions to

the motions The replies in support of the motions to dismiss were ified on October 23 2008 Oral arguments on all

motions to dismiss were held on January 16 2009 at which time the Court took the pending motions to dismiss

under advisement On March 12 2009 the Court entered an order granting the motions to dismiss ified by the issuer

defendants and the underwriter defendants Specifically the Court granted the issuer defendants joint motion to

dismiss dismissing the complaint without prejudice on the grounds that the plaintiff had failed to make an adequate

demand on us prior to filing her complaint In its order the Court stated that it would not permit the plaintiff to

amend her demand letters while pursuing her claims in the litigation Because the Court dismissed the case on the

grounds that it lacked subject-matter jurisdiction it did not specifically reach the issue of whether the plaintiffs

claims were barred by the applicable statute of limitations However the Court also granted the underwriter

defendants joint motion to dismiss with respect to cases involving non-moving issuers holding that the cases were

barred by the applicable statute of limitations because the issuers shareholders had notice of the potential claims

more than five years prior to filing suit

The plaintiff filed notice of appeal with the Ninth Circuit Court of Appeals on April 10 2009 The

underwriter defendants filed cross-appeal in each of the cases wherein the issuers moved for dismissal

including the appeal relating to our IPO and the claims against them were dismissed without prejudice The

parties
moved to consolidate the 54 cases for purposes

of appeal which the Ninth Circuit granted The

plaintiffs opening brief on appeal was filed on August 26 2009 The issuers including us and the

underwriters responses were filed on October 2009 The plaintiff may file reply brief by November

2009 and the underwriters may file reply brief on their cross-appeal by November 17 2009 We do not

expect that this claim will have material impact on our financial position or results of operations
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Other litigation

Alabanza Class Actions

In October 2007 we pursuant to our integration plans closed the former Alabanza data center in

Baltimore Maryland and moved all equipment to our data center in Andover Massachusetts the Data

Migration In connection with the Data Migration we encountered unforeseen circumstances that led to

extended downtime for certain of our customers

On November 14 2007 Pam Kagan Marketing Inc d/b/a Earthplaza filed complaint in the

United States District Court for the District of Maryland the Court against us and Alabanza seeking

class status for the customers who experienced web-hosting service interruptions as result of the Data

Migration the November Class-Action Litigation The total damages claimed approximate $5.0 million

On January 2008 Palmatec LLC NYC Merchandise and Taglogic RFID Ltd filed complaint in the

Maryland State Court Circuit Court for Baltimore against us seeking class status for the direct customers

the Direct Subclass and the entities that purchased hosting services from those direct customers the

Non-Privity Subclass the January Class-Action Litigation The total damages claimed approximate

$10.0 million The January Class-Action Litigation was removed to the Court by us On May 11 2008 the

Court issued an order consolidating the two cases On August 2008 the plaintiffs in the January

Class-Action Litigation voluntarily withdrew their case without prejudice because of the inadequacy of their

class representative On January 2009 the District Court issued Preliminary Approval Order in Connection

with Settlement Proceedings providing initial approval to proposed class settlement The settlement provides

for payment to each Alabanza customer of four times their respective minimum monthly recurring fee with

total maximum liability of $1.7 million plus attorneys fees and incentive fees After May 2009 hearing

the District Court issued an order granting final approval of the settlement The insurance company has funded

the escrow account out of which payments will be made under this settlement As of July 31 2009 less than

$0.3 million of the escrow had yet to be disbursed

La Touraine Inc

On November 26 2007 La Touraine Inc LTI commenced an arbitration against us with the

American Arbitration Association File No 74 494 01377 07 LUCM the Demand The Demand alleged

that Jupiter Hosting Inc Jupiter an entity that we acquired in 2007 breached two agreements with LTI

and fraudulently induced both of those agreements LTI contended that we were liable for Jupiters alleged

misconduct and sought rescission of those contracts and damages LTI also claimed that we intentionally

interfered with the operations of certain LTI websites causing damages LTIs Demand followed our demand

on LTI for payment of money due under the agreements that LTI then alleged Jupiter induced by fraud We

then counterclaimed in the arbitration On June 26 2009 we entered into settlement agreement with LTI and

certain of its affiliates under which we and certain of our affiliates and LTI settled all pending litigation

resolved all claims and signed full waiver and release of all claims in each case by and between the parties

Under the settlement agreement we paid $5.0 million to LTI and agreed to pay up to approximately $730000

minus certain fees that may be recovered from the existing escrow account between the former stockholders

of Jupiter and us
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Computed expected tax expense benefit

State taxes net of federal income tax benefit

Losses not benefited

Total

Deferred tax assets

Accruals and reserves

Loss carryforwards

Depreciation and amortization

Total deferred tax assets

Less Valuation allowance

Deferred tax liabilities

Amortization of tax goodwill

Net deferred assets/liabilities

12960

73116

12021

98097

98097

The valuation allowance increased by $2.6 million and $10.2 million for the years ended July 31 2009

and 2008 respectively

We have recorded full valuation allowance against our deferred tax assets since we believe that after

considering all the available objective evidence-both positive and negative historical and prospective with

greater weight given to historical evidence-it is not more likely than not that these assets will be realized

We may have experienced change in ownership as defined in Section 382 of the Internal Revenue Code

during calendar year 2008 An analysis is currently ongoing to determine if an ownership change did take

place An ownership change could severely restrict the use of our net operating losses going forward As

result of previous change in ownership that occurred in September 2002 the utilization of our federal and

NAVISITE INC

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Continued

12 Income Taxes

Total income tax expense benefit for the years ending July 31 2009 2008 and 2007 consisted of the

following

Federal

Foreign

July 31 2009 July 31 2008

Current Deferred Total Current Deferred

In thousands

$1445 $1445 $1461

78
State

$1894

July 31 2007

Total Current Deferred Total

$1461 868 868

449

$1894

451

$1834

78
451

$1834

305

$1173

The actual tax expense for the years ending July 31 2009 2008 and 2007 differs from the expected tax

expense
for the three years as follows

305

1173

july 31 2009 July 31 2008 July 31 2007

In thousands

$4494 $2087 $841

296 298 201

6092 3623 9383

1894 1834 1173

Temporary differences between the financial statement carrying and tax bases of assets and liabilities that

give rise to significant portions of deferred tax assets liabilities are comprised of the foilowing

July 31 2009 July 31 2008

In thousands

12407

71259

11818

95484

95484

5597

55977492
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state tax net operating losses generated prior to this 2002 change is subject to an annual limitation of

approximately $1.2 million not including any further resthctions that may apply based on potential

ownership change in 2008 We expect that as result of this limitation substantial portion of our federal

and state net operating loss carryforwards will expire unused

We have net operating loss carryforwards for federal and state tax purposes of approximately $187.3 million

after taking into consideration net operating losses expected to expire unused due to the 2002 Section 382
limitation for ownership changes The federal net operating loss canyforwards will expire from fiscal

year 2015
to fiscal

year 2029 and the state net operating loss cariyforwards will expire from fiscal year 2012 to fiscal year
2029 The utilization of these net operating loss carryforwards may be further limited if we experience additional

ownership changes as defined in Section 382 of the Internal Revenue Code in calendar year 2008 as described

above or in future
years We have foreign net operating loss carryforwards of $4.7 million that may be carried

forward indefinitely

As of July 31 2009 we have not provided for U.S deferred income taxes on the undistributed earnings
of approximately $1.9 million for our non-U.S subsidiaries since these earnings are to be reinvested

indefinitely It is not practicable to determine the taxes on such undistributed earnings

Our subsidiary in India benefits from certain tax incentives provided to software and technology firms

under Indian tax laws These incentives presently include an exemption from payment of Indian corporate
income taxes for period of ten consecutive years of operation of software development facilities designated
as Software Technology Parks This exemption will expire by 2011

We currently file income tax returns in the US and the UK which are subject to audit by federal state

and international tax authorities These audits can involve complex matters that may require an extended

period of time for resolution We remain subject to US federal and state income tax examinations for the tax

years 1999 through 2008 and to UK income tax examinations for the tax year 2008 One state income tax

examination was concluded in 2009 This state audit resulted in no income tax due

13 Stockholders Equity

Issuance of Common Stock

In April 2006 we entered into senior secured term loan and senior secured revolving-credit facility with

Silver Point to repay certain maturing debt and increase borrowing available for corporate purposes In

connection with this facility we issued two warrants to purchase an aggregate of 3514933 shares of our

common stock at an exercise price of $0.01 per share The warrants will expire in April 2016 The warrants

were valued using the Black-Scholes Model and recorded in our consolidated balance sheet as discount to

the loan amount based on determined fair value of $9.1 million In February 2007 in connection with the

Supplemental Term Loan we issued warrants to purchase an aggregate of 415203 shares of our common
stock at an exercise price of $0.01 per

share The warrants will expire in February 2017 The warrants were
valued using the Black-Scholes Model and recorded in our consolidated balance sheet as discount to the loan

amount based on determined fair value of $2.2 million During the
years ended July 31 2008 and 2007

Silver Point exercised 999500 and 1730505 warrants respectively to purchase shares of our common stock

At July 31 2009 the remaining outstanding warrants were 1200131

The value of all warrants was being amortized into interest expense using the effective-interest method

over the five-year term of the credit facility For the years ended July 31 2007 and 2006 respectively we
amortized $1.9 million and $0.6 million into interest

expense associated with these warrants
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In June 2007 the remaining unamortized value of the warrants was charged to income in connection with

our execution of the Credit Agreement and included in Loss on Debt Extinguishment in our consolidated

statement of operations for the fiscal year
ended July 31 2007

In January 2007 Atlantic converted all the remaining principal and accrued interest of $3863610 on the

Atlantic Loan into 1374950 shares of our common stock

Redeemable Preferred Stock

In connection with the acquisition of netASPx we issued 3125000 shares of the Preferred Stock The

Preferred Stock was initially recorded at its fair value at the date of issue of $24.9 million The Preferred

Stock accrues P1K dividends at 8% per annum increasing to 10% per annum in September 2008 and 12%

per annum in March 2009 During the 12 months ending July 31 2009 and 2008 we issued 344560 and

194887 shares of Preferred Stock dividends respectively The Preferred Stock is convertible into our common

stock at the option of the holder at $8.00 per share adjusted for stock splits dividends and other similar

adjustments The Preferred Stock carries customary liquidation preferences providing it preference to common

shareholders in the event of liquidation subject to certain limitations as defined We can redeem the

Preferred Stock at any time at $8.00 per share plus accrued but unpaid P1K dividends thereon On or after

August 2013 the Preferred Stock is redeemable at the option of the holders at the then-applicable redemption

price For matters that require stockholder approval the holders of the Preferred Stock are entitled to vote as

one class together with the holders of common stock on an as-converted basis

14 Stock-Option Plans and Non-Vested Stock Awards

NaviSite 1998 Equity Incentive Plan

In December 1998 our board of directors and stockholders approved the 1998 Equity Incentive Plan as

amended the 1998 Plan Under the 1998 Plan nonqualified stock options or incentive stock options may

be granted to our or our affiliates employees directors and consultants as defined up to maximum number

of shares of our common stock not to exceed 1000000 shares Our board of directors administers this plan

selects the individuals who are eligible to be granted options under the 1998 Plan and determines the number

of shares and exercise price of each option The chief executive officer upon authority granted by the board of

directors is authorized to approve the grant of options to purchase common stock under the 1998 Plan to

certain persons Options are granted at fair market value The majority of the outstanding options under the

1998 Plan had ten-year
maximum term and vested over one-year period with 50% vesting on the date of

the grant and the remaining 50% vesting monthly over the following 12 months On December 2003 our

stockholders approved the 2003 Stock Incentive Plan and no additional options will be granted under the 1998

Plan
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The following table reflects activity and historical exercise prices of stock options under our 1998 Plan

for the three years ended July 31 2009 2008 and 2007 respectively

2009 2008 2007

Weighted Weighted Weighted
Number Average Number Average Number Average

of Exercise of Exercise of Exercise

Shares Price Shares Price Shares Price

Options outstanding beginning of year 120000 $2.55 120066 $2.55 134998 $2.69

Granted

Exercised 13670 $3.83

Cancelled ______ 66 $3.30 1262 $3.88

Options outstanding end of year 120000 $2.55 120000 $2.55 120066 $2.55

Options exercisable end of year 120000 $2.55 120000 $2.55 120066 $2.55

Options available for grant end of year

Options Outstanding Options Exercisable

Weighted

Average Weighted Weighted

Remaining Average Average
Number Contractual Exercise Number Exercise

Range of Exercise Prices Outstanding Life Price Outstanding Price

$0.01 -2.55 120000 3.94 $2.55 120000 $2.55

120000 120000

NaviSite 2003 Stock Incentive Plan

On July 10 and December 2003 respectively the 2003 Stock Incentive Plan the 2003 Plan was

approved by our board of directors and stockholders The 2003 Plan provides that stock options or restricted-

stock awards may be granted to employees officers directors consultants and advisors of the Company or

any present or future parent or subsidiary corporations and any other business venture including without

limitation joint venture or limited-liability company in which the Company has controlling interest as

determined by our board of directors On January 27 2006 our board of directors approved subject to

stockholder approval an amendment to increase the maximum number of shares authorized under the 2003

Plan to 11800000 shares This amendment was deemed effective on February 23 2006 On July 31 2009

there were 11800000 shares authorized under the 2003 Plan

The 2003 Plan is administered by our board of directors or any committee to which our board delegates

its powers under the 2003 Plan Subject to the provisions of the 2003 Plan our board will determine the terms

of each award including the number of shares of common stock subject to the award and the exercise thereof

Our board of directors may in its sole discretion amend modify or terminate any award granted or made

under the 2003 Plan so long as such amendment modification or termination would not materially and

adversely affect the participant Our board of directors may also provide that any stock option shall become

immediately exercisable in full or in part or that any restricted stock granted under the 2003 Plan shall be

free of some or all restrictions

As of July 31 2009 stock options to purchase 6248538 shares of common stock at weighted average

exercise price of $3.55 per share were outstanding under the 2003 Plan For our employees the options are

exercisable as to 25% of the original number of shares on the six-month 180th day anniversary of the option

holders grant date and thereafter in equal amounts monthly over the three-year period commencing on the
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six-month anniversary of the option holders grant date Options granted under the 2003 Plan have maximum

term of ten years

The following table reflects activity and histoncal exercise pnces of stock options under the 2003 Plan

for the three years ended July 31 2009 2008 and 2007 respectively

2009 2008 2007

Weighted Weighted Weighted
Number Average Number Average Number Average

of Exercise of Exercise of Exercise

Shares Price Shares Price Shares Price

Options outstanding beginning of

year 6599500 $3.92 6533189 $3.59 6453130 $2.77

Granted 867225 $133 2002500 $627 2335210 $519

Exercised 85701 $1.55 597732 $2.91 1427881 $2.80

Cancelled 1132486 $4.15 1338457 $6.28 827270 $3.08

Options outstanding end of year 6248538 $3.55 6599500 $3.92 6533189 $3.59

Options exercisable end of year 4941584 $3.53 4635450 $3.46 3796340 $3.05

Options available for grant end of

year 1450862 2095412 3192845

Options Outstanding Options Exercisable

Weighted

Average Weighted Weighted
Remaining Average Average

Number Contractual Exercise Number Exercise

Range of Exercise Prices Outstanding Life Price Outstanding Price

$0.01 1.44 678520 8.76 $0.88 245761 $1.09

$1.45 1.48 377880 6.50 $1.46 377880 $1.46

$1.49 1.58 877707 5.67 $1.58 877707 $1.58

$1.59 2.55 963664 5.04 $2.28 943640 $2.28

$2.56 3.90 649286 8.04 $3.41 350679 $3.38

$3.91 4.49 627338 6.78 $4.16 464034 $4.19

$4.50-5.28 157506 7.35 $4.81 128262 $4.80

$5.29-5.41 800000 4.50 $5.41 800000 $5.41

$5.42 6.70 642267 7.65 $5.89 465639 $5.87

$6.71 10.81 474370 7.95 $7.86 287982 $7.85

6248538 4941584
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Non-Vested Shares Issued under the 2003 Plan

The following table reflects non-vested shares activity under our equity-incentive plans for the fiscal year

ended July 31 2009

Weighted Average
Number Grant Date

of Shares Fair Value

Non-vested stock outstanding beginning of year 367404 $6.06

Granted 1060000 $2.58

Vested 161106 $1.92

Forfeited 144188 $3.46

Non-vested stock outstanding July 31 2009 1122110 $3.27

In April 2009 we granted 200000 non-vested shares to certain executive under the 2003 Plan at

weighted average grant date fair value of $0.44 These non-vesting shares carry
restrictions as to resale that

lapse over time as to 25% of the original number of shares on the six-month anniversary of the grant date and

thereafter in equal amounts monthly over the three-year period commencing on the six-month anniversary of

the grant date so long as the holder is employed on each such vesting date

In December 2008 we granted 63000 non-vested shares to certain members of our board of directors

under the 2003 Plan at weighted average grant date fair value of $0.37 per share These non-vested shares

carry restrictions as to resale that lapse with time over the 12-month period beginning with the date of grant

so long as such member of our board of directors serves on our board as of each vesting date The grant-date

fair value of the non-vested shares was determined based on the market price of our common stock on the

date of grant

In August 2008 we granted approximately 0.8 million non-vested shares of common stock to certain

executives under the 2003 Plan at weighted average grant date fair value of $3.29 per share The grant-date

fair value of the non-vested shares was determined using Monte Carlo simulations allowing for the

incorporation of market-based hurdles These shares are subject to certain vesting criteria for the first

third of the shares 50% vests upon our exceeding market capitalization of $182330695 for 20 consecutive

trading days and the remaining 50% of such one third vests on the one-year anniversary thereafter ii for the

second third of the shares 50% vests upon our exceeding market capitalization of $232330695 fçr 20

consecutive trading days and the remaining 50% of such one third vests on the one-year anniversary thereafter

and iii for the final third of the shares 50% vests upon our exceeding market capitalization of

$282330695 for 20 consecutive trading days and the remaining 50% of such one third vests on the one-year

anniversary thereafter participant will only vest in such shares if he or she is employed by us on vesting

date If the vesting criteria is not met at the 10th anniversary of the grant date all unvested shares shall

automatically be forfeited to the Company Compensation expense is being recognized over the derived service

period

In July 2008 we granted approximately 148750 non-vested shares of common stock to employees under

the 2003 Plan at weighted average grant date fair value of $3.73 per share These non-vested shares carry

restrictions that lapse as the employees provide service as to 25% of the shares on the six-month anniversary

of the grant date and as to the remainder in six equal installments every
six months thereafter The grant-date

fair value of the non-vested shares was determined based on the market price of our common stock on the

date of grant

In April 2008 we granted approximately 221640 non-vested shares of common stock to certain executives

under the 2003 Plan at weighted average grant date fair value of $7.93 per share These non-vested shares

carry
restrictions that lapse as the employees provide service as to one-third of the shares per annum on each
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of the first second and third anniversaries of the date of grant With respect to 0.1 million of the non-vested

shares the restrictions may lapse on an earlier date as to 100% of the shares if we achieve certain revenue

and EBITDA targets for our 2008 fiscal year We did not achieve these targets and therefore no acceleration

with respect to these shares occurred The grant-date fair value of the non-vested shares was determined based

on the market price of our common stock on the date of grant

In December 2007 we granted approximately 63000 non-vested shares to certain members of our board

of directors under the 2003 Plan at weighted average grant-date fair value of $5.50 per share These non-

vested shares carry restrictions as to resale that lapse with time over the 12-month period beginning with the

date of grant The grant-date fair value of the non-vested shares was determined based on the market price of

our common stock on the date of grant

Other Stock-Option Grants

At July 31 2009 we had 2665 outstanding stock options issued outside of existing plans to certain

former directors at an average exercise price of $135.56 These stock options were fully vested on the grant

date and have contractual life of 10 years The remaining average contractual life is 1.39 years

1999 Employee Stock Purchase Plan

Our ESPP was adopted by our board of directors and approved by our stockholders in October 1999

total of 6666 shares of our common stock as adjusted were originally reserved for issuance there under An

amendment to increase the number of shares reserved for issuance under the ESPP to 16666 shares as

adjusted was adopted by our board of directors on October 2000 and approved by the stockholders on

December 20 2000

On November 2007 our board of directors approved an amendment and restatement of the ESPP to

increase the number of shares reserved for issuance under the ESPP from 16666 shares as adjusted to

516666 shares This amendment and restatement was approved by the stockholders on December 12 2007

Under the ESPP employees who elect to participate instruct the Company to withhold specified amount

through payroll deductions during the offering period of six months On the last business day of each offering

period the amount withheld is used to purchase our common stock at an exercise price equal to 85% of the

lower of the market price on the first or last business day of the offering period We issued 433901 and

66074 shares in fiscal
years

2009 and 2008 respectively and no shares in fiscal years 2007 As of July 31

2009 there were 34 shares available for future grant under the ESPP

15 Restructuring Charge

During fiscal year 2009 we initiated the restructuring of our professional services organization in an

effort to realign resources As result of this initiative we terminated several employees resulting in

restructuring charge for severance and related costs of $0.5 million

The following is roll forward of the restructuring accrual as of July 31 2009

In thousands

Restructuring accrual balance at July 31 2008

Restructuring and other related charges 476

Cash payments and other settlements 389
Other adjustments 87

Restructuring accrual balance at July 31 2009
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As of July 31 2009 there were no further obligations The initial restructuring charge was adjusted

during the year to reflect the reduction of future payments of $87000 due under this plan

16 Related-Party Transactions

We provide hosting services for Global Marine Systems which is controlled by the chairman of our board

of directors During the fiscal years end July 31 2009 2008 and 2007 we generated revenues of

approximately $113000 $251000 and $243000 respectively under this arrangement which has been

included in Revenue related parties in our consolidated statements of operations The accounts-receivable

balances at July 31 2009 and 2008 related to this related party were not significant

In fiscal years 2009 2008 and 2007 we performed professional and hosting services for company

whose chief executive officer is related to our chief executive officer For the fiscal years
ended July 31 2009

2008 and 2007 revenue generated from this company was approximately $233000 $121000 and $79000

respectively which amounts are included in Revenue related parties in our consolidated statements of

operations At July 31 2009 and 2008 we had approximately $70000 and $55000 respectively of accounts

receivable outstanding for this related party

On February 2008 one of our subsidiaries NaviSite Europe Limited entered into and we

guaranteed Lease Agreement the Lease for approximately 10000 square feet of data-center space

located in Caxton Way Watford U.K the Data Center with Sentrum III Limited The Lease has 10-

year term NaviSite Europe Limited and we are also parties to services agreement with Sentrum Services

Limited for the provision of services within the data center At July 31 2009 and 2008 we had capital-lease

obligations totaling $11.2 million and $14.3 million respectively related to equipment under the lease

agreements During fiscal years
2009 and 2008 we paid $2.4 million and $1.7 million respectively under

these arrangements The chairman of our board of directors has financial interest in each of Sentrum III

Limited and Sentrum Services Limited

In November 2007 NaviSite Europe Limited entered into and we guaranteed lease-option

agreement for data-center space
in the UK with Sentrum IV Limited As part of this lease-option agreement

we made fully refundable deposit of $5.0 million in order to secure the right to lease the space upon the

completion of the building construction In July 2008 the final lease agreement was completed for

approximately 11000 square
feet of data-center space Subsequent to July 31 2008 the deposit was returned

to us The chairman of our board of directors has financial interest in Sentrum IV Limited In September

2009 the parties terminated this arrangement

17 Selected Quarterly Financial Data Unaudited

Financial information for interim periods for the fiscal years
ended July 31 2009 2008 and 2007 was as

follows

Fiscal Year Ended July 31 2009b

Qi Q2 Q3 Q4

In thousands

Revenue $40165 $38018 $37625 $36864

Gross profit
12417 12196 12633 12929

Net loss attributable to common stockholders 3349 3316 3245 8551

Net loss per common sharea 0.09 0.09 0.09 0.24
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Fiscal Year Ended July 31 2008b

Qi Q2 Q3 Q4

In thousands

Revenue $36107 $38951 $39382 $40439

Gross profit 10787 11747 11959 12671

Net loss 4754 2875 2474 1237
Net loss

per common sharea 0.14 0.08 0.07 0.04

Fiscal Year Ended July 31 2007

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4

In thousands

Revenue $28540 $30197 $32748 34697

Gross profit 9297 9651 10834 11204

Net loss 2643 3816 2359 17092
Net loss per common sharea 0.09 0.13 0.08 0.53

Net loss per common share which we compute independently for each quarter is based on the weighted

average number of shares outstanding during the quarter Therefore the aggregate per-share amount for

the quarters may not equal the amount calculated for the full year

The results of operations for the fiscal years ended July 31 2009 and 2008 have been adjusted to include

the reclassification of AJE operations back to continuing operations Revenue related to AlE for the fiscal

years ending July 31 2009 and 2008 were $1532 and $313 respectively
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

The Board of Directors and Stockholders

NaviSite Inc and Subsidiaries

Under date of October 27 2009 we reported on the consolidated balance sheets of NaviSite Inc and

subsidiaries as of July 31 2009 and 2008 and the related consolidated statements of operations changes in

convertible preferred stock and stockholders deficit and comprehensive loss and cash flows for each of the

years in the three-year period ended July 31 2009 which are contained in the July 31 2009 Annual Report on

Form 10-K In connection with our audits of the aforementioned consolidated financial statements we also

audited the related consolidated financial statement schedule of Valuation and Qualifying Accounts in this

Form 10-K This financial statement schedule is the responsibility of the Companys management Our

responsibility is to express an opinion on this financial statement schedule based on our audits In our opinion

such financial statement schedule when considered in relation to the basic consolidated financial statements

taken as whole presents fairly in all material respects the information set forth therein

Boston Massachusetts

October 27 2009
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Years Ended July 31 2009 2008 and 2007

Balance at Additions Deductions Balance at

Begmmng of Charged to from End of

Year Expense Other Reserve Year

In thousands

Year ended July 31 2007

Allowance for doubtful accounts $1 944 36 $1 199 781

Year ended July 31 2008

Allowance for doubtful accounts 781 581 465 897

Year ended July 31 2009

Allowance for doubtful accounts 897 $1908 985 $1820
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NaviSite

400 Minuteman Road

Andover Massachusetts 01810

October 30 2009

Dear NaviSite Stockholders

am pleased to invite you to attend the 2009 Annual Meeting of Stockholders of NaviSite Inc to be

held on Tuesday December 15 2009 at 900 a.m local time at the Marriott Boston Cambridge Hotel

located at Two Cambridge Center 50 Broadway Cambridge Massachusetts 02142

Specific details regarding admission to the meeting and the business to be conducted at the Annual

Meeting are included in the Notice of Annual Meeting of Stockholders and Proxy Statement

This year we are using the Internet as our primary means of furnishing proxy materials to stockholders

Consequently most stockholders will not receive paper copies of our proxy materials We will instead send

these stockholders notice with instructions for accessing the proxy materials and voting via the Internet The

notice also provides information on how stockholders may obtain paper copies of our proxy materials if they

so choose This makes the proxy-distribution process more efficient and less costly and helps conserve natural

resources

Your vote is important Whether or not you plan to attend the annual meeting please vote as soon as

possible As an alternative to voting in person at the annual meeting you may vote via the Internet by

telephone or if you receive paper proxy card in the mail by completing and returning the proxy card Voting

by any of these methods will ensure your representation at the annual meeting

Thank you for your continued support

Sincerely

ARTHUR BECKER

Chief Executive Officer and President



NAVISITE INC
400 Minuteman Road

Andover MA 01810

NOTICE OF ANNUAL MEETING OF STOCKHOLDERS
To Be Held on Tuesday December 15 2009

To the Stockholders of NaviSite Inc

Notice is hereby given that the annual meeting of stockholders the Annual Meeting of NaviSite Inc

Delaware corporation NaviSite will be held on Tuesday December 15 2009 at 900 am local time at the

Marriott Boston Cambridge Hotel located at Two Cambridge Center 50 Broadway Cambridge MA 02142 for the

following purposes

to elect each of Andrew Ruhan Arthur Becker James Dennedy Thomas Evans and Larry

Schwartz the current members of the board of directors of NaviSite the Board of Directors to serve for

an additional one-year term

to amend NaviSites Amended and Restated 1999 Employee Stock Purchase Plan the ESPP to

increase the number of shares of common stock authorized for issuance pursuant to the ESPP by

600000 shares

to ratify the appointment of KPMO LLP as NaviSites independent registered public accounting firm

for the fiscal year ending July 31 2010 and

to transact such other business as may properly come before the meeting or any adjournment thereof

The Board of Directors has no knowledge of any other business to be transacted at the Annual Meeting

Admission of stockholders to the Annual Meeting will be on first-come-first-served basis and picture

identification will be required to enter the Annual Meeting An individual arriving without picture identification will

not be admitted unless it can be verified that the individual is NaviSite stockholder Use of cameras cellular

phones recording equipment and other electronic devices will not be permitted at the Annual Meeting NaviSite

reserves the right to inspect any persons or items before being admitted to the Annual Meeting

Only stockholders of record as of the close of business on Monday October 19 2009 are entitled to notice of

and to vote at the Annual Meeting All stockholders are cordially invited to attend the meeting

By order of the Board of Directors

THOMAS ROSEDALE

Secretary

Andover Massachusetts

October 30 2009

YOUR VOTE IS IMPORTANT

In order to ensure your representation at the Annual Meeting please submit your proxy and voting

instructions via the Internet or by telephone or if you receive paper proxy card and voting

instructions by mail you may vote your shares by completing signing and dating the proxy card as

promptly as possible and returning it in the enclosed envelope to which no postage needs to be affixed if

mailed in the United States Please refer to the section entitled Voting Instructions on page of the

proxy statement for description of these voting methods



NAVISITE INC

PROXY STATEMENT

Annual Meeting of Stockholders

To Be Held on Tuesday December 15 2009

General

This proxy statement this Proxy Statement is furnished in connection with the solicitation of proxies

by the board of directors the Board of Directors or Board of NaviSite Inc Delaware corporation

NaviSite for use at NaviSites 2009 annual meeting of stockholders which will be held on Tuesday

December 15 2009 the Annual Meeting at 900 a.m local time at the Marriott Boston Cambridge

Hotel Two Cambridge Center 50 Broadway Cambridge MA 02142 and at any adjoumments thereof for the

purposes set forth in the notice of annual meeting of stockholders the Notice of Annual Meeting You

may obtain directions to the location of our Annual Meeting by writing or calling our Investor Relations

Department at 400 Minuteman Road Andover Massachusetts 01810 or telephone 978 682-8300

On or about November 2009 we are either mailing or providing notice and electronic delivery of these

proxy materials together with an annual report consisting of our annual report on Form 10-K for the fiscal

year
ended July 31 2009 the 2009 Annual Report and other information required by the rules of the

Securities and Exchange Commission NaviSites principal executive offices are located at 400 Minuteman

Road Andover Massachusetts 01810 and its telephone number is 978 682-8300

Important Notice Regarding the Availability of Proxy Materials for the Annual Meeting To Be Held

on December 15 2009 This Proxy Statement and our 2009 Annual Report are available for viewing

printing and downloading at www.navisiteproxy.com

Solicitation

The cost of soliciting proxies including expenses
in connection with preparing printing and mailing of

the notice of Internet availability of proxy materials this Proxy Statement and any additional solicitation

material will be borne by NaviSite NaviSite may engage paid proxy solicitor to assist in the solicitation

Copies of solicitation materials will be furnished to brokerage houses nominees fiduciaries and custodians to

forward to beneficial owners of NaviSites common stock $.01 par
value

per
share the Common Stock

held in their names In addition to the solicitation of proxies by mail NaviSites directors officers and other

employees may withOut additional compensation solicit proxies by telephone facsimile electronic communi

cation and personal interviews NaviSite will also reimburse banks brokerage firms and other custodians

nominees and fiduciaries for reasonable expenses incurred by them in sending proxy materials to stockholders

Record Date Voting Securities and Votes Required

Only holders of record of Common Stock and NaviSite Series Convertible Preferred Stock the

Preferred Stock as of the close of business on Monday October 19 2009 the Record Date will be

entitled to receive notice of and vote at the Annual Meeting and any adjournments thereof On the Record

Date NaviSite had approximately 37276771 shares of Common Stock and 3774381 shares of Preferred

Stock issued and outstanding and entitled to be voted The holders of Common Stock and Preferred Stock are

entitled to one vote for each share held as of the Record Date on any proposal presented at the Annual

Meeting The holders of Common Stock and Preferred Stock vote together as one class

majority of the shares of Common Stock and Preferred Stock issued and outstanding and entitled to be

voted at the Meeting will constitute quorum at the Annual Meeting Votes withheld abstentions and broker



non-votes shall be counted for
purposes

of determining the presence or absence of quorum for the

transaction of business at the Annual Meeting

The affirmative vote of the holders of plurality of the votes cast at the Annual Meeting is required for

the election of directors Proposal No The affirmative vote of the holders of majority of the shares of

Common Stock and Preferred Stock voting together as single class present or represented by proxy and

voting on the matter is required to amend the NaviSites Amended and Restated 1999 Employee Stock

Purchase Plan the ESPP to increase the number of shares of Common Stock authorized for issuance

pursuant to the ESPP by 600000 Proposal No the ESPP Proposal The affirmative vote of the holders

of majority of the shares of Common Stock and Preferred Stock voting together as single class present or

represented by proxy and voting on the matter is required to ratify the appointment of KPMG LLP as

NaviSites independent registered public accounting firm for the fiscal year ending July 31 2010

Proposal No

Shares that abstain from voting on particular matter and shares held in street name by brokers or

nominees who indicate on their proxies that they do not have discretionary authority to vote such shares as to

particular matter broker non-votes will not be counted as votes in favor of such matter and will also not

be counted as votes cast or shares voting on such matter Accordingly neither abstentions nor broker non-

votes will have any effect upon the outcome of voting with respect to the election of directors Proposal No
which requires plurality of the votes cast or the approval of the ESPP Proposal or the ratification of the

appointment of KPMG LLP as NaviSites independent registered public accounting firm Proposal No
which each require an affirmative vote of majority of the shares of Common Stock and Preferred Stock

present or represented by proxy and voting on the matter

An automated system administered by NaviSites transfer agent tabulates the votes The votes on each

matter are tabulated separately

Voting Instructions

If you received paper copy of these proxy materials included with such copy is proxy card or

voting-instruction card from your bank broker or other nominee for the Annual Meeting with instructions for

voting via the Internet or by telephone If you received notice of Internet availability of proxy materials

such notice will contain instructions on how to access and review the proxy materials online and how to obtain

paper or electronic copy of the materials which will include the Proxy Statement the 2009 Annual Report

and proxy card or voting-instruction card as well as instructions on how to vote either at the Annual

Meeting via the Internet by telephone or by mail

Those stockholders who receive paper proxy card and voting instructions by mail and who elect to vote

by mail should complete sign and return the proxy card in the prepaid and addressed envelope that was

enclosed with the proxy materials and the shares will be voted at the Annual Meeting in the manner directed

If you complete sign and return your proxy card it will be voted as you direct If no choice is specified on

signed proxy card the persons named as proxies will vote as follows

FOR the election of each of Andrew Ruhan Arthur Becker James Dennedy Thomas Evans and

Larry Schwartz to the Board of 1irectors

FOR the approval of the ESPP Proposal

FOR the ratification of the appointment of KPMG LLP as the Companys independent registered public

accounting firm for the fiscal
year ending July 31 2010 and

In their discretion as to any other matter that may be properly brought before the Annual Meeting or

any adjournments thereof

If the shares that you own are held in street name by bank broker or other nominee that person as

the record holder of your shares is required to vote your shares according to your instructions Your bank
broker or other nominee will send you directions on how to vote those shares Under applicable stock

exchange rules if you do not give instructions to your bank broker or other nominee it will still be able to



vote your shares with respect to certain discretionary items but will not be allowed to vote your shares with

respect to certain non-discretionary items In the case of non-discretionary items the shares that do not

receive voting instructions will be treated as broker non-votes the effect of which is discussed above in the

section entitled Record Date Voting Securities and Votes Required

Discretionary Items Non-Discretionary Items

Proposal No Election of Directors Proposal No ESPP Proposal

Proposal No Ratification of KPMG LLP

as the Companys independent registered

public accounting firm

If you are stockholder as of the Record Date and attend the meeting you may personally deliver your

completed proxy card or vote in person at the meeting

Revocability of Proxy

You may revoke your proxy at any time before it is voted at the Annual Meeting by

notifying NaviSites Secretary in writing at the principal executive offices of NaviSite located at 400

Minuteman Road Andover Massachusetts 01810 Attention Secretary before the Annual Meeting that

you have revoked your proxy or

attending the Annual Meeting and voting in person at the Annual Meeting

If you plan to attend the Annual Meeting and wish to vote in person we will give you ballot at the

meeting However if your shares are held in the name of your broker bank or other nominee you must bring

proxy from your nominee authorizing you to vote your street name shares held as of the Record Date

Householding of Annual Meeting Materials

Some banks brokers and other nominee record holders may participate in the practice of householding

proxy statements annual reports and notices of Internet availability of proxy materials This means that only

one copy of our Proxy Statement 2009 Annual Report or notice of Internet availability of proxy materials

may have been sent to multiple stockholders in
your

household We will promptly deliver separate copy of

the notice of Internet availability of proxy materials and if applicable separate copy of the Proxy Statement

and 2009 Annual Report to any beneficial owner at shared address to which single copy of any of those

documents was delivered if you write or call us at the following address or telephone number Investor

Relations Department NaviSite Inc 400 Minuteman Road Andover Massachusetts 01810 telephone

978 682-8300 If you want to receive separate copies of the Proxy Statement 2009 Annual Report or notice

of Internet availability of proxy materials in the future or if you are receiving multiple copies and would like

to receive only one copy for your household you should contact your bank broker or other nominee record

holder or you may contact NaviSite at the above address and telephone number

Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management

The following table sets forth certain information as of September 30 2009 unlesS otherwise indicated

with respect to the beneficial ownership of Common Stock and Preferred Stock by the following

each person known by NaviSite to beneficially own more than 5% of the outstanding shares of

Common Stock or Preferred Stock

each of the members of the Board of Directors

our chief executive officer our chief financial officer and our three other most highly compensated

executive officers together the Named Executive Officers and

all of the current executive officers and members of the Board of Directors as group



For
purposes

of the following table beneficial ownership is determined in accordance with the rules

promulgated by the Securities and Exchange Commission the SEC and the information is not necessarily

indicative of beneficial ownership for any other purpose Except as otherwise noted in the footnotes to the

table we believe that each person or entity named in the table has sole voting and investment power with

respect to all shares of Common Stock and Preferred Stock shown as beneficially owned by them or shares

such power with his or her spouse Under such rules any shares of Common Stock that person has the right

to acquire within 60 days after September 30 2009 through the exercise of any options Presently

Exercisable Options warrants Presently Exercisable Warrants or other rights are deemed outstanding

included in the number of shares beneficially owned by person named in the table and used to compute the

percentage ownership of that person These shares are not however deemed outstanding for computing the

percentage ownership of any other person or entity Unless otherwise indicated the address of each person

listed in the table is do NaviSite Inc 400 Minuteman Road Andover Massachusetts 01810

The percentage ownership of Common Stock of each person or entity named in the following table is

based on 37098085 shares of Common Stock outstanding as of September 30 2009 plus any shares subject

to Presently Exercisable Options shares subject to Presently Exercisable Warrants and shares of Preferred

Stock currently convertible into shares of Common Stock held by such person The percentage ownership of

Preferred Stock of each person or entity named in the following table is based on 3774381 shares of

Preferred Stock outstanding as of September 30 2009

Amount and Nature of

Beneficial Ownership

Number of Percentage Number of Percentage of

Name and Address of Beneficial Owner Common Shares of Common Stock Preferred Shares Preferred Stock

5% Stockholders

Atlantic Investors LLC 138410281 37.3%

654 Madison Avenue Suite 1909

New York NY 10065

Janus Capital Management LLC
Janus Venture Fund 42683242 11.5%

151 Detroit Street

Denver CO 80206

Silver Point Capital Fund L.P Silver

Point Capital Offshore Fund Ltd 20816313 5.4%

do Silver Point Capital L.P

Two Greenwich Plaza 1st Floor

Greenwich CT 06830

netASPx Holdings Inc 34766694 8.6% 34766695 92.1%

do GTCR Golder Rauner LLC
6100 Sears Tower

Chicago IL 60606

Directors and Named Executive Officers

Andrew Ruhan 1115006

Arthur Becker 17597867 4.6%

James Dennedy 1465008

Thomas Evans 1765009

Larry Schwartz 1465008

James Pluntze 47637510 1.3%

Mark Clayman 40958311 1.1%

Sumeet Sabharwal 32758312
Rathin Sinha 12500013

All current executive officers and

directors as group 12 persons 444615614 11.2%

Less than 1%



Based on information provided by Atlantic Investors LLC in its Amendment No 10 to Schedule 13D

dated June 18 2008 filed with the SEC Atlantic Investors LLC is controlled by two managing mem
bers Unicorn Worldwide Holdings Limited and Madison Technology LLC Unicorn Worldwide Holdings

Limited is jointly controlled by its board members Simon Cooper and Simon McNally Mr Becker is the

managing member of Madison Technology LLC Messrs Cooper and McNally for Unicorn Worldwide

Holdings Limited and Mr Becker for Madison Technology LLC share voting and investment power

over the securities held by Atlantic Investors LLC Mr Ruhan holds 10% equity interest in Unicorn

Worldwide Holdings Limited managing member of Atlantic Investors LLC Atlantic Investors LLC
has informed us that the 13841028 shares of our Common Stock that it currently holds are the only

shares of our Common Stock currently held by them Atlantic Investors LLC in managing its liquidity

requirements from time to time may pledge shares of our Common Stock as collateral to lenders these

arrangements are generally structured to preserve for Atlantic Investors LLC beneficial ownership in the

pledged securities

Based solely on information provided by Janus Capital Management LLC Janus Capital and Janus

Venture Fund Janus Venture in their Amendment No to Schedule 13G dated February 17 2009

filed with the SEC Janus Capital is registered investment adviser furnishing investment advice .to vari

ous investment companies registered under Section of the Investment Company Act of 1940 and to

individual and institutional clients collectively the Managed Portfolios As result of its role as

investment adviser or sub-adviser to the Managed Portfolios Janus Capital may be deemed to be the ben

eficial owner of 4268324 shares of our Common Stock held by such Managed Portfolios However

Janus Capital does not have the right to receive any dividends from or the proceeds from the sale of the

securities held in the Managed Portfolios and disclaims any ownership associated with such rights Janus

Venture is an investment company registered under Section of the Investment Company Act of 1940

and is one of the Managed Portfolios to which Janus Capital provides investment advice Janus Capital

has sole dispositive and voting power with respect to such shares Janus Venture has sole dispositive and

voting power with respect to 3704519 shares

Based solely on information provided by Silver Point Capital L.P Silver Point Mr Edward Mule

and Mr Robert OShea in their Amendment No to Schedule 13G dated February 17 2009 filed with

the SEC Includes 1200131 shares of our Common Stock issuable upon exercise of Presently Exercis

able Warrants Silver Point is the investment manager of Silver Point Capital Fund L.P the Fund
and Silver Point Capital Offshore Fund Ltd the Offshore Fund Silver Point Capital Management

LLC Management is the general partner of Silver Point Each of Mr Edward Mule and Mr Robert

OShea is member of Management and has voting and investment power with respect to the shares of

our Common Stock held by the Fund and the Offshore Fund Silver Point Management and Messrs Mule

and OShea may each be deemed to be beneficial owner of the shares of our Common Stock held by

the Fund and the Offshore Fund Silver Point has sole dispositive power with respect to such shares and

sole voting power with respect to 881500 shares Messrs Mule and OShea have shared dispositive

power with respect to such shares and shared voting power with respect to 881500 shares

Consists of shares of Preferred Stock that are currently convertible into shares of our Common Stock on

one-for-one basis As of the date of this Proxy Statement no shares of Preferred Stock had been con

verted into shares of our Common Stock and netASPx Holdings Inc will therefore vote only with

respect to the 3476669 shares of Preferred Stock However they may be deemed to be the beneficial

owner of 3476669 shares of our Common Stock See footnote below for additional information

netASPx Holdings Inc is owned by GTCR Fund VI LP GTCR VI Executive Fund LP and GTCR

Associates VI LP GTCR Partners VI LP is the General Partner of the three aforementioned funds The

General Partner of GTCR Partners VI LP is GTCR Golder Rauner LLC

Includes 80000 shares of our Common Stock issuable upon the exercise of Presently Exercisable

Options Excludes 13841028 shares of our Common Stock owned by Atlantic Investors LLC and

426134 shares of our Common Stock owned by Global Unicorn Worldwide Holdings S.A.R.L wholly

owned subsidiary of Unicorn Worldwide Holdings Limited with respect to all of which Mr Ruhan dis

claims beneficial ownership Mr Ruhan holds 10% equity interest in Unicorn Worldwide Holdings

Limited managing member of Atlantic Investors LLC



Includes 213067 shares of our Common Stock owned by Madison Technology LLC and 1103125 shares

of our Common Stock issuable upon the exercise of Presently Exercisable Options Mr Becker disclaims

personal pecuniary interest in 60000 shares of our Common Stock held by Madison Technology LLC for

the benefit of his children Excludes 13841028 shares of our Common Stock owned by Atlantic Inves

tors LLC with respect to which Mr Becker disclaims beneficial ownership Mr Becker is the managing

member of Madison Technology LLC managing member of Atlantic Investors LLC

Includes 115000 shares of our Common Stock issuable upon the exercise of Presently Exercisable

Options

Includes 95000 shares of our Common Stock issuable upon the exercise of Presently Exercisable

Options

10 Includes 268125 shares of our Common Stock issuable upon the exercise of Presently Exercisable

Options

11 Includes 289583 shares of our Common Stock issuable upon the exercise of Presently Exercisable

Options

12 Includes 249583 shares of our Common Stock issuable upon the exercise of Presently Exercisable

Options

13 Includes 75000 shares of our Common Stock issuable upon the exercise of Presently Exercisable

Options

14 Includes 213067 shares of our Common Stock owned by Madison Technology LLC and 2614999 shares

of our Common Stock issuable upon the exercise of Presently Exercisable Options Excludes

13841028 shares of our Common Stock owned by Atlantic Investors LLC with respect to which

Messrs Ruhan and Becker disclaim beneficial ownership and 426134 shares of our Common Stock

owned by Global Unicorn Worldwide Holdings S.A.R.L with respect to which Mr Ruhan disclaims ben

eficial ownership

PROPOSAL NO

Election of Directors

Pursuant to NaviSites amended and restated by-Laws the Bylaws all of the directors may be elected

at each annual meeting of stockholders and hold office until his or her successor has been elected and

qualified or until his or her earlier death resignation or removal The Bylaws further provide that the number

of directors shall be determined from time to time by resolution of the Board of Directors or by the holders of

shares representing majority of the votes entitled to be cast by all stockholders in any annual election of

directors

The Board of Directors currently has five members The current members of the Board of Directors are

Messrs Andrew Ruhan Arthur Becker James Dennedy Thomas Evans and Larry Schwartz

The Board of Directors proposes and recommends that the five nominees named below be re-elected to

serve as members of the Board of Directors of NaviSite The persons named as proxies will vote to re-elect

the five nominees named below as members of the Board of Directors of NaviSite unless the proxy card is

marked otherwise Each nominee is presently serving as member of the Board of Directors has consented to

being named in this Proxy Statement and has indicated his willingness to serve if elected If for any reason

any nominee should become unable or unwilling to serve the persons named as proxies may vote the proxy

for the election of substitute nominee The members of the Board of Directors have no reason to believe that

any nominee will be unable to serve

Biographical and certain other information concerning NaviSites nominees for re-election to the Board of

Directors each of whom is presently serving as member of the Board of Directors is set forth below

Information with respect to the number of shares of Common Stock beneficially owned by each director as of

September 30 2009 appears
above in the section entitled Securiiy Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners



and Management No director or executive officer is related by blood marriage or adoption to any other

director or executive officer

Nominees for Election to the Board of Directors

Andrew Ruhan age 47 has served as the chairman of the Board of NaviSite since September 2002

Mr Ruhan is also managing director of Bridgehouse Capital London-based private-equity investment-

advisory firm From 2000 to 2003 Mr Ruhan served as the chief executive officer of ClearBlue Technologies

Inc CBT managed-service provider and predecessor-in-interest to Atlantic Investors LLC holder of

approximately 37% of the outstanding shares of Common Stock as of the Record Date

Arthur Becker age 59 has served as director of NaviSite since September 2002 and its chief

executive officer and president since February 2003 From 2000 to 2003 Mr Becker served as vice chairman

and director of CBT predecessor-in-interest to Atlantic Investors LLC Mr Becker is also co-founder of

Atlantic Investors LLC holder of approximately 37% of the outstanding shares of Common Stock as of the

Record Date Since 1999 Mr Becker has been the managing member of Madison Technology LLC an

investment fund that focuses on technology and telecommunications companies Madison Technology LLC is

managing member of Atlantic Investors LLC

James Dennedy age 44 has served as director of NaviSite since January 2003 Since April 2008

Mr Dennedy has been principal and the chief investment officer of Arcadia Capital Advisors LLC

capital-management and advisory-services company From September 2007 until April 2008 Mr Dennedy was

the managing partner of Hamilton-Madison Group LLC capital management and corporate development

company From November 2004 until August 2007 Mr Dennedy was the president and chief executive officer

of Engyro Corporation an enterprise-systems and network-management company From September 2003 until

November 2004 Mr Dennedy served as managing partner of Mitchell-Wright LLC technology buy-out

and investment company Mr Dennedy is also director of Agilysys Inc

Thomas Evans age 55 has served as director of NaviSite since October 2003 Since June 2004

Mr Evans has been the chief executive officer and president of Bankrate Inc an Internet-based consumer-

banking marketplace Mr Evans also serves on the board of directors of Bankrate Inc From September 2002

to June 2004 Mr Evans was private investor and consultant Mr Evans is also director of Future Fuel

Corp

Larry Schwartz age 46 has served as director of NaviSite since May 2003 Since 2004 Mr Schwartz

has been managing director of The Wenham Group private-equity investment advisory firm Prior to 2004

Mr Schwartz was senior vice president of Genuity Inc Mr Schwartz joined Genuity Inc in 2000

The Board of Directors recommends vote FOR the re-election of the above-named nominees as

directors of NaviSite

PROPOSAL NO

Amendment of NaviSites Amended and Restated 1999 Employee Stock Purchase Plan to increase

the number of shares reserved for issuance thereunder

General

The ESPP was adopted by the Board of Directors and approved by our stockholders in October 1999

total of 6666 shares of our Common Stock were initially reserved for issuance thereunder An amendment to

increase the number of shares reserved for issUance under the ESPP to 16666 shares of our Common Stock

was adopted by the Board on October 2000 and approved by the stockholders on December 20 2000 and

an additional amendment to increase the number of shares of our Common Stock reserved for issuance under

the ESPP to 516666 was adopted by the Board on November 2007 and approved by our stockholders on

December 12 2007 As of September 30 2009 516632 of the shares reserved for issuance under the ESPP



without giving effect to the proposed amendment had been issued leaving only 34 shares reserved for

issuance under the ESPP

The Board of Directors believes that it is in our best interest to provide employees with an opportunity to

purchase our Common Stock through payroll deductions Accordingly on July 2009 the Board approved

subject to stockholder approval an amendment of the ESPP to increase the number of shares reserved for

issuance under the ESPP from 516666 shares as adjusted to 1116666 shares subject to adjustment for

certain changes in NaviSites capitalization If this proposal is not approved the current offering period will

terminate and no additional shares will be issued under the ESPP

Summary of the ESPP

The following summary of the ESPP is qualified in its entirety by reference to the full text of the ESPP

copy of which is attached as Appendix to the electronic copy of this Proxy Statement filed with the SEC and

may be accessed from the SECs home page www.sec.gov In addition copy of the ESPP may be obtained

by making written request to our general counsel

Purpose

The
purpose of the ESPP is to provide those employees of NaviSite and of any majority-owned

subsidiaries designated by the Board who participate in the ESPP with an opportunity to purchase our

Common Stock through payroll deductions

Administration

The ESPP is currently being administered by the Governance Nominating and Compensation Committee

the GNC Committee of the Board of Directors All questions of interpretation or application of the ESPP

are determined in the sole discretion of the Board or the GNC Committee and its decisions are final and

binding upon all participants Members of the Board who are eligible employees are permitted to participate in

the ESPP but may not vote on any matter affecting the administration of the ESPP or the grant of any option

pursuant to the ESPP No member of the Board who is eligible to participate in the ESPP may be member of

the committee appointed to administer the ESPP No charges for administrative or other costs may be made

against the payroll deductions of participant in the ESPP Members of the Board receive no additional

compensation for their services in connection with the administration of the ESPP

Eligibility Participation

Any person who is employed by us or by any subsidiary designated by the Board of Directors for at

least 20 hours per week and for more than five months in calendar year for at least six months prior to

enrolling in the Plan and on the first day of Plan Period as defined below is eligible to participate in the

ESPP so long as that person does not beneficially own greater than 5% of the issued and outstanding Common
Stock As of September 30 2009 approximately 535 employees were eligible to participate in the ESPP

Eligible employees become participants in the ESPP by completing and delivering payroll-deduction

authorization An employee who becomes eligible to participate in the ESPP after the commencement of an

offering period may not participate in the ESPP until the commencement of the next offering period

Offerings

The ESPP was originally implemented by consecutive three-month offering periods The initial offering

period began on October 22 1999 and ended on February 29 2000 Each subsequent offering period

commenced on the date immediately following the end of the preceding offering period and ended on the last

day of the third full month thereafter Each such period is referred to as Plan Period In 2007 the ESPP

was amended to change each Plan Period from three to six months so that there would be two Plan Periods

per year The first Plan Period begins on January and ends on June 30 each year and the second Plan Period

begins on July and ends on December 31 each year The Board of Directors has the power to alter the



duration of Plan Period without stockholder approval if such change is announced before the scheduled

beginning of the first offering period to be affected

Purchase Price

The purchase price per share at which shares are purchased under the ESPP is the lower of 85% of the

fair market value of share of our Common Stock on the first day of business of Plan Period or the

last business day of the Plan Period The fair market value of our Common Stock on given date is equal to

its closing price on the Nasdaq Capital Market on such date

Payment of Purchase Price Payroll Deductions

ESPP shares are purchased with funds that are accumulated through payroll deductions during the

offering period The deductions may not exceed 10% of participants eligible compensation as that term is

defined in the ESPP participant may increase decrease or discontinue payroll deductions once during

Plan Period

All payroll deductions are credited to the participants account under the ESPP but no interest accrues on

the payroll deductions We may use any or all payroll deductions that we receive or hold for any corporate

purpose and need not segregate them

Purchase of Stock Exercise of Option

At the beginning of each Plan Period each participating employee is in effect granted an option to purchase

shares of Common Stock The maximum number of shares that such participant may buy in an offering period is

determined by dividing $12500 by the closing price of our Common Stock on the first day of such Plan Period

Withdrawal

participant may terminate his or her participation in the ESPP at any time before the end of Plan Period

Promptly after we receive his or her notice of withdrawal his or her participation in the current offering period will

be automatically terminated and we will pay the participants accumulated payroll deductions to the participant

No resumption of payroll deductions will occur on behalf of such participant unless such participant re-enrolls in

the ESPP during the applicable open-enrollment period preceding the commencement of subsequent offering

period participants withdrawal from the ESPP during an offering period does not have any effect upon such

participants eligibility to participate in subsequent offering periods under the ESPP

Termination of Employment

Termination of participants employment for any reason including retirement or death cancels his or

her participation in the ESPP immediately In such event we will return the payroll deductions credited to the

participants account to such participant or in the case of death to the
person or persons designated in the

subscription agreement

Capital Changes

If any change is made in our capitalization such as stock splits or stock dividends that results in an

increase or decrease in the number of shares of our Common Stock outstanding without receipt of

consideration by us appropriate adjustments will be made in the number of shares subject to purchase and in

the purchase price per share subject to any required action by our stockholders In the event of the proposed

sale of all or substantially all of our assets or the merger of us with or into another entity each holder of

outstanding options would be entitled upon exercise of the option to receive in lieu of shares of our Common

Stock rights to the consideration received by holders of our Common Stock pursuant to the terms of such

transaction or the Board of Directors or its committee could cancel all outstanding options as of date

prior to the effective date of any such transaction and have all payroll deductions paid out to participating

employees or cancel all outstanding options as of the effective date of any such transaction provided that



in the case of clause we give notice of such cancellation to each holder of an option and each

holder of an option has the right to exercise such option in full based on payroll deductions then credited to

his or her account as of date determined by the Board or its committee which date may not be less than

10 days before the effective date of such transaction

Amendment and Termination of the ESPP

The Board of Directors may at any time amend or terminate the ESPP The Board may terminate an

offering period on any purchase date if it determines that the termination of the offering period or the ESPP is

in the best interests of us and our stockholders No amendment may be made to the ESPP without prior

approval of our stockholders where such approval is necessary to comply with Section 423 of the Internal

Revenue Code of 1986 as amended the Code i.e if such amendment would increase the number of

shares reserved under the ESPP or modify the eligibility requirements and in no event may any amendment

be made that would cause the ESPP to fail to comply with Section 423 of the Code

Certain Federal Income Tax Information

The ESPP and the right of participants to make purchases thereunder is intended to qualify under the

provisions of Sections 421 and 423 of the Code Under these provisions no income is taxable to participant

at the time of grant of the option or purchase of shares Upon disposition of the shares the participant will

generally be subject to tax the amount of which depends on the holding period If the participant has held the

shares for more than two years after the offering date and more than one year after the purchase date the

excess of the fair market value of the shares at the time of such disposition over the purchase price will be

treated as capital gain If the participant disposes of the shares before these holding periods expire the excess

of the fair market value of the shares on the purchase date over the purchase price will be treated as ordinary

income and any further gain or any loss on such disposition will be long-term or short-term capital gain or

loss depending on the holding period We are not entitled to deduction for amounts taxed as ordinary

income or capital gain to participant except to the extent of ordinary income reported by participants upon

disposition of shares before the expiration of the two holding periods described above

The foregoing is only summary of the effect of federal income taxation on the participant and us with

respect to the purchase of shares under the ESPP is not intended to be complete and does not discuss the

income tax laws of any municipality state or foreign country

Participation in the ESPP

Participation in the ESPP is voluntary and dependent on each eligible employees election to participate

and his or her determination as to the level of payroll deductions Accordingly future purchases under the

ESPP are not determinable Non-employee directors are not eligible to participate in the ESPP

New Plan Benefits

The benefits to be received by our executive officers non-employee directors and employees as result of

the proposed amendment to the ESPP are not determinable since the amounts of future purchases by participants

are based on elective participant contributions No purchase rights have been granted to any of our executive

officers other than Sumeet Sabharwal or non-employee directors with respect to the 600000 share increase for

which stockholder approval is sought under this proposal Purchase rights have been granted to Mr Sabharwal

and our employees other than executive officers with respect to the 600000 share increase for which stockholder

approval is sought under this proposal The benefits to be received by Mr Sabharwal with respect to the purchase

rights that have been granted to him equals up to an aggregate of $12500 The benefits to be received by our

employees other than Mr Sabharwal with respect to the purchase rights that have been granted to them equals

up to an aggregate of $495000 If this proposal is not approved by the stockholders the current offering period

will terminate and no shares of our Common Stock will be issued to Mr Sabharwal or the employees pursuant to

their purchase rights

The Board of Directors recommends vote FOR the approval of the amendment of NaviSites

Amended and Restated 1999 Employee Stock Purchase Plan
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PROPOSAL NO

Ratification of Appointment of Independent

Registered Public Accounting Firm

The audit committee of the Board of Directors of NaviSite the Audit Committee has selected KPMG

LLP as our independent registered public accounting firm to audit our financial statements for the fiscal year

ending July 31 2010 KPMG LLP has audited our financial statements for each fiscal year since our inception

If the stockholders do not ratify the selection of KPMG LLP as our independent registered public accounting

firm the Audit Committee will reconsider its selection Even if the appointment is ratified the Audit

Committee in its discretion may direct the appointment of different independent registered public

accounting firm at any time during the year if the Audit Committee determines that such change would be in

our and our stockholders best interests representative of KPMG LLP is expected to be present at the

Annual Meeting will have the opportunity to make statement if he or she desires to do so and will be

available to respond to appropriate questions from stockholders

The Board of Directors recommends vote FOR the ratification of the appointment of KPMG LLP

as NaviSites independent registered public accounting firm for the fiscal year ending July 31 2010

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE AND BOARD MATTERS

Independence of Members of the Board of Directors

The Board of Directors has determined that each of Messrs James Dennedy Thomas Evans and Lany

Schwartz constituting majority of our directors is an independent director as defined in the rules of the

Nasdaq Stock Market and none of Messrs Dennedy Evans and Schwartz has material relationship with us

other than by virtue of his service on the Board

Board and Committee Meetings

The Board of Directors held four meetings during the fiscal year ended July 31 2009 Each incumbent

director attended at least 75% of the aggregate of the total number of meetings of the Board and the total

number of meetings of the coniniittees on which he served We strongly encourage all directors to attend the

annual meeting of stockholders All members of the Board attended the 2008 annual meeting of stockholders

Conimittees of the Board of Directors

The Board of Directors has designated two principal standing committees the Audit Committee and the

GNC Committee the latter of which replaced our Compensation Committee on April 24 2007 The current

members of the Audit Conmiittee and the GNC Conmiittee are identified in the following table

Name Audit Committee GNC Committee

James Dennedy Chair

Thomas Evans

Larry Schwartz Chair

Audit Committee

The Board of Directors has standing Audit Committee established in accordance with Section 3a58A
of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 as amended the Exchange Act The Audit Committee assists the

Board in fulfilling its responsibilities to stockholders concerning our fmancial reporting and internal controls

The Audit Committee facilitates open communication among the Audit Committee the Board our independent

registered public accounting firm and our management The Audit Committee discusses with our management

and our independent registered public accounting firm the financial information that we develop our systems

of internal controls and our audit process The Audit Conmiittee is solely and directly responsible for

appointing evaluating retaining and where necessary terminating the engagement of our independent
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registered public accounting firm The independent registered public accounting firm meets with the Audit

Conmiittee both with and without the
presence

of our management to review and discuss various matters

pertaining to the audit including our financial statements the report of the independent registered public

accounting firm on the results scope and terms of their work and their recommendations concerning our

financial practices controls procedures and policies

The Audit Conmtittee pre-approves all audit services to be provided to us by the principal auditor and all

other services including reviewing attestation and non-audit services to be provided to us by the independent

registered public accounting firm

The Audit Committee is charged with establishing procedures for the receipt retention and treatment

of complaints that we receive regarding accounting internal accounting controls or auditing matters and ii the

confidential anonymous submission by our employees of concerns regarding questionable accounting or

auditing matters The Audit Committee reviews all related-party transactions on an ongoing basis and all such

transactions must be approved by the Audit Committee The Audit Committee is authorized without further

action by the Board to engage independent legal accounting and other advisors as it deems necessary or

appropriate to carry out its responsibilities The Board has adopted written charter for the Audit Committee

copy of which is available on our website www.navisite.com

The Board of Directors has determined that all of the members of the Audit Committee are independent

as defined under the rules of the Nasdaq Stock Market and that the Audit Conmiittee members meet the

independence requirements contemplated by RUle 1OA-3 under the Exchange Act The Board has determined

that James Dennedy is an audit committee financial expert as defined in Item 407d5 of Regulation S-K
During the last fiscal year the Audit Committee held 10 meetings

GNC Committee

The GNC Committee assists the Board of Directors in fulfilling its responsibilities relating to the

compensation of NaviSites executive officers ii the director-nomination process and iii the review of our

compliance with NASDAQ and SEC corporate-governance requirements The Board has adopted written

charter for the GNC Committee copy of which is available on our website www.navisite.com The Board

has determined that all members of the GNC Committee are independent as defined under the rules of the

Nasdaq Stock Market During the last fiscal year the GNC Committee held seven meetings

The GNC Committee determines salaries incentives and other forms of compensation for our chief

executive officer and the other executive officers of NaviSite and reviews and makes recommendations to the

Board of Directors with respect to director compensation In addition the ONC Committee administers our

stock-incentive compensation and equity-based plans

The ONC Committee annually reviews and
approves

the compensation of all of our executive officers In

its review the GNC Committee assesses the competitiveness of our executive-compensation program by

comparing our pay practices with those of other companies whose business and financial condition are similar

to ours Please see Compensation Discussion and Analysis Benchmarking below for further details In

determining individual salaries and bonuses the GNC Committee considers overall corporate performance

business-unit performance individual performance and an individuals historical salary and bonus levels

The GNC Committee adopted written Policy Regarding Compensation of Executive Officers the

Compensation Policy in 2007 Under the Compensation Policy the aggregate compensation of our

executive officers including annual base salary target bonus and long-term incentive compensation is

reviewed by the GNC Committee annually

In July 2007 we retained DolmatConnell Partners as an independent advisor reporting to the GNC
Committee on executive-compensation matters DolmatConnell Partners was engaged to complete

competitive analysis of our executive-compensation program and to provide an update to the executive

compensation analysis in fiscal 2009 DolmatConnell Partners provided an executive- and Board-compensa

tion analysis developed an appropriate data source for comparative purposes presented market-competitive

long-term-incentive stock-grant practices reviewed stock-ownership guidelines and alternatives to stock

12



granting practices developed long-term-incentive strategies and developed allocation guidelines in fiscal 2009

In fiscal 2009 DolmatConnell Partners provided an update to the executive-compensation analysis reviewed

all of the elements of compensation and provided recommendations to the GNC Committee on each element

of compensation

The GNC Committee makes all determinations affecting the compensation for our executive officers

including our chief executive officer or CEO The GNC Committee receives our CEOs recommendations

with respect to all components of our executive officers compensation The GNC Committee expressly retains

the right to exercise its discretion in modifying any adjustments or awards recommended by the CEO In the

case of our CEOs compensation the GNC Committee conducts its own evaluation of his performance and

does not request any recommendation from our CEO regarding his compensation Ultimately the GNC
Conmiittee reserves for itself discretion with respect to all compensation of our executive officers

The GNC Committee makes recommendations to the Board of Directors concerning all facets of the

process for selecting director nominees Generally the GNC Committee identifies candidates for director

nominees in consultation with our management and the independent members of the Board through the use of

search firms or other advisers through the recommendations submitted by stockholders or through such other

methods as the GNC Committee deems to be helpful to identify candidates Once candidates have been

identified the GNC Committee confirms that the candidates meet the qualifications for director nominees

established by the Board The GNC Committee may gather information about the candidates through

interviews questionnaires background checks or any other means that the GNC Committee deems to be

helpful in the evaluation process The GNC Committee meets to discuss and evaluate the qualities and skills

of each candidate both on an individual basis and taking into account the overall composition and needs of

the Board Upon selection of qualified candidate the GNC Committee would recommend the candidate for

consideration by the full Board

In considering whether to include any particular candidate in the Boards slate of recommended director

nominees the Board will consider the candidates integrity education business acumen knowledge of our

business and industry experience diligence conflicts of interest and ability to act in the interests of all

stockholders The Board does not assign specific weights to particular criteria and no particular criterion is

prerequisite for each prospective nominee We believe that the backgrounds and qualifications of our directors

considered as group should provide composite mix of experience knowledge and abilities that will allow

the Board to fulfill its responsibilities The GNC Committee will consider director candidates who are

recommended by our stockholders Such recommendation for nomination must be in writing and include the

following

the name and address of the stockholder making the recommendation

the number of shares of Common Stock that such stockholder owns beneficially and holds of record

the name and address of the individual recommended for consideration as director nominee

the principal occupation and experience of the director nominee

the total number of shares of Common Stock that the stockholder making the recommendation will vote

for the director nominee and

written statement from the stockholder making the recommendation stating whether the director

nominee has indicated his or her willingness to serve if elected and why such recommended candidate

would be able to fulfill the duties of director

Nominations must be sent to the attention of the chairman of the GNC Committee by U.S mail courier

or expedited delivery service to NaviSite Inc 400 Minuteman Road Andover Massachusetts 01810 Attn

Chairman GNC Committee The chairman of the GNC Committee will then provide the nomination to the

GNC Committee for consideration Assuming that the required material has been provided on timely basis

the GNC Committee will evaluate stockholder-recommended candidates by following substantially the same

process and applying substantially the same criteria as it follows for candidates submitted by others
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Stockholder Communications with the Board of Directors

Stockholders may communicate with the Board of Directors by sending written communications to the

Board or any individual member of the Board to the following address Board of Directors do Secretary

NaviSite Inc 400 Minuteman Road Andover Massachusetts 01810 The Secretary will forward all such

correspondence accordingly except for mass mailings job inquiries surveys business solicitations or

advertisements personal grievances matters as to which we tend to receive repetitive or duplicative

communications or patently offensive or otherwise inappropriate material

MANAGEMENT

Officers are appointed annually by the Board of Directors and serve at the discretion of the Board Set

forth below is information regarding our current executive officers

Name Age Position

Arthur Becker 59 Chief Executive Officer President and Director

James Pluntze 48 Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer

Brooks Borcherding 42 Senior Vice President of Sales and Chief Revenue

Officer

Mark Clayman 40 Senior Vice President of Enterprise Sales

Denis Martin 51 Executive Vice President and Chief Technology

Officer

Sumeet Sabharwal 36 Senior Vice President of Global Delivery

Rathin Sinha 51 President of Americas Job Exchange Inc

Mark Zingale 49 General Counsel

Arthur Becker has served as director of NaviSite since September 2002 and its chief executive officer

and president since February 2003 From 2000 to 2003 Mr Becker served as vice chairman and director of

CBT predecessor-in-interest to Atlantic Investors LLC Mr Becker is also co-founder of Atlantic

Investors LLC holder of approximately 37% of the outstanding shares of our Common Stock as of the

Record Date Since 1999 Mr Becker has been the managing member of Madison Technology LLC an

investment fund that is focused on technology and telecommunications companies Madison Technology LLC

is managing member of Atlantic Investors LLC

James Pluntze has served as our chief financial officer and treasurer since January 2007 Mr Pluntze

first joined NaviSite in 2002 as director and as the chairman of the Audit Committee From March 2003

until May 2005 Mr Pluntze served as our acting chief financial officer and from May 2005 until January

2007 Mr Pluntze served as our senior vice president of finance

Brooks Borcherding has served as our senior vice president of sales and chief revenue officer since

April 2009 From April 2007 through April 2009 Mr Borcherding served as the strategy planning and

operations director of Cisco Systems Inc where he was responsible for strategy planning and business

developments and sales operations for its Enterprise East division with focus on driving revenue From

March 2005 through April 2007 Mr Borcherding served as practice leader of unified communications at

Cisco Systems Inc From August 2004 through March 2005 Mr Borcherding served as the global solutions

director of Avaya Inc global leader in business communications

Mark Clayman has served as our senior vice president of enterprise sales since August 2009 Mr Clayman

first joined NaviSite in June 2004 as vice president of hosting and as our chief information officer through the

acquisition of Surebridge Inc From June 2004 through June 2006 Mr Clayman served as our senior vice

president of hosting services From June 1999 through June 2004 Mr Clayman served as vice president and

the chief information officer of Surebridge Inc leading application outsourcer

Sumeet Sabharwal has served as our senior vice president of global delivery since July 2005

Mr Sabharwal first joined NaviSite in September 2004 as vice president of global delivery From November
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2003 through September 2004 Mr Sabharwal was vice president and managing director at Intrasphere

Technologies leading consulting firm that provides business-focused services and solutions to life-sciences

organizations where he led their global-delivery operations

Rathin Sinha has served as president of Americas Job Exchange Inc wholly-owned subsidiary of

NaviSite since September 2009 Mr Sinha first joined NaviSite on June 2007 as senior vice president

and our chief marketing officer From September 2003 through May 2007 Mr Sinha was an employee of

Monster.com where he initially served as vice president of business development and then served as the

general manager of the eCommerce division of Monster.com where he built and expanded the direct-to-cus

tomer channel

Mark Zingale has served as general counsel of NaviSite since August 2009 From 2007 through August

2009 Mr Zingale was corporate attorney in the Corporate and Venture Capital/Emerging Growth Companies

practice groups at Sonnenschein Nath Rosenthal LLP From 2005 through 2007 Mr Zingale was an attorney

at Latham Watkins LLP and from 1998 through 2005 Mr Zingale was an attorney at Cravath Swaine

Moore LLP

EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

Compensation Discussion and Analysis

Compensation Philosophy and Objectives

We place great deal of importance on recruiting hiring retaining and motivating high-quality personnel

Our executive-compensation program has three objectives to align the interests of our executive officers

with the interests of our stockholders by basing significant portion of an executives compensation on our

performance ii to attract and retain talented executive officers who can contribute to our success and iii to

provide incentives for superior performance by our executives Historically we have chosen to achieve these

objectives through salary increases cash and stock bonuses and periodic grants of equity awards

Compensation Elements

Elements of compensation for our executive officers include

base salary

annual bonuses

long-term-incentive equity awards

employee benefits and

perquisites and personal benefits

Our policy for allocating between currently paid and long-term compensation is to ensure adequate base

compensation to attract and retain our personnel while providing incentives to maximize our long-term value

for our stockholders While we do not adhere to rigid formulas or targets in determining the mix of

compensation elements the GNC Committee has determined that base salaries should be at the Peer Group as

defined below 25th percentile target bonuses should be at the Peer Group 75th percentile and annual long-

term-incentive compensation should be at the Peer Group 50th percentile We incorporate flexibility into our

compensation structure to respond to the changing business environment and needs of NaviSite

Base Salaries competitive base salary is the foundation of our compensation structure and we believe

that it is required to attract retain and motivate the executive officers in alignment with our business strategies

Our GNC Committee reviews base salaries of our executive officers in the context of existing salaries except

in cases of promotions or significant increases in responsibilities In fiscal 2009 our GNC Committee reviewed

our executive officers base salaries and determined not to approve base salary increase for any of our

executive officers including each of our Named Executive Officers
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Annual Bonuses significant portion of the direct cash compensation for our executive officers consists

of annual incentive bonuses Our GNC Committee established target bonus opportunity for each of our

executive officers for fiscal 2009 under our FY 2009 Executive Incentive Program 2009 MBP Target

bonus opportunities are expressed as percentage of the base salary paid to the executive officer during that

fiscal year For fiscal 2009 the target bonus percentages for the Named Executive Officers were 75% for

Mr Becker ii 66.7% for Mr Clayman iii 50% for Mr Sabharwal iv 50% for Mr Sinha and 44% for

Mr Pluntze The GNC Conmiittee generally selects bonus amounts for the executive officers such that the

target bonus opportunity approximates the 75th percentile of comparable positions at our peer companies

The 2009 MBP was designed to recognize and reward the achievement of financial business and

management goals that are essential to our success For Messrs Becker Pluntze and Sabharwal the bonus

payments under the 2009 MBP could have ranged from 0% to 130% of an individuals target bonus based on

business and individual performance and the discretion of the GNC Committee For Mr Clayman the bonus

payments under the 2009 MBP could have ranged from 0% to 145% of his target bonus based on business

and individual performance and the discretion of the GNC Committee For Mr Sinha the bonus payments

under the 2009 MBP could have ranged from 0% to 100% based on business and individual performance and

the discretion of the GNC Committee The 2009 MBP design contemplated both financial achievements and

personal goals and objectives in order to compute the percentage of target achieved

For Messrs Becker Clayman and Pluntze there was one financial metric upon which the 2009 MBP was

based Target was the achievement of $45000000 of EBITDA excluding impairment costs stock-based

compensation severance and other non-operational charges Adjusted EBITDA in fiscal 2009 For each of

Messrs B.ecker and Clayman 100% of his bonus target was dependent on meeting Target For Mr Pluntze

75% of his bonus target was based on meeting Target and 25% was based on meeting individual business

objectives

The 2009 MBP was structured so that Messrs Becker Clayman and Pluntze only earned cash bonuses if

NaviSites Adjusted EBITDA was at least 75% of Target If NaviSites Adjusted EBITDA was 75% of Target

then Messrs Becker Clayman and Pluntze would earn cash bonus equal to 70% of the portion earned

based on meeting Target plus the portion earned based on meeting individual business objectives as

applicable The bonus targets would be earned in full only if NaviSites Adjusted EBITDA was 100% of

Target Between triggering the earning of the cash bonus at the threshold percentage of 75% of Target and

the 100% achievement of Target the cash bonus earned by each of Messrs Becker Clayman and Pluntze

would be paid in linear relationship to the achievement of Target In addition each of Messrs Becker

Clayman and Pluntze had the opportunity to earn an overachievement bonus The overachievement bonus

would be paid for achievement of 101% to 110% of Target The overachievement bonus of each of

Messrs Becker Clayman and Pluntze would equal the percentage achievement above the 100% goal

Mr Pluntze would also have to meet his individual business objectives in order to earn any payout of the

overachievement bonus In no event would the overachievement bonus earned be more than 30% of the

target bonus opportunity for each of Messrs Becker and Pluntze and ii 45% of the target bonus opportunity

for Mr Clayman

For Mr Sabharwal there were two financial metrics upon which the 2009 MBP was based Target

was the achievement of $2337000 of EBITDA of the hosting-services division of NaviSite in fiscal 2009 and

Target was the achievement of $4543000 of gross revenue of the hosting-services division of NaviSite in

fiscal 2009 For Mr Sabharwal 50% of his bonus target was based on meeting Target and 50% was based on

meeting Target

The 2009 MBP was structured so that Mr Sabharwal only began to earn cash bonus if the hosting-

services divisions EBITDA was 75% of Target and the hosting-services divisions
gross revenue was 75% of

Target If the hosting-services divisions EBITDA was 75% of Target and the hosting-services divisions

gross revenue was 75% of Target then Mr Sabharwal would earn cash bonus equal to 70% of the portion

earned based on meeting Target and 70% of the portion earned based on meeting Target The bonus target

would be earned in full only if the hosting-services divisions EBITDA was 100% of Target and the hosting

services divisions
gross revenue was 100% of Target Between triggering the earning of the cash bonus at
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75% of Targets and and the 100% achievement of Targets and the cash bonus earned by Mr Sabharwal

would be paid in linear relationship to he achievement of Targets and In addition Mr Sabharwal had

the opportunity to earn an overachievement bonus The overachievement bonus would be paid for achievement

of 101% to 110% of Target Mr Sabharwals overâchievement bonus would equal the percentage

achievement above the 100% goal In no event would the overachievement bonus earned be more than 30% of

the target bonus opportunity for Mr Sabharwal

For Mr Sinha there were three financial/performance metrics upon which the 2009 MBP was based

Target was the achievement of $45000000 of NaviSites Adjusted EBITDA in fiscal 2009 Target

was the achievement of 1700 inbound leads and 1200 outbound leads in fiscal 2009 and Target was the

achievement of $1800000 of bookings for Americas Job Exchange in fiscal 2009 and $1400000 of

gross revenue of Americas Job Exchange in fiscal 2009 For Mr Sinha 30% of his bonus target was based on

meeting Target 20% was based on meeting Target and 50% was based on meeting Target

The 2009 MBP was structured so that Mr Sinha only began to earn cash bonus if NaviSites

Adjusted EBITDA was 75% of Target ii 1700 inbound leads and 1200 outbound leads were generated in

fiscal 2009 iii the Americas Job Exchange divisions bookings was 75% of Target and iv the Americas

Job Exchange divisions gross revenue was 75% of Target If NaviSites Adjusted EBITDA was 75% of

Target 1700 inbound leads and 1200 outbound leads were generated the Americas Job Exchange

divisions bookings was 75% of Target and the Americas Job Exchange divisions gross revenue was 75%

of Target then Mr Sinha would earn cash bonus equal to 70% of the portion earned based on meeting

Target 100% of the portion earned based on meeting Target and 70% of the portion earned based on

meeting Target The bonus target would be earned in full only if NaviSites Adjusted EBITDA was 100% of

Target 1700 inbound leads and 1200 outbound leads were generated in fiscal 2009 the Americas Job

Exchange divisions bookings was 75% of Target and the Americas Job Exchange divisions gross revenue

was 75% of Target Between triggering the earning of the cash bonus at 75% of Targets and and 100%

of Target and the 100% achievement of Targets and the cash bonus earned by Mr Sinha would be

paid in linear relationship to the achievement of Targets and

In addition under the 2009 MBP Mr Sinha had the opportunity to earn sales commission equal to

$0.50 for every $1.00 of new logo monthly recurring revenue derived from certain customers in fiscal 2009

Actual payments earned by the Named Executive Officers under the 2009 MBP are set forth in the

Summary Compensation Table and reflect that Mr Becker achieved approximately 71% of his overall

target bonus ii Mr Clayman achieved approximately 71% of his overall target bonus iiiMr Pluntze

achieved approximately 72% of his overall target bonus iv Mr Sabharwal achieved approximately 80% of

his overall target bonus and Mr Sinha achieved approximately 84% of his overall target bonus In addition

Mr Sinha earned an $8482 sales commission in fiscal 2009

Long-Term Equity Incentives The GNC Committee believes that placing portion of an executives total

compensation in the form of restricted stock achieves three objectives it aligns the interests of our

executive officers directly with those of our stockholders ii it gives executive officers significant long-term

interest in our success and iii it helps us retain key executive officers In determining the number and terms

of shares to grant an executive officer the GNC Committee will primarily consider the executive officers past

performance and the degree to which an incentive for long-term performance would benefit NaviSite The

GNC Committee also considers the total number of shares reserved for issuance under our stock-incentive

plans our projected hiring needs for the near future and our recent performance

Beginning in fiscal 2008 under our Compensation Policy long-term-incentive compensation for our

executive officers is comprised of grants of shares of restricted stock the Annual Restricted Stock

Grants The terms and number of shares subject to the Annual Restricted Stock Grants will be determined

by the GNC Committee each year The effective grant date for fiscal 2009 was July 22 2008 The GNC

Committee has not yet determined the terms or number of shares subject to the Annual Restricted Stock Grant

for fiscal 2010
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The GNC Committee approved the fiscal 2009 Annual Restricted Stock Grant on July 22 2008 The

restricted shares were granted under the Amended and Restated 2003 Stock Incentive Plan The restrictions

lapse as follows for the first 1/3 of the shares 50% vests upon NaviSite exceeding market capitalization of

$182330695 for 20 consecutive trading days and so long as the employee remains employed by NaviSite as

of each vesting date the remaining 50% of such /3 vests one year thereafter ii for the second V3 of the

shares 50% vests upon NaviSite exceeding market capitalization of $232330695 for 20 consecutive trading

days and so long as the employee remains employed by NaviSite as of each vesting date the remaining 50%

of such 1A vests one year thereafter and iii for the final Y3 of the shares 50% vests upon NaviSite exceeding

market capitalization of $282330695 for 20 consecutive trading days and so long as the employee remains

employed by NaviSite as of each vesting date the remaining 50% of such 1/3 vests one year thereafter If the

performance targets are not met the restricted shares will be forfeited to NaviSite on the 10th anniversary of

the grant date or if the employees employment with NaviSite ends before then earlier

These shares of restricted stock are not subject to any separation or change-of-control agreement that

NaviSite currently has in place with any of the executive officers nor will such shares accelerate in accordance

with the provisions of any such separation or change-of-control agreement If there is change of control that

results in market capitalization exceeding $182330695 then 100% of the first 1/3 of the shares will vest

immediately so long as the employee remains employed by NaviSite as of such date with the remainder of

the shares being forfeited ii $232330695 then 100% of the first and second /3 of the shares will vest

immediately so long as the employee remains employed by NaviSite as of such date with the remainder of

the shares being forfeited or ii $282330695 then 100% of all of the shares will vest immediately so long

as the employee remains employed by NaviSite as of such date

The 2009 Annual Restricted Stock Grant is set forth in the Outstanding Equity Awards at 2009 Fiscal

Year End table and reflects that the performance targets were not met as of July 31 2009 and they have not

been met as of the date of this Proxy Statement The Named Executive Officers received the following number

of shares of restricted stock pursuant to the 2009 Annual Restricted Stock Grant Mr Becker received

277000 shares of restricted stock ii Messrs Clayman and Pluntze each received 120000 shares of restricted

stock iii Mr Sabharwal received 70000 shares of restricted stock and iv Mr Sinha received 50000 shares

of restricted stock

Employee Benefits We sponsor the following benefits under which our executive officers and other

eligible employees may participate The cost of such
coverage

for employees and their dependents is partially

borne by the executives or employees and depends on the
coverage

elected Eligibility for participation is upon

hire and most benefits include prerequisite of working 30 hours or more per
week on consistent basis

Health Insurance We offer an HMO plan and PPO plan each of which provides for in- and

out-of-network coverage

Dental Insurance We provide 100% coverage for preventative care 80% for basic restorative care and

50% for major restorative care The deductible is $50 and $150 per calendar year for basic restorative

care or major restorative care respectively Orthodontic care is covered at 50% up to $1500 per

persons lifetime

Vision We offer hardware reimbursement for glasses lenses and contact lenses up to $150 per person

and $400 per family We do not charge our employees any premium

Life Insurance and Accidental Death and Dismemberment We provide life-insurance benefit equal to

twice the employees base annual salary not to exceed $500000 total coverage and excluding

commission bonus and overtime in the calculation 100% paid NaviSite We also offer supplemental

life insurance and insurance covering accidental death and dismemberment Costs are borne by the

executive or employee

STDILTD Short- and Long-Term Disability We bear the cost of these policies and offer our

employees the option of buying the benefit free of tax
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FSA Flexible Spending Account for Health- and Dependent-Care Costs This benefit allows employ

ees and executives to use pre-tax dollars to cover certain
expenses not covered by insurance

401k Plan All of our employees who work in the U.S are eligible to participate in our 401k plan if

they meet eligibility requirements They can contribute into the plan on pre-tax basis up to 50% of

their total income including commission bonus and overtime from NaviSite subject to maximum

aggregate annual contribution imposed by the IRS We currently have no employer match

Employee-Assistance Program We offer confidential hotline and website assistance that is available

24 hours day seven days week

The GNC Committees Process

Our GNC Conimittee annually reviews and approves the compensation of all of our executive officers as

we descnbe in the Corporate Governance and Board Matters GNC Committee section above In addition

last year our GNC Committee adopted the Compensation Policy which we describe in the Corporate

Governance and Board Matters GNC Committee section above

Compensation Consultant

In fiscal 2009 NaviSite retained DolmatConnell Partners as an independent advisor reporting to the

GNC Committee on executive compensation matters DolmatConnell Partners role is further described in

the Corporate Governance and Board Matters GNC Committee section above

Benchmarking

Our GNC Committee used benchmark data to review and to help determine the appropriate amount of

each executive officer compensation DolmatConnell Partners selected benchmark compames which we

refer to as the Peer Group These companies were selected to reflect similar business product and service

similar size targeted customer segments and the markets for executive talent most applicable to NaviSite The

Peer Group was updated in fiscal 2009 to better represent NaviSites market for executive talent The GNC
Committee used the companies in the Peer Group to venfy and determine competitive pay levels for certain of

our executive officers including Messrs Becker Pluntze and Smha The compames in the Peer Group are

Analysts International Corporation

Art Technology Group Inc

Diamond Management Technology Consultants Inc

Edgewater Technology Inc

Imergent Inc

Internap Network Services Corporation

INX Inc

iPass Inc

Limelight Networks Inc

Perficient Inc

QAD Inc

RCM Technologies Inc

Switch Data Facilities Company Inc

TeleCommunication Systems Inc

Terremark Worldwide Inc
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Vignette Corporation and

XETA Technologies Inc

second data source comprised of compensation-survey data from the Radford Executive Survey was

used to assess the cash compensation of certain of our executive officers including Messrs Clayman and

Sabharwal

The GNC Committee examined the
range

of benchmark-company data for each executive officers

position The benchmark-data criteria examined along with our datas position relative to that of the Peer

Group for fiscal 2009 to the date of the examination follow

NaviSite Position

Relative to Peer Group

Criterion Percentile

Annual run rate 50th 75th

Equity outstanding

Total stock-option overhang 50th 75th

Base salaries 25th

Bonus targets
75th

Annual long-term-incentive compensation 50th 75th

Target total cash compensation 25th

Annual equity participation 50th

Actual total direct compensation 50th

The annual run rate which for us was 4.4% for the period examined is the number of stock options and

full-value shares granted divided by the number of shares of Common Stock outstanding the equity out

standing consists of stock options and restricted shares as percentage of shares outstanding and the total

stock-option overhang which for us was 24.8% for the period examined equals the total number of stock

options granted plus those remaining to be granted as percentage of the total shares outstanding

Role of Executive Officers in Compensation Decisions

Our chief executive officer provides recommendations with respect to all components of our executive

officers compensation to our GNC Committee as is described in the Corporate Governance and Board

Matters GNC Committee section above

Executive-Officer Agreements

We have employment indemnification and separation agreements with each of our executive officers

Under the separation agreements these officers will be entitled to receive severance benefits upon termination

by NaviSite without cause or by the executive officer for good reason following change in control See

Employment Agreements and Potential Payments upon Termination or Change in Control below for

more detailed description of these agreements We believe that the potential benefits provided by these

agreements will help assure that our executive officers can give their full attention and dedication to our

business free from distractions caused by personal uncertainties and risks related to pending or threatened

change in control ii assure our executive officers objectivity in considering shareholders interests

iii assure our executive officers of fair treatment in case of involuntary termination following change in

control and iv attract and retain key executive talent

Tax and Accounting Considerations

Deductibility of Executive Compensation Section 162m of the Code generally disallows federal

income tax deduction to public companies for certain compensation over $1000000 paid to certain officers

Qualifying performance-based compensation will not be subject to the deduction limit if certain requirements

are met The GNC Committee intends to review the potential effects of Section 162m of the Code
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periodically and structure our equity awards in manner that is intended to avoid disallowances under

Section 162m of the Code unless the GNC Committee believes that such compliance would not be in the

best interest of us or our stockholders

Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation Beginning on August 2005 we began accounting for

stock-based payments including stock-option awards in accordance with the requirements of the Financial

Accounting Standards Board Accounting Standards Codification ASC718 formerly Statement of

Financial Accounting Standards No 123R Share Based Payment

Compensation Committee Report

The GNC Committee has reviewed and discussed the Compensation Discussion and Analysis required by

Item 402b of Regulation S-K with management Based on this review and discussion the GNC Committee

recommended to our board of directors that the Compensation Discussion and Analysis be included in

NaviSites proxy statement on Schedule 14A

By the Governance Nominating and

Compensation Committee

Larry Schwartz Chairman

James Dennedy

Thomas Evans

The information contained in the foregoing report shall not be deemed to be soliciting material or filed

or incorporated by reference into
any

of NaviSites previous or future filings with the SEC or subject to the

liabilities of Section 18 of the Exchange Act except to the extent specifically incorporated by reference into

document filed under the Securities Act of 1933 as amended the Securities Act or the Exchange Act

SUMMARY COMPENSATION TABLE

Name and Principal Position

Arthur Becker

Chief Executive Officer and

President

James Pluntze4

Chief Financial Officer and

Treasurer

Mark Clayman

Senior Vice President of

Enterprise Sales

Sumeet Sabharwal

Senior Vice President of

Global Delivery

Rathin Sinha5
President of Americas Job

Exchange

Year

2009

2008

2007

2009

2008

2007

2009

2008

2007

2009

2008

2007

2009

2008

2007

Stock

Salary Bonus Awards

$1

350000 474994

350000 501987

350000

243000 214967

243000 231661

204231

225000 64909

225000

225000

200000 37864

2Q0000

200000

200000 27045

200000

23846 250007

Option

Awards

$2

109872

367.218

55176

77159

98155

38824

96313

146815

38824

86991

119292

89532

121072

30087

Non-Equity

Incentive

Compensation

$3

186900

138944

187500

77143

47729

75000

106800

50000

106406

80200

37644

75000

927826
37644

All Other

Compensation Total

1011894

1100803

904718

590286

599549

377386

435533

371313

478221

356888

324635

394292

409359

358716

78933

Reflects our fiscal 2009 and fiscal 2008 expense for restricted-stock awards granted to the Named Execu

tive Officers Amounts reflect the compensation cost recorded in our fiscal 2009 and 2008 consolidated

financial statements for each named individual in accordance with U.S GAAP Please refer to footnote

2o in our consolidated financial statements filed on Form 10-K for fiscal 2009 and footnote 2n in our
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consolidated financial statements filed on Form 10-K for fiscal 2008 These amounts reflect our accounting

expense for these awards and do not correspond to the actual value that might be realized by the named

individuals

Reflects our fiscal 2009 fiscal 2008 and fiscal 2007 expense for stock-option awards granted to the Named

Executive Officers Amounts reflect the compensation cost recorded in our fiscal 2009 fiscal 2008 and fis

cal 2007 consolidated financial statements for each named individual and includes grants made in previous

years for which compensation expense is required to be recognized in accordance with U.S GAAP The

expense has been calculated based on the grant-date fair value of the respective awards using Black

Scholes option-pricing model Please refer to footnote 2o in our consolidated financial statements filed

on Form 10-K for fiscal 2009 footnote 2n in our consolidated financial statements filed on Form 10-K

for fiscal 2008 and footnote 3m in our consolidated financial statements filed on Form 10-K for fiscal

2007 These amounts reflect our accounting expense for these awards and do not correspond to the actual

value that might be realized by the named individuals

Amounts in fiscal 2009 were earned under our 2009 MBP See Compensation Discussion and Analysis

for discussion of our 2009 MBP Amounts in fiscal 2008 were earned under our FY 2008 Executive

Management Bonus Program Amounts in fiscal 2007 were earned under our FY 2007 Executive Manage

ment Bonus Program

Mr Pluntze was promoted to Chief Financial Officer on January 2007

Mr Sinha joined NaviSite on June 2007

Includes an $8482 sales commission earned by Mr Sinha in fiscal 2009

Represents guaranteed bonus payment pursuant to Mr Sinhas employment offer letter

The following table sets forth the details of awards granted to each of the Named Executive Officers

during fiscal 2009

GRANTS OF PLAN-BASED AWARDS FOR FISCAL 2009

Estimated Future Payouts Under

Non-Equity Incentive Plan

Awards1

Grant Threshold Target Maximum

Arthur Becker 183750 262500 341250

James Pluntze 74844 106920 138996

Mark Clayman 105000 150000 217500

Sumeet Sabharwal 70000 100000 130000

Rathin Sinha3 70000 100000 100000

Non-equity awards are made pursuant to our 2009 MBP The threshold amount is 70% of target and assumes

that 75% of each financial metric target was met If Named Executive Officer did not meet 75% of his

financial metric targets no payment would have been made to him The maximum amount that could have

been earned is 130% of target for Messrs Becker Pluntze and Sabharwal ii 145% for Mr Clayman

and iii 100% for Mr Sinha Certain of each of Named Executive Officers targets were met and the follow

ing payments were made on October 2009 pursuant to our 2009 MBP $186900 to Mr Becker which

reflects an achievement of approximately 71% of his target bonus payment ii $77143 to Mt Pluntze

which reflects an achievement of approximately 72% of his target bonus payment iii$106800 to Mr Clay

man which reflects an achievement of approximately 71% of his target bonus payment iv $80200 to

Mr Sabharwal which reflects an achievement of approximately 80% of his target bonus payment and

$84300 to Mr Sinha which reflect an achievement of approximately 84% of his target bonus payment

See Compensation Discussion and Analysis for discussion of our 2009 MBP

The GNC Committee approved the terms of the 2009 MBP on December 11 2008

Mr Sinha had the opportunity to earn sales commission equal tO $0.50 for every $1.00 of new logo

monthly recurring revenue generated by certain customers There was no threshold target or maximum
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payout amount in connection with this non-equity incentive plan In fiscal 2009 Mr Sinha earned an

$8482 sales commission

Employment Agreements

Arthur Becker

We entered into an employment agreement with Arthur Becker as of February 21 2003 pursuant to

which he is employed as our chief executive officer and president His agreement is for continuous term but

subject to the provisions described under Potential Payments upon Termination or Change in Control may
be terminated by either party at any time Pursuant to this agreement Mr Becker is entitled to receive

base salary currently $350000 per year which is reviewed by our GNC Conmiittee annually but no

more frequently than annually

an annual bonus upon our achievement of various financial and/or other goals established by the Board

of Directors and

fringe benefits including stock options and health insurance and other benefits available to our

employees

We have also entered into an indemnification agreement with Mr Becker pursuant to which he will be

indemnified by us subject to certain limitations for any liabilities incurred by him in connection with his role

as director and officer of NaviSite

Mark Clayman

We entered into an employment-offer letter with Mark Clayman as of May 19 2004 pursuant to which

he was employed as our senior vice president of hosting services Mr Clayman was promoted to Senior Vice

President of Enterprise Sales effective August 2009 Pursuant to this agreement Mr Clayman is entitled to

receive

base salary currently $225000 per year

an annual bonus upon our achievement of various financial and/or other goals established by the Board

of Directors and

fringe benefits including stock options and health insurance and other benefits available to our

employees

We have entered into an indemnification agreement with Mr Clayman pursuant to which he will be

indemnified by us subject to certain limitations for any liabilities incurred by him in connection with his role

as an officer of NaviSite

James Pluntze

We entered into an employment-offer letter with James Pluntze as of April 2003 pursuant to which

he was employed as our vice president of finance and acting chief financial officer Mr Pluntze was promoted

to Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer effective January 2007 Pursuant to this agreement Mr Pluntze is

entitled to receive

base salary currently $243000 per year

an annual bonus upon our achievement of various financial and/or other goals established by the Board

of Directors and

fringe benefits including stock options and health insurance and other benefits available to our

employees
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We have entered into an indemnification agreement with Mr Pluntze pursuant to which he will be

indemnified by us subject to certain limitations for any liabilities incurred by him in connection with his role

as an officer of NaviSite

Sumeet Sabharwal

We entered into an employment-offer letter with Sumeet Sabharwal as of September 17 2004 pursuant

to which he was employed as our vice president of global delivery Mr Sabharwal was promoted to Senior

Vice President of Global Delivery effective July 2005 Pursuant to this agreement Mr Sabharwal is entitled

to receive

base salary currently $200000 per year

an annual bonus upon our achievement of various financial and/or other goals established by the Board

of Directors and

fringe benefits including stock options and health insurance and other benefits available to our

employees

We have entered into an indemnification agreement with Mr Sabharwal pursuant to which he will be

indemnified by us subject to certain limitations for any liabilities incurred by him in connection with his role

as an officer of NaviSite

Rathin Sinha

We entered into an employment-offer letter with Rathin Sinha as of May 2007 pursuant to which he

was employed as our senior vice president and chief marketing officer Mr Sinha was promoted to President

of Americas Job Exchange wholly-owned subsidiary of NaviSite effective September 2009 Pursuant to

this agreement Mr Sinha is entitled to receive

base salary currently $200000 per year

an annual bonus upon our achievement of various financial and/or other goals established by the Board

of Directors and

fringe benefits including stock options and health insurance and other benefits available to our

employees

We have entered into an indemnification agreement with Mr Sinha pursuant to which he will be

indemnified by us subject to certain limitations for any liabilities incurred by him in connection with his role

as an officer of NaviSite

For details regarding our obligations in the event of various potential circumstances of termination of

employment for any of our executive officers please see Potential Payments upon Termination or Change in

Control below
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The following table details unexercised options and restricted shares that have not vested for each of the

Named Executive Officers as of July 31 2009

OUTSTANDING EQUITY AWARDS AT 2009 FISCAL YEAR-END

Option Awards Stock Awards

Equity Incentive

Number of Number of Equity Incentive Plan Awards Market
Securities Securities Plan Awards Nwnber or Payout Value of

Underlying Underlying Option of Unearned Shares Unearned Shares
Unexercised Unexercised Exercise Option Units or Other Units or Other

Options Options Price Expiration Rights That Have Rights That Have
Name Exercisable Unexercisable Date Not Vested Not Vested

Arthur Becker 40000 2.55 7/9/2013 877601 119354

60000 2.55 7/10/2013 2770002 376720

400000 5.41 1/30/2014

500000 1.58 3/31/2015

103125 1.48 2/17/2016

James Pluntze 40000 2.55 7/9/2013 405001 55080

40000 2.55 7/10/2013 1200002 163200

3125 2.55 1/30/2014

16875 2.55 9/20/2014

80000 1.58 3/31/2015

22500 1.45 2/23/2016

59375 156253 4.14 11/27/2016

Mark Clayman 20000 2.55 9/20/20 14 1200002 163200

40000 4.39 6/10/2014

40000 2.44 1/4/2015

100000 1.58 3/31/2015

50000 1.45 2/22/2016

35416 145844 5.50 3/21/2017

Sumeet Sabharwal ... 40000 2.70 9/17/2014 700002 95200

40000 2.44 1/4/2015

80000 1.58 3/31/2015

50000 1.45 2/22/2016

35416 145844 5.50 3/21/2017

Rathin Sinha 66666 333345 6.70 5/31/2017 500002 68000

Restricted stock granted under the Amended and Restated 2003 Stock Incentive Plan Each grant was

divided into 60% accelerated shares and 40% non-accelerated shares The shares vest as to each third of

the original numbers of both the accelerated and non-accelerated shares on the first second and third

anniversaries respectively of the grant date of August 21 2007 If we achieved $184400000 in revenue

and $45100000 of adjusted EBITDA for fiscal 2008 the restrictions with respect to 100% of the acceler

ated shares would have automatically lapsed We did not achieve these targets so the restrictions on the

accelerated shares did not automatically lapse

Restricted stock granted under the Amended and Restated 2003 Stock Incentive Plan The restrictions

lapse as follows for the first 1/3 of the shares 50% vests upon NaviSite exceeding market capitaliza

tion of $182330695 for 20 consecutive trading days and so long as the employee remains employed by

us the remaining 50% of such 1/3 vests on the one-year anniversary thereafter ii for the second /3 of the

shares 50% vests upon NaviSite exceeding market capitalization of $232330695 for 20 consecutive

trading days and so long as the employee remains employed by us the remaining 50% of such 1/3 vests
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on the one-year anniversary thereafter and iii for the final of the shares 50% vests upon NaviSite

exceeding market capitalization of $282330695 for 20 consecutive trading days and so long as the

employee remains employed by us the remaining 50% of such 1/3 vests on the one-year anniversary there

after If there is change of control that results in market capitalization exceeding $182330695 then

100% of the first V3 of the shares will vest immediately so long as the employee remains employed by us

as of such date with the remainder of the shares being forfeited exceeding $232330695 then 100%

of the first and second V3 of the shares will vest immediately so long as the employee remains employed

by us as of such date with the remainder of the shares being forfeited or exceeding $282330695

then 100% of all of the shares will vest immediately so long as the employee remains employed by us as

of such date

Options for the purchase of approximately 1562 shares vest and become exercisable each month until they

are fully vested and exercisable on May 27 2010

Options for the purchase of approximately 1041 shares vest and become exercisable each month until they

are fully vested and exercisable on September 18 2010

Options for the purchase of approximately 2083 shares vest and become exercisable each month until they

are fully vested and exercisable on November 28 2010

The following table summarizes the vesting of stock awards for each of the Named Executive Officers

during fiscal 2009 None of the Named Executive Officers exercised any stock options in fiscal 2009

OPTION EXERCISES AND STOCK VESTED DURING FISCAL 2009

Stock Awards

Number of Shares Value Realized

Acquired on Vesting on Vesting

Name $2

Arthur Becker 43880 149192

James Pluntze 20250 68850

Mark Clayman

Sumeet Sabharwal

Rathin Sinha

Represents shares of restricted stock granted on August 21 2007 that vested on August 21 2008

Represents the fair market value of the stock award on the date of vesting

Potential Payments upon Termination or Change in Control

Arthur Becker

Under Mr Beckers employment agreement if his employment is terminated by reason of death or

disability ii by us with cause or iii due to his voluntary resignation then he will receive no additional

salary or benefits other than what has accrued through the date of termination

If Mr Beckers employment is terminated without cause and he signs general release of known and

unknown claims in form satisfactory to us Mr Becker will receive severance payments at his final base-

salary rate less applicable withholding until the earlier of six months after the date of his termination

without cause or ii the date on which he first commences other employment

Arthur Becker and James Pluntze

On April 2006 we entered into separation agreement with each of Messrs Becker and Pluntze On

July 31 2007 we and Mr Pluntze entered into new separation agreement that superseded the separation

agreement between us and Mr Pluntze dated April 2006 In December 2008 we entered into amendments to

the separation agreements with each of Messrs Becker and Pluntze as amended to date the Executive

Separation Agreements Each Executive Separation Agreement provides that if Mr Beckers or

Mr Pluntzes employment is terminated by us other than for Cause as defined below Disability as defined
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below or death or by Mr Becker or Mr Pluntze for Good Reason as defined below following Change of

Control as defined below then we shall be obligated to pay Mr Becker or Mr Pluntze as severance his

annual base salary as in effect on the date of termination for period of six months ii lump-sum bonus

payment equal to his target bonus for the current fiscal year pro
rated to the date of termination iii any

unpaid bonus from the prior fiscal year iv all legal fees and
expenses incurred by Mr Becker or Mr Pluntze

in seeking to obtain or enforce any right provided by the Executive Separation Agreement and if he elects

COBRA coverage to continue health and welfare benefits reimbursement for COBRA payments for period

of six months Neither Mr Becker nor Mr Pluntze will be entitled to the foregoing benefits if an equivalent

benefit is received by him from another employer during the six-month period following his termination

The Executive Separation Agreements also provide that following Change of Control as defined

below of NaviSite all options and shares of restricted stock issued to Mr Becker or Mr Pluntze under our

Amended and Restated 2003 Stock Incentive Plan or any other NaviSite stock-incentive plan will become

exercisable and vested in full on the date of the Change of Control However the shares of restricted stock

granted to Mr Becker and Mr Pluntze pursuant to the 2009 Annual Restricted Stock Grant are not subject to

any separation or change-of-control agreement that NaviSite currently has in place with either of them and

will not accelerate in accordance with the provisions of any such separation or change-of-control agreement

The Executive Separation Agreements are intended to comply with Section 409A of the Code

Our obligation to provide the foregoing benefits is subject to the effectiveness of general waiver and

release from Mr Becker and Mr Pluntze respectively in favor of us and our directors officers employees

representatives agents and affiliates in form satisfactory to us

Mark Clayman and Sumeet Sabharwal

On April 2006 we entered into separation agreement with each of Mr Clayman and Mr Sabharhal

which agreements were amended in December 2008 the Separation Agreements The Separation

Agreements provide that if Mr Claymans or Mr Sabharwals employment is terminated by us other than for

Cause as defined below Disability as defined below or death or by Mr Clayman or Mr Sabharwal for

Good Reason as defined below following Change of Control as defined belowand in the case of

termination by Mr Sabharwal for Good Reason such tennination occurs within 12 months following Change

of Control then we shall be obligated to pay Mr Clayman or Mr Sabharwal respectively as severance

the higher of his annual base salary in effect on the date of termination or his annual base salary in

effect immediately before the Change of Control in either case for six months ii lump-sum bonus payment

equal to his target bonus for the current fiscal
year pro

rated to the date of terminatiOn iii any unpaid bonus

from the prior fiscal year iv all legal fees and
expenses

incurred by Mr Clayman or Mr Sabharwal in

seeking to obtain or enforce any right provided by the Separation Agreements and if he elects COBRA
coverage to continue health and welfare benefits reimbursement for COBRA payments for period of six

months Neither Mr Clayman nor Mr Sabharwal will be entitled to the foregoing benefits if an equivalent

benefit is received by him from another employer during the six-month period following his termination

The Separation Agreements also provide that if Mr Claymans or Mr Sabharwals employment is

terminated by us other than for Cause as defined below Disability as defined below or death or by

Mr Clayman or Mr Sabharwal for Good Reason as defined below within 12 months following Change of

Control as defined below of NaviSite all options and shares of restricted stock issued to Mr Clayman or

Mr Sabharwal under our Amended and Restated 2003 Stock Incentive Plan or any other NaviSite stock-incentive

plan will become exercisable and vested in full on the date of termination However the shares of restricted

stock granted to Mr Clayman and Mr Sabharwal pursuant to the 2009 Annual Restricted Stock Grant are not

subject to any separation or change-of-control agreement that NaviSite currently has in place with either of them

and will not accelerate in accordance with the provisions of any such separation or change-of-control agreement

The Separation Agreements are intended to comply with Section 409A of the Code

Our obligation to provide the foregoing benefits is subject to the effectiveness of general waiver and

release from Mr Clayman or Mr Sabharwal in favor of us and our directors officers employees representa

tives agents and affiliates in form satisfactory to us
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Rathin Sinha

On September 2009 we entered into an Amended and Restated Separation Agreement with Mr Sinha

the Sinha Separation Agreement The Sinha Separation Agreement provides that if Mr Sinhas employ

ment is terminated by us other than for Cause as defined below Disability as defined below or death or by

Mr Sinha for Good Reason as defined below then we shall be obligated to pay Mr Sinha as severance

the higher of his annual base salary in effect on the date of tennination or his annual base salary in

effect immediately before Change of Control in either case for period of six months ii lump-sum

bonus payment equal to his target bonus for the current fiscal year pro
rated to the date of termination

iii any unpaid bonus from the prior fiscal year and iv if he elects COBRA coverage to continue health and

welfare benefits reimbursement for COBRA payments for period of six months Mr Sinha will not be

entitled to the foregoing benefits if an equivalent benefit is received by him from another employer during the

six-month period following his termination

The Sinha Separation Agreement also provides that following Change of Control as defined below of

NaviSite all options and shares of restricted stock issued to Mr Sinha under our Amended and Restated 2003

Stock Incentive Plan or any other NaviSite stock-incentive plan will become exercisable and vested in full on

the date of Change of Control However the shares of restricted stock granted to Mr Sinha pursuant to the

2009 Annual Restricted Stock Grant are not subject to any separation or change-of-control agreement that

NaviSite currently has in place with Mr Sinha and will not accelerate in accordance with the provisions of

any such separation or change-of-control agreement The Sinha Separation Agreement is intended to comply

with Section 409A of the Code

Our obligation to provide the foregoing benefits is subject to the effectiveness of general waiver and

release from Mr Sinha in favor of us and our directors officers employees representatives agents and

affiliates in form satisfactory to us

Definitions

Cause means an intentional act of fraud embezzlement or theft in connection with the executive officers

duties to us or in the course of the executive officers employment with us ii his willful engaging in gross

misconduct that is demonstrably and materially injurious to us iii his willful and continued failure to perform

substantially his duties with us or one of our affiliates other than any such failure resulting from incapacity due to

physical or mental illness which failure is not cured within five days after we deliver to the executive officer

written demand for substantial performance that specifically identifies the manner in which we believe that the

executive officer has not substantially performed his duties For purposes
of this definition no act or failure to act

on the executive officers part shall be deemed willful unless done or omitted to be done by the executive officer

not in good faith and without reasonable belief that his action or omission was in our best interest

Mr Sinha has 10 days in which to cure any failure after we deliver written demand for substantial

performance to him

Change of Control means the first to occur of any of the following

the acquisition by an individual entity or group within the meaning of Section 13d3 or

14d2 of the Exchange Act Person of beneficial ownership of any capital stock of NaviSite if

after such acquisition such Person beneficially owns within the meaning of Rule 3d-3 promulgated

under the Exchange Act 50% or more of either the then-outstanding shares of Common Stock of

NaviSite the Outstanding Company Common Stock or the combined voting power of the then-

outstanding securities of NaviSite entitled to vote generally in the election of directors the Outstanding

Company Voting Securities provided however that for purposes of this subsection any acquisition

directly from us shall not constitute Change in Control or

such time as the Continuing Directors as defined below do not constitute majority of the

Board or if applicable the board of directors of successor corporation to NaviSite where the term

Continuing Director means at any date member of the Board who was member of the Board on

the date of the initial adoption of the separation agreement by the Board or nominated or elected
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subsequent to such date by at least majority of the directors who were Continuing Directors at the time

of such nomination or election or whose election to the Board was recommended or endorsed by at least

majority of the directors who were Continuing Directors at the time of such nomination or election

provided however that there shall be excluded from this clause any individual whose initial

assumption of office occurred as result of an actual or threatened election contest with respect to the

election or removal of directors or other actual or threatened solicitation of proxies or consents by or on

behalf of person other than the Board or

the consummation of merger consolidation reorganization recapitalization or share exchange

involving us or sale or other disposition of all or substantially all of our assets Business

Combination unless immediately following such Business Combination each of the following two

conditions is satisfied all or substantially all of the individuals and entities who were the beneficial

owners of the Outstanding Company Common Stock and Outstanding Company Voting Securities

immediately before such Business Combination beneficially own directly or indirectly more than 50% of

the then-outstanding shares of Common Stock and the combined voting power of the then-outstanding

securities entitled to vote generally in the election of directors respectively of the resulting or acquiring

corporation in such Business Combination which shall include without limitation corporation that as

result of such transaction owns us or substantially all of our assets either directly or through one or

more subsidiaries such resulting or acquiring corporation the Acquiring Corporation in substantially

the same proportions as their ownership of the Outstanding Company Common Stock and Outstanding

Company Voting Securities respectively immediately before such Business Combination and no

Person excluding any employee-benefit plan or related trust maintained or sponsored by us or by the

Acquiring Corporation beneficially owns directly or indirectly 40% or more of either the then-

outstanding shares of common stock of the Acquiring Corporation or the combined voting power of the

then-outstanding securities of such corporation entitled to vote generally in the election of directors

except to the extent that such ownership existed before the Business Combination or

our liquidation or dissolution

Disability shall be deemed to have occurred if as result of incapacity due to physical or mental

illness the executive officer shall have been absent from the full-time performance of his duties with us for

six consecutive months and within 30 days after we give him written notice of termination by reason of

disability the executive officer shall not have returned to the full-time performance of his duties

For Mr Sinha Disability is defined as follows

Disability shall be deemed to have occurred if as result of incapacity due to physical or mental

illness Mr Sinha shall have been absent from the full-time performance of his duties with us for 45 days

whether or not consecutively within 90-day period

Good Reason means without the executive officers express written consent the occurrence after

Change of Control of us of any of the following circumstances unless in the cases of paragraphs ii iii
iv or vi such circumstances are fully corrected before the date of termination specified in the notice of

termination given in respect thereof

any significant diminution in the executive officers position duties responsibilities power or

office not solely change in title as in effect immediately before Change of Control unless such

changes are required and solely related to thereporting structures of an Acquiring Corporation

ii any reduction without the executive officers consent in his annual base salary as in effect on

the date of the separation agreement or as the same may be increased from time to time

iii the failure by us to continue in effect any material compensation or benefit plan in which the

executive officer participates immediately before the Change of Control unless an equitable arrangement

embodied in an ongoing substitute or alternative plan has been made with respect to such plan or

ii continue the executive officers participation therein or in such substitute or alternative plan on

basis not materially less favorable both in terms of the amount of benefits provided and the level of the
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executive officers participation relative to other participants as existed at the time the Change of

Control

iv our failure to continue to provide the executive officer with benefits substantially similar to

those enjoyed by him under any of our life-insurance medical health and accident or disability plans in

which he was participating at the time of the Change of Control the taking of any action by us that

would directly or indirectly materially reduce any of such benefits or our failure to provide the executive

officer with the number of paid vacation days to which he is entitled on the basis of years of service with

us in accordance with our normal vacation policy in effect at the time of the Change of Control

any requirement by us or any person in control of us that the location at which the executive

officer performs his principal duties for NaviSite be changed to new location that is outside radius of

50 miles from his principal place of employment at the time of the Change of Control or

vi our failure to obtain reasonably satisfactory agreement from any successor to assume and

agree to perform the separation agreement as contemplated in the separation agreement

In order to establish Good Reason for termination the executive officer must provide notice to us of

the existence of the condition giving rise to the Good Reason within 90 days following the initial existence

of the condition and we have 30 days following receipt of such notice to remedy such condition

For Mr Sinha Good Reason is defined as follows

Good Reason means without Mr Sinhas express written consent the occurrence of any of the

following circumstances unless in the cases of paragraphs ii iii iv or vi such circumstances

are fully corrected before the date of termination specified in the notice of termination given in respect

thereof

any significant diminution in Mr Sinhas position duties responsibilities power or office not

solely change in title unless such changes are required and solely related to the reporting structures of

an Acquiring Corporation

ii any reduction without Mr Sinhas consent in his annual base salary as in effect on the date of

the separation agreement or as the same may be increased from time to time iii our failure to

continue in effect any material compensation or benefit plan in which Mr Sinha participates

immediately before the Change of Control unless an equitable arrangement embodied in an ongoing

substitute or alternative plan has been made with respect to such plan or ii continue Mr Sinhas

participation therein or in such substitute or alternative plan on basis not materially less favorable

both in terms of the amount of benefits provided compared to the amount provided immediately before

Change of Control and the level of Mr Sinhas participation relative to other participants compared to

the level of Mr Sinhas participation relative to Other participants as in effect at any time during his

employment with us

iv our failure to continue to provide Mr Sinha with benefits substantially similar to those enjoyed

by him under any of our life-insurance medical health and accident or disability plans in which he was

participating at the time of Change of Control the taking of any action by us that would directly or

indirectly materially reduce any of such benefits or our failure to provide him with the number of paid

vacation days to which he is entitled on the basis of years
of service with us in accordance with our

normal vacation policy in effect at the time of Change of Control

any requirement by us or any person in control of us that the location at which Mr Sinha

performs his principal duties for us be changed to new location that is outside radius of 50 miles from

Mr Sinhas principal place of employment or

vi our failure to obtain reasonably satisfactory agreement from any successor to assume and

agree to perform the separation agreement as contemplated in the separation agreement In order to

establish Good Reason for termination Mr Sinha must provide notice to NaviSite of the existence of
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the condition giving rise to the Good Reason within 90 days following the initial existence of the

condition and NaviSite has 10 business days following receipt of such notice to remedy such condition

The following table summarizes payments that we would be required to make to each Named Executive

Officer under the separation agreements in the case of termination of the executive without cause and

termination related to Change of Control of us For the purposes of this table we have assumed that each

event occurred on July 31 2009 the last business day of our last completed fiscal year

Payments for Termination Payments for Termination upon
Without Cause Change of Control

Health Accelerated Health
Name Severance1 Benefits2 Severance1 Vesting3 Benefits2

Arthur Becker 437500 7475 437500 226799 7475

James Pluntze 228420 8161 228420 150051 8161

Mark Clayman 262500 687 262500 43939 687

Sumeet Sabharwal 200000 687 200000 43939 687

Rathin Sinha 200000 8161 200000 120349 8161

Severance is for six months of base pay and fiscal 2009 target bonus

Health Benefits are payments of premiums for COBRA for six months following termination

Cost to accelerate vesting of options and resthcted stock is the amount of stock compensation that would

be recorded under ASC 718

The following table summarizes compensation paid to our non-employee directors during fiscal 2009

DIRECTOR COMPENSATION FOR FISCAL 2009

Fees Earned or

Paid in Cash Stock Awards Option Awards Total
Name $1 $2
James Dennedy 63000 35402 98402

Thomas Evans 55500 35402 90902

Andrew Ruhan 51000 35402 86402

Larry Schwartz 64500 35402 99902

Amounts reflect compensation cost recorded in the fiscal 2009 consolidated financial statements for each

director with respect to stock awards granted in fiscal 2008 and fiscal 2009 As of July 31 2009 each

director held 6566 unvested shares of restricted stock The grant-date fair value of restricted stock awards

made to all directors in fiscal 2008 and fiscal 2009 was $5.50 and $0.37 per share respectively as com
puted in accordance with ASC 718 Please refer to footnote 2o in our consolidated financial statements

filed on Form 10-K for fiscal 2009 and footnote 2n in our consolidated financial statements filed on
Form 10-K for fiscal 2008 for discussion of the assumptions used in computing the grant-date fair value

of stock-based compensation awards These amounts reflect our accounting expense for these awards and

do not correspond to the actual value that might be realized by the named individuals

There was no fiscal 2009 expense for stock-option awards granted to the directors in prior years as all

stock-option awards were fully vested and exercisable in fiscal 2008

As of July 31 2009 Mr Dennedy had options vested to purchase 115000 shares of our Common Stock

As of July 31 2009 Mr Evans had options vested to purchase 95000 shares of our Common Stock

As of July 31 2009 Mr Ruhan had options vested to purchase 80000 shares of our Common Stock

As of July 31 2009 Mr Schwartz had options vested to purchase 115000 shares of our Common Stock

On August 10 2007 based upon the recommendation of the GNC Committee the Board of Directors

adopted the NaviSite Inc Amended and Restated Director Compensation Plan the Plan The Plan
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provides that each independent director and the chairman of the Board shall be paid an annual fee of $36000

In addition the Plan provides that the chairman of the GNC Committee and the chairman of the Audit

Committee shall each receive an additional annual fee of $15000 Each member of the GNC Committee and

the Audit Committee other than the chair of each such committee shall receive an additional annual fee of

$7500 and the chairman of the Board shall receive an additional annual fee of $15000 All annual fees shall

be payable in quarterly installments The Plan also provides that upon initial election to the Board each

independent director and the chairman of the Board shall receive an initial grant of 31500 shares of restricted

Common Stock The shares subject to the initial grant shall vest monthly over period of 36 months Upon

re-election to the Board each independent director and the chairman of the Board shall receive grant of

15750 shares of restricted Common Stock The members of the Audit Committee and the GNC Committee

and the committee chairs will not receive any
additional shares of restricted Common Stock as result of

their membership on such committees or position as chair of such committee The shares of restricted

Common Stock subject to the annual grant shall vest monthly over period of 12 months Upon change in

control of NaviSite the shares subject to the initial grant and the annual grant shall become fully vested

During fiscal 2009 Mr Becker was not paid for his service on the Board of Directors In accordance with

the Plan upon re-election to the Board each of Messrs Ruhan chairman Evans Dennedy and Schwartz

received grant of 15750 shares of restricted Common Stock on December 11 2008 The shares of restricted

stock vest monthly over period of 12 months In addition under the Plan we paid Mr Dennedy $58500

for his service as an independent director chairman of the Audit Committee and as member of the GNC

Committee ii Mr Evans $51000 for his service as an independent director member of the Audit

Committee and member of the 3NC Committee iiiMr Schwartz $58500 as an independent director

chairman of the GNC Committee and member of the Audit Committee and iv Mr Ruhan $51000 as

chairman of the Board Messrs Schwartz Dennedy and Evans also served on special committee in fiscal

2009 in which they evaluated possible transactions for us Mr Schwartz received $6000 as chairman of this

committee in fiscal 2009 and Messrs Dennedy and Evans each received $4500 for their service on this

committee in fiscal 2009

We do not apart from the arrangements discussed above pay any cash compensation to members of our

Board of Directors for their services as members of the Board although directors are reimbursed for their

reasonable travel expenses
incurred in connection with attending Board and committee meetings Directors

who are also our officers or employees are eligible to participate in the Amended and Restated 2003 Stock

Incentive Plan

Each member of the Board of Directors has entered into an indemnification agreement with us pursuant

to which they will be indemnified by us subject to certain limitations for any liabilities incurred by them in

connection with their role as our directors
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ADDITIONAL INFORMATION

Compensation Committee Interlocks and Insider Participation

The members of the GNC Committee are Messrs Dennedy Evans and Schwartz all of whom are

independent directors No member of the GNC Committee has relationship that would constitute an

interlocking relationship with executive officers or directors of NaviSite or another entity

Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm Fees

The following table presents fees for professional audit services rendered by KPMG LLP for the audit of our

annual financial statements for fiscal 2009 and 2008 and fees billed for other services rendered by KPMG LLP

2009 2008

Audit fees1 $686 000 987 179

Audit-related fees2 12500

Audit and audit related fees 686 000 999 679

Tax fees3 78000 70000
All other fees4

Total fees $764 000 $1 069 679

Audit fees consisted pnncipally of fees for the audit in accordance with the Standards of the Public Corn

pany Accounting Oversight Board United States and quarterly reviews of the consolidated financial state

ments The audit fee for both fiscal years also includes fees for the review of and consents included

within NaviSite registration statements and other SEC filings

Audit related fees consisted pnncipally of fees for accounting consultation on proposed transactions and

SAS 70 report which is special purpose report on the internal controls of service organization

Tax fees consisted pnncipally of fees for tax compliance tax planning and tax advice

We did not incur any other fees dunng fiscal 2009 and fiscal 2008 for products and services provided by
KPMG LLP other than those disclosed above

Policy on Audit Committee Pre-Approval of Audit and Permissible Non-Audit Services of Independent
Registered Public Accounting Firm

The Audit Committee policy is to pre approve all audit and permissible non audit services provided by
the independent registered public accounting firm These services may include audit services audit-related

services tax services and other services Pre approval is generally provided for up to one year and any pre

approval is detailed as to the particular service or category of services and generally subject to specific

budget The independent registered public accounting firm and our management are required to periodically

report to the Audit Committee regarding the extent of services provided by the independent registered public

accounting firm and the fees for the services performed to date The Audit Committee may also
pre-approve

particular services on case-by-case basis During fiscal 2009 and fiscal 2008 all services that KPMG LLP
rendered to us were pre-approved by the Audit Committee

Audit Committee Financial Expert

The Board of Directors has determined that James Dennedy is an audit committee financial expert as
defined in Item 407d5 of Regulation S-K Mr Dennedy is independent as defined in applicable Nasdaq

listing standards
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Audit Committee Report

The Audit Committee of the Board of Directors has reviewed and discussed our audited financial

statements for fiscal 2009 with our management The Audit Committee has discussed with KPMG LLP our

independent registered public accounting firm the matters required to be discussed by the Statement on

Auditing Standards No 61 The Audit Committee has received the written disclosures and the letter from

KPMG LLP required by the applicable requirements of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board

regarding the independent accountants communications with the Audit Committee concerning independence

and has discussed with KPMG LLP its independence The Audit Committee also has considered whether

KPMG LLPs provision of non-audit services to us is compatible with maintaining KPMG LLPs indepen

dence Based on the review and discussions described above among other things the Audit Committee

recommended to the Board of Directors that the audited financial statements be included in our annual report

on Form 10-K for fiscal 2009

AUDIT COMMITTEE

James Dennedy Chairman

Larry Schwartz

Thomas Evans

The information contained in the foregoing report shall not be deemed to be soliciting material or

filed or incorporated by reference into any of our previous or future filings with the SEC or subject to the

liabilities of Section 18 of the Exchange Act except to the extent specifically incorporated by reference into

document filed under the Securities Act or the Exchange Act

Certain Relationships and Related Transactions

The Audit Conmiittee has the following unwritten policies and procedures for the review and approval of

related-party transactions Related-party transactions are transactions that meet the minimum threshold for

disclosure in the proxy statement under the relevant SEC rules generally transactions involving amounts

exceeding $120000 in which related person or entity has direct or indirect material interest Related

persons include our executive officers directors beneficial owners of 5% or more of our Common Stock

immediate family members of these persons and entities in which one of these persons has direct or indirect

material interest When potential related-party transaction is identified our management presents it to the

Audit Committee to determine whether to approve or ratify it

The Audit Committee reviews the material facts of any related-party transaction and either approves or

disapproves of entering into the transaction In the course of reviewing the related-party transaction the Audit

Committee considers whether the transaction is fair and reasonable to us ii under all of the circumstances

the transaction is in or not inconsistent with our best interests and iii the transaction will be on terms no

less favorable to us than we could have obtained in an arms-length transaction with an unrelated third party

If advance approval
of related-party transaction is not feasible then the transaction will be considered and if

the Audit Committee determines it to be appropriate ratified by the Audit Committee No director may

participate in the Audit Committees consideration or approval of transaction with respect to which he or she

is related party

The Audit Committee reviews any amendments and changes to approved related-party transactions and

annually reviews ongoing related-party transactions in each case for reasonableness and fairness to us

ClearBlue Technologies UK Limited and Global Marine Systems

Beginning April 2004 we entered into an outsourcing agreement with ClearBlue Technologies UK
Limited ClearBlue whereby we provide certain management services as well as manage the day-to-day

operations as required by ClearBlues customers contracts We charge ClearBlue monthly fee of 4700

plus 20% of gross profit which is revenue collected from ClearBlue customers less applicable monthly fees

but if such calculation is less than $0 100% of the gross profit remains with ClearBlue In addition we
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provide hosting services for Global Marine Systems During fiscal 2009 we generated revenue of approx
imately $113000 under these arrangements ClearBlue and Global Marine Systems are controlled by our

chairman of the Board of Directors

Vera Wang

In fiscal 2009 we performed professional services and hosting services for Vera Wang whose chief

executive officer and owner is the spouse of our chief executive officer During fiscal 2009 revenue generated
from Vera Wang was approximately $233000

Sentrum III Limited and Sentrum Services Limited

On February 2008 one of our subsidiaries NaviSite Europe Limited entered into and we
guaranteed Lease Agreement the Lease for approximately 10000 square feet of data-center

space
located in Watford Hertfordshire England with Sentrum III Limited The Lease has 10-year term NaviSite

Europe Limited and NaviSite are also parties to services agreement with Sentrum Services Limited for the

provision of services within the data center During fiscal 2009 we paid $2.4 million under these arrangements
The chairman of our Board of Directors has financial interest in each of Sentrum III Limited and Sentrum
Services Limited

Sentrum IV Limited

In November 2007 NaviSite Europe Limited entered into and we guaranteed lease-option

agreement for data-center space in Woking Surrey England with Sentrum IV Limited As part of this lease-

option agreement we made fully refundable deposit of $5 million in order to secure the right to lease the

space upon the completion of the building construction In July 2008 the final lease agreement was completed
for approximately 11000 square feet of data-center space After July 31 2008 the deposit was returned to us
The chairman of our Board of Directors has financial interest in Sentrum IV Limited In September 2009 the

parties terminated this arrangement

The Audit Committee approved or ratified each of the transactions mentioned above

Section 16a Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance

Section 16a of the Exchange Act requires our directors and executive officers and persons who own
more than 10% of registered class of our equity securities collectively Reporting Persons to file reports
of beneficial ownership and changes in beneficial ownership with the SEC Based solely upon review of copies
of such reports or other written representations from Reporting Persons we believe that during fiscal 2009
all Reporting Persons complied with all applicable requirements of Section 16a of the Exchange Act There

are no known failures to file required Form Form or Form

Annual Report on Form 10-K

copy of our annual report on Form 10-K with the consolidated financial statements and all exhibits
for fiscal 2009 filed with the SEC may be accessed from the SECs website www.sec.gov or obtained

without charge upon written request to NaviSite Inc 400 Minuteman Road Andover Massachusetts 01810
Attention Investor Relations

Other Matters

The Board of Directors does not know of any other matters that may come before the Annual Meeting
However if any other matters do properly come before the Annual Meeting or any adjoumments or

postponements thereof the Board intends that the persons named in the proxies will vote upon such matters in

accordance with their best judgment
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Stockholder Proposals

In accordance with Rule 14a-8 under the Exchange Act Rule 14a-8 proposals of stockholders

intended to be presented in our proxy statement and our form of proxy for our 2010 annual meeting of

stockholders must be received by us no later than July 2010 in order to be included in our proxy statement

and form of proxy relating to that meeting

Under our Bylaws proposals of stockholders intended to be submitted for formal vote at our 2010

annual meeting of stockholders other than proposals intended to be included in our proxy statement and form

of proxy in accordance with Rule 14a may be made only by stockholder of record who has given notice

of the proposal to the Secretary of NaviSite at our principal executive offices no earlier than September

2010 and no later than September 18 2010

By order of the Board of Directors

THOMAS ROSEDALE

Secretary

October 30 2009
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APPENDIX

AMENDED AND RESTATED NAVISITE INC 1999 EMPLOYEE STOCK PURCHASE PLAN

The purpose of this 1999 Employee Stock Purchase Plan the Plan is to provide eligible employees of

NaviSite Inc the Company with opportunities to purchase shares of the Companys common stock
$.O1 par value the Common Stock 516666 shares of Common Stock in the

aggregate have been
approved

for this purpose This Plan is intended to qualify as an employee stock purchase plan as defined in

Section 423 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986 as amended the Code and the regulations promulgated
thereunder and shall be interpreted consistent therewith

Administration

The Plan will be administered by the Board of Directors of the Company the Board or by Committee
appointed by the Board the Committee The Board or the Committee has

authority to make rules and
regulations for the administration of the Plan and its

interpretation and decisions with regard thereto shall be
final and conclusive

Eligibility

All employees of the Company including Directors who are employees and all employees of any
subsidiary of the Company as defined in Section 424f of the Code designated by the Board or the

Conmiittee from time to time Designated Subsidiary are eligible to participate in any one or more of the

offerings of Options as defined in Section to purchase Common Stock under the Plan provided that they
are customarily employed by the Company or Designated Subsidiary for more than 20 hours week and for

more than five months in calendar year and they have been employed by the Company or Designated

Subsidiary for at least six months prior to enrolling in the Plan and they are employees of the Company or

Designated Subsidiary on the first day of the applicable Plan Period as defined below No employee may
be granted an option hereunder if such employee immediately after the option is granted owns directly or

indirectly 5% or more of the total combined voting power or value of the stock of the Company or any
subsidiary For purposes of the preceding sentence the attribution rules of Section 424d of the Code shall

apply in
determining the stock ownership of an employee and all stock which the employee has contractual

right to purchase shall be treated as stock owned by the employee

Offerings

The Company will make one or more offerings Offerings to employees to purchase stock under this

Plan Unless otherwise determined by the Board or Committee the first Offering after this amendment and
restatement is approved by the stockholders of the Company will commence on January 2008 and end on
June 30 2008 Unless otherwise determined by the Board or the Committee subsequent Offerings will

commence on the date after the end of the preceding Offering and will end on the last day of the sixth full

month thereafter Each such period is referred to as Plan Period Plan Period The Board or the
Committee may at its discretion choose different Plan Period for any Offerings

Participation

An employee eligible on the first day of any Offering an Offering Commencement Date may
participate in such

Offering by completing and forwarding payroll deduction authorization form to the

employees appropriate payroll office prior to the enrollment deadline established by the Board or Committee
The form will authorize regular payroll deduction from the Compensation received by the employee during
the Plan Period Unless an employee files new form or withdraws from the Plan his or her deductions and
purchases will continue at the same rate for future Offerings under the Plan as long as the Plan remains in
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effect The term Compensation means the amount of money reportable on the employees Federal Income

Tax Withholding Statement excluding overtime shift premium incentive or bonus awards allowances and

reimbursements for expenses such as relocation allowances for travel expenses income or gains on the

exercise of Company stock options or stock appreciation rights and similar items whether or not shown on

the employees Federal Income Tax Withholding Statement but including in the case of salespersons sales

commissions to the extent determined by the Board or the Committee

Deductions

The Company will maintain payroll deduction accounts for all participating employees With respect to

any Offering made under this Plan an employee may authorize payroll deduction in any whole percentage

not less than 1% or more than 10% or dollar amount not less than $10 or such lesser amount as the Board

or Committee shall determine before the start of each Plan Period of the Compensation he or she receives

during the Plan Period or such shorter period during which deductions from payroll are made provided that

such percentage or amount may not result in total deductions of less than $100 for any Plan Period for any

employee No employee may be granted an Option which permits his rights to purchase Common Stock under

this Plan and any other employee stock purchase plan as defined in Section 423b of the Code of the

Company and any subsidiaries to accrue at rate which exceeds $25000 of fair market value of such

Common Stock determined at the Offering Commencement Date of the Plan Period for each calendar
year

in

which the Option is outstanding at any time

Deduction Changes

An employee may decrease increase or discontinue his payroll deduction once during any Plan Period

by filing new payroll deduction authorization form If an employee elects to discontinue his payroll

deductions during Plan Period but does not elect to withdraw his funds pursuant to Section hereof funds

deducted prior to his or her election to discontinue will be applied to the purchase of Common Stock on the

Exercise Date as defined below

Interest

Interest will not be paid on any employee accounts except to the extent that the Board or the Committee

in its sole discretion elects to credit employee accounts with interest at such per annum rate as it may from

time to time determine

Withdrawal of Funds

An employee may at any time prior to the close of business on the last business day in Plan Period and

for any reason permanently draw out the balance accumulated in the employees account and thereby withdraw

from participation in an Offering Partial withdrawals are not permitted The employee may not begin

participation again during the remainder of the Plan Period The employee may participate in any subsequent

Offering in accordance with terms and conditions established by the Board or the Committee

Purchase of Shares

On the Offering Commencement Date of each Plan Period the Company will grant to each eligible

employee who is then participant in the Plan an option Option to purchase on the last business day of

such Plan Period the Exercise Date at the Option Price hereinafter provided for the largest number of

whole shares of Common Stock of the Company as does not exceed the number of shares determined by

multiplying $2083 by the number of full months in the Offering Period and dividing the result by the closing

price as defined below on the Offering Commencement Date of such Plan Period Except as otherwise

provided herein the purchase price for each share purchased will be 85% of the closing price of the Common

Stock on the first business day of such Plan Period or ii the Exercise Date whichever closing price shall
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be less Such closing price shall be the closing price on any national securities exchange on which the

Common Stock is listed the closing price on the Nasdaq Capital Market or the average of the closing
bid and asked prices in the over-the-counter-market whichever is applicable as published in The Wall Street

Journal If no sales of Common Stock were made on such day the price of the Common Stock for purposes
of clauses and above shall be the reported price for the next preceding day on which sales were made

Notwithstanding the foregoing for
purposes of the initial Plan Period the purchase price for each share

will be 85% of the price at which the Common Stock is initially offered to the public or ii 85% of the

closing price of the Common Stock on the Exercise Date whichever price shall be less Each employee who
continues to be participant in the Plan on the Exercise Date shall be deemed to have exercised his or her

Option at the Option Price on such date and shall be deemed to have purchased from the Company the number
of full shares of Common Stock reserved for the purpose of the Plan that his accumulated payroll deductions

on such date will pay for but not in excess of the maximum number determined in the manner set forth above

Any balance remaining in an employees payroll deduction account at the end of Plan Period other than

amounts that would have otherwise been applied for the payment of fractional shares will be automatically
refunded to the employee

10 Issuance of Certificates

Certificates representing shares of Common Stock purchased under the Plan may be issued only in the

name of the employee in the name of the employee and another person of legal age as joint tenants with

rights of
survivorship or in the Companys sole discretion in the name of brokerage firm bank or other

nominee holder designated by the employee The Company may in its sole discretion and in compliance with

applicable laws authorize the use of book entry registration of shares in lieu of issuing stock certificates

11 Rights on Retirement Death or Termination of Employment

In the event of participating employees termination of employment prior to the last business day of
Plan Period no payroll deduction shall be taken from any pay due and owing to an employee and the balance
in the employees account shall be paid to the employee or in the event of the employees death to

beneficiary previously designated in revocable notice signed by the employee with any spousal consent

required under state law or in the absence of such designated beneficiary to the executor or

administrator of the employees estate or if no such executor or administrator has been appointed to the

knowledge of the Company to such other persons as the Company may in its discretion designate If prior
to the last business day of the Plan Period the Designated Subsidiary by which an employee is employed shall

cease to be subsidiary of the Company or if the employee is transferred to subsidiary of the Company that

is not Designated Subsidiary the employee shall be deemed to have terminated employment for the purposes
of this Plan

12 Optionees Not Stockholders

Neither the granting of an Option to an employee nor the deductions from his pay shall constitute such

employee stockholder of the shares of Common Stock covered by an Option under this Plan until such

shares have been purchased by and issued to him or her

13 Rights Not Transferable

Rights under this Plan are not transferable by participating employee other than by will or the laws of

descent and distribution and are exercisable during the employees lifetime only by the employee
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14 Application of Funds

All funds received or held by the Company under this Plan may be combined with other corporate funds

and may be used for any corporate purpose

15 Adjustment in Case of Changes Affecting Common Stock

In the event of subdivision of outstanding shares of Common Stock or the payment of dividend in

Common Stock the number of shares approved for this Plan and the share limitation set forth in Section

shall be increased proportionately
and such other adjustment shall be made as may be deemed equitable by

the Board or the Committee In the event of any other change affecting the Common Stock such adjustment

shall be made as may be deemed equitable by the Board or the Committee to give proper effect to such event

16 Merger

In the event of merger or consolidation of the Company with or into another corporation or of sale of

all or substantially all of the assets of the Company while unexercised Options remain outstanding under the

Plan subject to the provisions of clauses and after the effective date of such transaction each

holder of an outstanding Option shall be entitled upon exercise of such Option to receive in lieu of shares of

Common Stock shares of such stock or other securities as the holders of shares of Common Stock received

pursuant to the terms of such transaction or all outstanding Options may be cancelled by the Board or the

Committee as of date prior to the effective date of any such transaction and all payroll deductions shall be

paid out to the participating employees or all outstanding Options may be cancelled by the Board or the

Committee as of the effective date of any such transaction provided that notice of such cancellation shall be

given to each holder of an Option and each holder of an Option shall have the right to exercise such Option

in full based on payroll deductions then credited to his account as of date determined by the Board or the

Committee which date shall not be less than ten 10 days preceding the effective date of such transaction

17 Amendment of the Plan

The Board may at any time and from time to time amend this Plan in any respect except that if the

approval of any such amendment by the stockholders of the Company is required by Section 423 of the Code

such amendment shall not be effected without such approval and in no event may any amendment be

made which would cause the Plan to fail to comply with Section 423 of the Code

18 Insufficient Shares

In the event that the total number of shares of Common Stock specified in elections to be purchased

under any Offering plus the number of shares purchased under previous Offerings under this Plan exceeds the

maximum number of shares issuable under this Plan the Board or the Committee will allot the shares then

available on pro rata basis

19 Termination of the Plan

This Plan may be terminated at any
time by the Board Upon termination of this Plan all amounts in the

accounts of participating employees shall be promptly refunded

20 Governmental Regulations

The Companys obligation to sell and deliver Common Stock under this Plan is subject to listing on

national stock exchange or quotation on the Nasdaq Capital Market to the extent the Common Stock is then

so listed or quoted and the approval of all governmental
authorities required in connection with the

authorization issuance or sale of such stock
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21 Governing Law

The Plan shall be governed by Delaware law
except to the extent that such law is preempted by federal law

22 Issuance of Shares

Shares may be issued upon exercise of an Option from authorized but unissued Common Stock from
shares held in the treasury of the Company or from any other proper source

23 Notification upon Sale of Shares

Each employee agrees by entering the Plan to promptly give the Company notice of any disposition of

shares purchased under the Plan where such disposition occurs within two years after the date of grant of the

Option pursuant to which such shares were purchased

24 Effective Date and Approval of Stockholders

The Plan shall take effect on October 27 1999 subject to approval by the stockholders of the Company
as required by Section 423 of the Code which approval must occur within twelve months of the adoption of

the Plan by the Board

Adopted by the Board of Directors as of November 2007



NAVISITE INC

AMENDMENT NO TO

AMENDED AND RESTATED 1999 EMPLOYEE STOCK PURCHASE PLAN

The Amended and Restated 1999 Employee Stock Purchase Plan the Plan of NaviSite Inc

Delaware corporation the Company is hereby amended as follows

The introductory paragraph is hereby amended and restated in its entirety to read as follows

The purpose
of this 1999 Employee Stock Purchase Plan the Plan is to provide eligible

employees of NaviSite Inc the Company with opportunities to purchase shares of the Companys

common stock $.O1 par value the Common Stock 1116666 shares of Common Stock in the

aggregate have been approved for this purpose This Plan is intended to qualify as an employee stock

purchase plan as defined in Section 423 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986 as amended the

Code and the regulations promulgated thereunder and shall be interpreted consistent therewith

Adopted by the Board of Directors on

July 2009
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Stock Performance Graph

The following graph compares the cumulative total return to stockholders of NaviSite common stock for

the period from August 2004 through July 31 2009 with the cumulative total return over the same period of
the Nasdaq Composite Index and ii peer group index of publicly traded companies that provide similar

services to those of NaviSite the Peer-Group Index The graph assumes the investment of $100 in NaviSite
common stock and in each of such indices and the reinvestment of all dividend if any on August 2004 The
performance shown is not necessarily indicative of future performance
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Measurement Period
Nasdaq Peer Group

Fiscal Year Covered NaviSite Inc
Composite Index Index1

August 2004
$100.00 $100.00 $100.00

July31 2005
94.56 $116.53 $104.04

July3l2006
$193.64 $112.48 $204.72

July31 2007
$416.55 $137.95 $221.59

July3l2008
$161.43 $127.03 $146.22

July3l2009
67.34 $109.22 $124.00

The Peer-Group Index is modified
capitalization-weighted index of stocks selected by NaviSite that

represents the following publicly traded companies Internap Network Services Corp SAVVIS Inc
Akamai Technologies Inc Switch Data Facilities Co Inc Equinix Inc Limelight Networks Inc
and Terremark Worldwide Inc

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary set forth in any of NaviSites filings under the Securities Act of
1933 as amended or the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 as amended which filings might incorporate in
whole or in part other filings including this annual report with the Securities and Exchange Commission the
above graph shall not be deemed incorporated by reference into any such filings


